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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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2009 2008
—BENF —EENF
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BMABT  AMAET
Segment Revenue o EWE
Construction and engineering BEREM I 3,697 3,845
Insurance and investment R REE 67 105
Property ES 321 367
Food and beverages B 311 299
Computer and information communication % & & 7l @A BHX
technology and others R E M 800 953
Total mE 5,196 5,569
Segment Performance* DERE
Construction and engineering REREM I 573 19
Insurance and investment R REE (226) (74)
Property e (43) 444
Food and beverages 6874 (76) 9
Computer and information communication % & & 5l @A BHE
technology and others K E A (16) 54
Total R 212 452
* Defined in the section of Financial Review
EERVBRER
2009 2008
Segment Revenue 78Uz Segment Revenue 78z
15% _ 17%
" &y * iy
™ » B
71% — 69%

1%

2009
Segment Performance 5 38R
(HKS$ million B¥HET)

2%

2008

Segment Performance 73 £85K3

(HKS$ million /5% & &)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of and for the five years ended 31st March 2009.
THAETEREEARAFRI(ARFADREMNBAR(ABIAEFEDREBEE_SZENF=A=FT—HLBA
TFERNCBEE BRBE EEREMMBEERBIR -

Financials (HK$ Million) HMEEE B AR T) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Total assets wEE 6,453 6,936 7,291 8,589 8,114
Total liabilities FEN=RE 3,622 3,948 3,976 4,822 4,508
Total equity HrEm 2,831 2,988 3,315 3,767 3,606
Minority interests LER T 291 267 322 445 381
Equity attributable to equity AR AIRERFAA
holders of the Company JE1L 2540 2,721 2,993 3,322 3,225
Share capital g 2
— in number (Million) —HEBE(EER) 279 279 279 279 278
—in value (HK$1.25 per share) —HE(BREE1.257T) 348 348 348 348 347
Revenue Wz 3,866 4,335 4,665 5,569 5,196
Profit attributable to equity holders RNRAIRERE AN
of the Company i Al 295 331 318 231 136
Per Share Basis (HK$) BRFTE(EY)
Earnings — Basic BH|—ER 1.060  1.190  1.140  0.830  0.490
Dividends [ 0.450  0.680  0.500  0.450  0.455
Net asset value BEFE
— including minority interests —BREDBRRER 10.15 10.71 11.88 13.50 12.97
— excluding minority interests —TEFEIERRER 9.10 9.75 1073 1191  11.60

Revenue Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
W 58 RO T RERE AEIEER

(HKS$ Million/ ¥ & &71) (HK$ Million & ¥ B & 7T)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company Earnings and dividends per share
RRFREFEARGER BRAEMNKRE

(HKS$ Million A% 5 & 1) (HKS /&)

HELBEREEARAT 3
—ETNEFEER
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SUMMARY OF BUSINESS UNIT LocaTlon
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Business 375

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

HtEREEERAR

Construction and Engineering

BREREHIRE

Insurance and Investment

REERRE

Property
L/ES

59.66%

Other Businesses

HAth €35

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
HEtZnZERARAR

Lifestyle Food and Beverages
REEER

Construction and Engineering

BERBMIRE

Hong Kong
&
Beijing | Changchun| Chengdu | Dalian
b33 RE B rE

= =1

Insurance and Investment

REBERIRE

Asia TEM
Mainland China 9 B KB
Dongguan | Guangzhou |  Hefei Jivjiang | Shanghai | Shenzh
R% BN ‘e pihs L& 3l

=1 =] = = =1 =

C=d [=] (=1 (=] =] =] = = = = =]

= =
= =

Property
LES

+ Lifts & Escalators
TrEE i S IR

+ Aluminium Windows & Curtain Walls
BE REERE

+ Air-conditioning Systems and
Electrical & Mechanical Engineering
RRRBEERRBELR

+ Building Construction
BTG

+ Environmental Engineering
RIRTIE

+ Pipe Technologies
BRIl

+ Building Materials & Equipment
2R

+ Civil Engineering & Infrastructure

IARTIZRER

» Insurance Services
R ARTS

* Asset Management

BEEE

+ Property Investment & Development
MERE R ER

+ Cold Storage & Logistics
RERERYR

* Property Management
MEER

+ Hotel Investment

BIERE

*  Information as at 31st March 2009 R =TT NEF=F=+—B 2 &

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



SUMMARY OF BUSINESS UNIT LocATon
5% BT P (e Mo R

Location b Bf

. g Australia Europe North America
Asia TEM B BOM dE=M
Macau | Singapore | Thailand | Malaysia |Philippines | Japan Vietnam | Bangladesh | Australia | Germany | Belgium USA Canada
1] EipE ZH | BREE | FEE B e &I N EE LERIRS £ JIlEN

Wuhan | Xinyang | Zhuhai
BE =5 kg

Other Businesses Lifestyle Food and Beverages
HAth 7% REE R
+ Network Solutions + Automobile & Food Trading + Coffee Wholesale & Retail
MR RERRMES IS R T E
+ Mobile Digital Solutions + Travel Agency + Specialty Restaurants & Bars
VipElE 2SSV il FEaEREE
+ Enterprise Automation Technology
EEBFRX
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=TT FER



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Fiscal year 2008/09 saw challenges unprecedented in Chevalier’s 39-year
history. The global financial tsunami triggered by the subprime crisis in
the United States of America (US) shattered global financial markets. The
world economy struggled against the adverse impact of recession, and
swine flu has made its presence felt all around the world. We have rarely
witnessed more challenging times than the difficult economic environment
we are currently experiencing.

To minimise the impact caused by the difficult economic conditions, we
have responded by disposing of non-core business, consolidating business
units, and reducing the size of our investment portfolio. We have also
strengthened our core business by striking strategic alliances with strong
international partners so as to maximise potential from business synergies
and diversify risks, aiming to create long-term benefits and shareholder
value for the Group.

The most major strategic move during the year was our alliance in March
2009 with our long-term partner since 1970, Toshiba Elevator and Building
Systems Corporation (“TELC”), a subsidiary of Toshiba Corporation, that
specialises in lifts and escalators business. The move included (i) TELC’s
acquisition of 49% in year 2008/09 and a further 2% in year 2009/10 of
our lifts and escalators company, Chevalier (HK) Limited, in two tranches;
and (ii) our participation in 20% each of TELC’s lifts and escalators plants
in Shanghai and Shenyang respectively. The joint venture will continue
to be the exclusive partner of TELC for the sales, installation, repair and
maintenance of lifts, escalators and related products in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Macau. Together with the Group’s strategic investment
into the two manufacturing plants in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), the Group and TELC will be able to leverage on the respective

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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strengths of both parties and to strengthen communications to become a
stronger alliance in the region. The Group looks forward to the long-term
participation in the buoyant and high-growth mainland China lifts and
escalators market and further business expansion into other countries of
the Asia Pacific region.

A second strategic move made by the Group during the year was the
disposal of 75% interest in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH
(“CPT”), our international pipe rehabilitation business with operations
mainly in Europe and Australia, to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”),
a listed company in Japan that has over 60 years of history and is a sizeable
player in the construction material industry. With the complementary
products and services of CPT and Sekisui, coupled with Sekisui’s
established international network, we believe CPT will become better
positioned to generate higher returns for the Group in the long term. Such
a disposal also allows the Group to focus its resources on developing its
remaining pipe rehabilitation and related construction business in Hong
Kong.

The PRC remains a relatively unaffected yet growing economy, and the
Group continues to increase its investments and commitments pursuing
property development in various urban areas of the PRC with high growth
potential. During the year, the Group increased capital subscription for
the property development project located in Hefei by RMB133 million.
The Group also raised its share of the registered capital for its Changchun
project in the amount of RMB192 million. Chengdu is another high-
growth city where the Group has substantially invested in several property
development projects, hotel and car dealerships. In January 2009, the
Group acquired a 49% stake in a four-star-rated hotel in Chengdu for a
consideration of RMB69.5 million (subject to adjustment). The acquired
hotel is adjacent to the Group’s existing hotel development, and it is
expected that the acquisition will create synergies within the combined
hotel operation, enabling both hotels to benefit from the established brand
name.

In the food and beverages business, the Group completed its acquisition
of the remaining 51% stake in Igor’s Group at the end of March 2009 via
its listed subsidiary, Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited. The Group now
wholly owns Pacific Coffee and Igor’s Group with a combined network of
over 100 outlets in Hong Kong, including coffechouses, restaurants and
bars. Efforts are now being made to expand Pacific Coffee overseas through
franchising and to further strengthen Igor’s footprint in Hong Kong. The
food and beverages business remains a long-term growth driver for the
Group.

In securities investment, despite the Group’s conservative investment
policy and balanced portfolio, it was not immune to the unprecedented
volatility and rapid downturn seen during the financial crisis. Excluding
the loss from derivative financial instruments, a loss of HK$141 million
was recorded, representing a loss of around 17% on the average balance
of the investment portfolio during the year. Nevertheless, in view of the
fluctuating market situation, during the year, the Group had significantly
downsized its investment portfolio to minimise exposure.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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In hindsight, the fiscal year 2008/09 was an eventful year to the Group. Our
year-end results were adversely affected by project losses due to inflation
in construction material and labour costs, realised and unrealised losses in
securities investment, fair value reduction of investment properties, and
impairment of goodwill. Yet the Group was compensated by disposal gains
of both the 75% interest in the pipe rehabilitation business and the 49%
interest in the lifts and escalators business. Consolidated revenue dropped
slightly by 6.7% to HK$5,196 million, and profit attributable to equity
holders shrank 41.1% to HK$136 million as compared to last year.

Looking forward, the strategic moves taken by the Group have laid a solid
foundation for future growth. However, challenges remain as the backdrop
of a shrinking GDP, high unemployment rate and general slowdown in the
Hong Kong economy could continue to adversely affect the performance of
our business. On the other hand, the aggressive stimulus packages imposed
by the US and PRC governments aimed at restoring the economy after
the financial crisis in 2008 have provided some stabilising effects. We will
continue to explore and develop new business opportunities around our
competencies that are less susceptible to economic cycles and generate
stable positive ongoing cash flow so as to deliver continuing benefits for our
shareholders, customers, consumers and employees.

T would like to take this opportunity to warmly welcome Dr William Ko
as the non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1st April
2009. Dr Ko has served in the government of Hong Kong for more than
38 years, holding senior positions in a wide range of departments such as
Deputy Secretary for Works and as Director of Water Supplies since 2001
to retirement. Dr Ko’s appointment to the Group will bring significant and
valuable experience to the Board.

On behalf of the Board, I also thank the management and staff for their
hard work and professionalism during the past year, which will help us
not only weather the difficulties that confront us today, but also create a
stronger and even more energised Company in the years to come.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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MANAGEMENT PISCUSSION ANE ANALYS(S
5008 28 R B

The Group experienced a high level of material cost inflation in the 1st half
of 2008/09, and in the 2nd half the sub-prime crisis in the US triggered
the global economic meltdown. Those unprecedented events in the world
economy and financial markets negatively affected the performance of
most of the Group’s businesses during the year under review, although this
was offset substantially by the exceptional gains from the disposals of 75%
interest in our pipe rehabilitation business and 49% interest in our lifts and
escalators business. Revenue decreased 6.7% from HK$5,569 million to
HK$5,196 million and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
declined 41.1% from HK$231 million to HK$136 million this year.

The Group operates the following core business segments: construction
and engineering, insurance and investment, property, food & beverages,
computer and information communication technology and others.

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

During the year under review, the Group experienced escalating building
material prices and manpower costs, just before the economic downturn, in
the construction and engineering divisions. The segment also found itself
under pressure due to deterioration in the already-weakened residential
and commercial sectors in both Hong Kong and Macau.

Revenue for this segment saw a mild drop of 3.8% from HK$3,845 million
to HK$3,697 million. Project losses and provisions from the building
construction and pipe rehabilitation divisions, together with impairment in
goodwill, resulted in a loss for this segment. After taking into account the
disposal gains from pipe rehabilitation and lifts and escalators businesses,
as well as share of minority interests, results of associates and jointly
controlled entities, the segment achieved a profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company in the sum of HK$573 million. As the global
economic slowdown is expected to lead to a lower level of construction and
engineering activities in regions where the Group operates, such as Macau,
keen competition is envisaged — especially in the tendering process — with
fewer jobs available in the market. The total value of the major contracts
on hand for this segment declined to HK$2,264 million. Nevertheless, the
rollout of the 10 infrastructure projects and the upcoming construction-
related works by the HKSAR Government as announced in its 2007-08
Policy Address should provide sound impetus and opportunities for the
Group in the coming few years.

Building construction

As stated in previous reports, the division suffered most from significant
price fluctuations in construction materials such as steel, aluminium,
wood and concrete. Some of the fluctuations were unprecedentedly large
and rapid, causing a substantial cost overrun for “The Praia” project in
Macau as compared to the initial tender. While a full provision for losses
had been made for such overrun, the division continued to negotiate with
the developer to work out an amicable solution to compensate for the
additional costs. Construction of this project will be completed and the
units will be handed to the developer by the middle of 2009.
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Elsewhere, progress for the following major projects in the building
construction division is satisfactory. Major projects located in Hong Kong
include (a) the Hong Kong Community College Development at The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, (b) the redevelopment of the Shatin Pass
Estate and (c) the construction of primary school in Area 13, Yuen Long,
New Territories.

Lifts and escalators

The lifts and escalators division underwent a significant strategic shift
during the year under review. Disposal of the 49% interest in our lifts
and escalators business in Hong Kong, Singapore, the PRC and Macau to
TELC was completed on 31st March 2009. The Group also invested in 20%
of each of TELC’s lifts and escalators plants in Shanghai and Shenyang,
respectively. Since 1970, the Group has had a long-established history in
sales, installation, repairs and maintenance for Toshiba lifts and escalators.
Through such a strategic alliance with TELC, the Group is able to improve
its value chain by offering more cost-competitive products during
project bidding and hence increase the size of its maintenance portfolio.
The enhanced market share and improved long-term profitability from
maintenance revenue should benefit both partners with better returns.
Moreover, the Group’s strategic stake in the two manufacturing plants
could facilitate its development of a distribution network in the high-
growth market of the mainland China, allowing the Group to capture
the growing demand for high-quality lifts and escalators in this buoyant
property market.

The division continued to maintain a stable profit contribution during
the year. In Hong Kong, several lift accidents in public estates drew public
attention to safety issues and demand for higher-quality maintenance
services, which should create the opportunity for more reasonable
premiums on maintenance fees. Major projects on hand in Hong Kong
include the supply and installation of lifts and escalators at Yoho Town
in Yuen Long, Tai Wai Maintenance Centre Phase 2 and Kai Yip Estate
in Kowloon Bay. In Singapore, progress remained smooth for our major
project upgrading over 1,200 lifts and escalators for the Singapore Housing

Development Board.
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MANAGEMENT PISCUSSION AND ANALYS(S

Electrical and mechanical (“E&M”)

Most of the projects in Macau undertaken by the E&M division were
substantially completed on time and handed over to the developers to
their satisfaction. However, the global recession caused a slowdown in the
previously booming industries of real estates, casinos and hotels in Macau.
Accordingly, business for EXM in Macau is likely to decrease, and the
division will therefore shift its focus back to Hong Kong to maintain its
contribution.

Projects practically completed during the year included HVAC works for
the City of Dreams. A major project on hand in Macau is HVAC installation
for the Diamond Suites of Wynn Resorts.

Environmental engineering

Environment awareness and ecology protection has become a hot topic and
worldwide trend over the past decade. The environmental industry is also
one of the 6 knowledge-based industries that the HKSAR Government has
pledged its full support to for ongoing development. In response to our
government’s efforts in making Hong Kong greener, the environmental
engineering division will actively seek opportunities in the fields of water
treatment, sewage treatment, air treatment and solid waste treatment and
disposal in Hong Kong and Southeast Asia.

During the year under review, the CLP Relocation project was substantially
completed, while progress for the supply and installation of E&M
equipment for Tai Po Sewage Treatment Works Stage V is on schedule.
The division also made notable improvement in curtailing its losses
as compared to last year after carrying out internal restructuring and
strengthening ongoing project monitoring.

Aluminium windows and curtain walls

The aluminium windows and curtain walls division recorded another year
of sound performance with enhanced profit contribution. Equipped with
a strong, well-trained engineering team and a cost-efficient processing
facility in Dongguan that can provide high-quality, competitive design,
renovation, engineering, management and installation services for curtain
walls, the division is well positioned as one of the few major players in
Hong Kong. The division also further expanded in recent years into several
overseas markets including Australia, Japan and Macau. Major projects
on hand comprise designing, supplying and installing curtain walls for
(a) I-Square, a 32-storey entertainment complex at the former site of the
Hyatt Regency Hotel, (b) St. Paul’s Hospital in Causeway Bay, (c) Lot 2242,
DD95, Kwu Tung, Sheung Shui, New Territories and (d) the Latitude, San
Po Kong.
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Pipe technologies

During the year under review, the pipe technologies business also
underwent a substantial corporate shift. The Group disposed of 75%
interest in its pipe rehabilitation and construction arm in Europe and
Australia to Sekisui, realising sales proceeds of US$37.5 million and
a disposal gain of about HK$156 million. The business’ construction
company recorded substantial losses in Germany and extensive revamp of
the management team and streamlined branches have been carried out to
rectify the situation. With the sound track record of its new partner, the
Group is confident that the new management shall help the associate in
which the Group has 25% interest to restore profitability very soon.

Going forward, the Group will continue focusing on its Hong Kong pipe
rehabilitation business and the advanced Australian “Plastream” pipe
technology. In Hong Kong, the Group continued to suffer losses from prior
projects run by previous teams. Comprehensive restructuring on personnel
and systems has been carried out, and in view of the potential of upcoming
business from the water mains improvement schemes, the Group remains
optimistic about the prospects of this division in Hong Kong. Also,
Plastream pipe technology has been well received in the US, and the Group
is aiming to further license it in other countries in Europe, Asia and the
Middle East.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Revenue from this segment decreased from HK$105 million to HK$66.4
million as compared to last year. Segment loss increased from HK$71.1
million to HK$236 million as the Group incurred substantial losses by
realising its securities investment during the unprecedented global financial
crisis and recognising unrealised loss from derivative financial instruments
of HK$75 million through its hedging activities. It is always the Group’s
policy to adopt prudent and conservative investment strategy in managing
its investment portfolio for enhanced returns at calculated risks. The
exceptional volatility of the financial markets we witnessed in the second
half of the last fiscal year called for an even more cautious approach for the
Group’s securities investment. Internal investment procedures were further
scrutinised, and the Group has already substantially reduced its investment
portfolio size (excluding derivative financial instruments) from HK$1,187
million to HK$436 million. This year-end balance mainly consists of
private equity funds and investment-graded debt securities.

Because of fierce competition, the insurance underwriting business
continued to suffer from the low premium rate offered for employee
compensation insurance for construction over the past few years. The
division has already made itself available for other insurance products, such
as property insurance, to generate new sources of income. Moreover, with
the erosion of extraordinary investment gains from the equity market, it is
anticipated that the insurance premium rate shall return to healthier levels,
enabling the division to be in a more competitive position when capturing
underwriting business in the near future.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY

During the year under review, this segment reported revenue of HK$321
million, and segment profit was significantly down from HK$501 million to
a loss of HK$21.5 million. The reduction in profit was mainly attributable
to the change in revaluation of investment properties from a gain of
HK$387 million last year to a loss of HK$99.6 million this year.

Currently, the Group owns a number of investment properties with a total
gross floor area of over 824,000 sq. ft. in Hong Kong, China, Singapore,
Canada and other geographies, which are subject to fluctuations in fair
value change year by year. Other than such non-cash revaluation change
in fair value, the segment obtained stable profit contribution from cold
storage and logistics, property management and investment property
rental, which totalled HK$78.1 million as part of the segment results.

Most of the property development projects in the PRC are primarily at
initial development phases and have not provided profit contribution for
this financial year. Their share of loss as jointly controlled entities totalling
HK$12.0 million was reflected under this segment.

Property development

In view of the relatively small impact of the global financial crisis on the
economic growth of the PRC and the Group’s confidence in the long-term
prospects of the mainland China’s buoyant property market, the Group
continued to place substantial emphasis and make sound progress on its
property development projects in various cities in the PRC during the year.
Additional investments were made by increasing capital for some of its
property development companies in the mainland China.

The Group formalised its 51% shareholding in the jointly controlled
entity in Hefei through a capital injection of RMB133 million. The overall
design and layout of this project, Huaqiao Plaza — a residential and
commercial complex with shopping mall, serviced apartments, office
and residential buildings — was completed, and the project is now under
construction after the Group recently appointed the main contractor.
Furthermore, the Group also doubled the registered capital of its 96%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company in Changchun from RMB200
million to RMB400 million with a view to managing the project’s capital

requirements. The scale of the project undertaken is comparatively large,
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with land area of approximately 485,000 square metres (“sq.m.”) and an
estimated gross floor area of about 773,600 sq.m. (including carparks). As
of 31st March 2009, RMB80 million of the increased capital had already
been injected by the Group while the remaining amount has also been fully
paid as of the date of this report. The demolition of existing structures
has been substantially completed, with less than 5% of the number of
residential units and 10 commercial units still currently under negotiation
for moving.

Regarding sales of developed properties, the first batch of 75 units for Phase
1T of My Villa in Beijing was launched for pre-sale in October 2008. Due to
the global economic crisis, initial pre-sale performance was sluggish, but
it has been improving over the past several months as the global economy
has stabilised. As of the date of this report, nearly 80% of the number of
units offered in the first batch have been contracted for sale, with several
units reaching a selling price of over RMB10,000 per sq.m. To capture the
recent upswing of the property market, the Group is planning to launch
the second batch of My Villa Phase II in the coming months. In Chengdu,
construction works on Chevalier Tower were completed during the year
under review. The project company, a 49% jointly controlled entity of the
Group, began the handover of all residential units to buyers in December
2008. New homeowners have been providing positive comments on the
quality of apartments, which helps build the Chevalier brand in Chengdu
and shall be beneficial to the Group’s other developments projects there.
Further, the entire commercial portion of Chevalier Tower was sold to a
domestic bank in March 2009 and handed over in April 2009. All bank
indebtedness of the project company has thus been settled as of April
2009. Structural work on the tower building at the Shenzhen property
development project, offering residential area of approximately 100,000
sq.m., has been completed. Pending the completion of certain formalities,
it is ready for pre-sale and will be launched to market when the timing is
considered appropriate.

As of 31st March 2009, the total land bank attributable to the Group
amounted to a gross floor area of 1,129,000 sq.m. Given the bullish
prospects of the PRC economy, we will continue to look for well-priced
opportunities in acquiring premium property development projects or
land banks in the mainland China.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Hotel management

Chengdu is well known for its natural beauty attractions and has attained
fast economic growth in recent years. To capture the business potential
offered by the increasing number of travellers, the Group acquired in
January 2009 a 49% beneficial interest in a hotel in Chengdu, renamed
as Jinjiang Generation International Hotel (the “Chengdu Hotel”), for
a consideration of RMB69.5 million (subject to adjustment). The tower
section of a new building, planned to be an extension of the Chengdu Hotel,
is currently under construction by the Group’s 49% jointly controlled
entity for property development as mentioned above. By being able to share
the commercial podium and ancillary facilities of the existing Chengdu
Hotel, the Group expects it will benefit from a synergistic effect and save
a significant amount of development and ongoing operating costs as well
as efficiently utilise existing staff and resources. Leveraging the Group’s
hotel operating experience in Jiujiang, Xinyang, Dongguan and Vancouver,
Canada, the Group is confident that it can build the Chengdu Hotel into
another profit contributor.

Cold storage and logistics

Amid the economic downturn, the cold storage and logistics business
continued to perform well, consistently maintaining an overall occupancy
rate of over 90%. As this business has proved resilient to economic
fluctuations, it is expected that it will be able to carry on as a steady
contributor in this segment.

Property management

The property management division also provided a stable profit
contribution to the segment. Managing a total floor area of over 3 million
sq.m. in Hong Kong and the mainland China, the division’s property
management teams provide comprehensive management services for
commercial and industrial buildings, residential apartments, shopping
arcades, car parks and other building amenities. With such a solid
foundation and our growing number of property development and hotel
projects in the PRC, the division aims to expand its service offerings in the
mainland China after establishing a foothold there.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

Revenue of the food and beverages (“F&B”) segment generated
HK$311 million this year — up 4.0% from last year. In view of the
severely deteriorated market conditions and lack of evidence of strong
improvement in fundamental economic factors, the management has
reviewed the carrying values of the intangible and tangible operating assets
of Pacific Coffee and Igor’s Group and has prudently made an impairment
of HK$119 million in goodwill (2008: Nil) and an impairment of HK$15.5
million in property, plant and equipment (2008: HK$3.4 million). Such
significant impairments were non-cash in nature and did not affect the
operating cash flow of the Group. After sharing the results of the Igor’s
Group and minority interests, segment loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of the year was HK$76.2 million (2008: profit of HK$9.2
million).
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Pacific Coffee operates 81 coffeehouses as of 31st March 2009 (2008: 77),
of which 70 are in Hong Kong (2008: 63), 6 are in Singapore (2008: 7)
and 5 are in the mainland China (2008: 7). These stores are all managed
and operated by the Group’s internal teams, located in core commercial
districts, prime shopping and residential areas as well as tourist and
transport spots in the respective cities.

Igor’s Group operates 30 outlets as of 31st March 2009 (2008: 29), all of
which are located in Hong Kong. There are 10 restaurants, 12 restaurant-
bars, and 8 ‘Wildfire’ chain stores (2008: 11, 10 and 8 respectively), mainly
located in Central, Wanchai, Stanley, Discovery Bay and certain prime
shopping malls. It also engages in the food trading business under the
brand name “Blu Trading” and operates a central kitchen called “Blu
Catering”.

While continuing to look for sound internal growth and merger and
acquisition opportunities for the F&B business, the Group will adopt a
more cautious approach in expansion in the coming year. To capitalise
on the potential of its reputation and brand awareness, Pacific Coffee is
carefully developing an international franchise business. An experienced
and resourceful local franchisee will enable Pacific Coffee to open new
stores in overseas markets in a less management-and capital-intensive way,
while at the same time providing a constant and stable revenue stream
with less risk. Tapping the growth in living standards in the Pearl River
Delta, which have led to higher demand for quality coffee, the Group
entered into an agreement with a franchisee in October 2008, granting it
exclusive territorial rights to set up and operate coffee stores, kiosks and
vending machines under the “Pacific Coffee” name in Macau, Zhuhai
and Guangzhou. Pacific Coffee will continue to select suitable partners to
explore high-growth markets in Asia Pacific region.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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After completion of the acquisition of the remaining 51% interest in Igor’s
Group, the management teams of both Igor’s Group and Pacific Coffee will
be able to leverage each other’s relationships and experience with corporate
and street-level landlords, as well as collaborate more in food development,
advertising strategies and spending budgets. Centralised procurement and
logistics will also be achieved to maximise the synergistic benefits of the
combined F&B portfolio.

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION COMMUNICATION
TECHNOLOGY AND OTHERS

Due to the negative impact of the global economic downturn and keen
competition in the computer notebook industry, revenue as well as profit
for the Computer and Information Communication Technology (“IT”)
business decreased in both Hong Kong and Thailand. Revenue from
notebook computers, which accounted for 60% of the IT business, dropped
as customers’ preference shifted toward lower-price netbook computers
and as cost control concerns from both individuals and corporate
clients grew following the economic downturn of the 2nd half of 2008.
Meanwhile, the contribution from maintenance income for telephone
systems in the network solution business remained steady in both Hong
Kong and Thailand. With the upcoming release of the new Windows
operating system announced in the Ist quarter of 2009 as well as the
current economic environment, performance for the IT business, especially
notebook computers, is expected to be sluggish in the 2nd quarter of
2009. Nevertheless, this division will continue to focus on providing
stylish products and value-added services to customers in Hong Kong and
Thailand so as to maintain its profit margin.

After the first few years of initial set-up, our Nissan and Toyota car
dealership businesses in Chengdu recorded improvements in both revenue
and profit contribution. The new Nissan dealership in Panzhihua, launched
in early 2008, had made progress in building up its customer base, but the
dealership in Hongqi was terminated. While we are benefiting from high
growth for the car dealership business in the mainland China, the Canadian
market has been negatively affected by Chrysler’s corporate restructuring
and the impact of the financial tsunami. Management will closely monitor
the future development of the business there.

The food trading business, including the distribution of Southeast Asian,
Japanese and Korean food products to food distributors in the San
Francisco Bay and Greater Los Angeles areas, remained stable, with both
markets reporting increases in revenue and profit contribution.
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Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang
BBERE

Mr TAM Kwok Wing

AREEL EEKEE

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Executive Director, Chairman, aged 73, is the
founder of Chevalier Group since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited (“CPHL”), a public company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a
director of certain companies of the Group. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited and
Towngas China Company Limited and a Non-Executive Director of
Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Fellow by The
University of Hong Kong. In 1996 and 1997, he was appointed as an
Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by Nanjing University and
was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University
of Hong Kong respectively. Dr Chow also serves actively in a number
of educational advisory committees and gives substantial support to
the aforementioned two Universities in Hong Kong and The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology in areas of researches and
developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University
and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in the PRC. In 2008,
Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social
Science by City University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public
services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The
Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary
Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. He also actively
participates in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal
and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding President of
International Ningbo Merchants Association Co Ltd, the President of The
Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the
National Taiwan University-HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition
of his contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was
awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan
and especially the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in
Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star from the Government of the HKSAR (“HKSAR Government”) in
2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, an Executive Director
of the Company.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

AL BHEERE

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, aged 59, joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is an Executive
Director of CPHL, a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He
is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is the President
of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the
Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International
Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a
Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC”). Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business
development and is responsible for the strategic planning and management
of the operations of lifts and escalators, building construction, building
materials and supplies, aluminium works, electrical and mechanical
services, civil engineering, property development as well as investment
projects of the Chevalier Group.

Mr TAM Kwok Wing, Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director,
aged 48, joined Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Apart from managing the operation of insurance
underwriting together with property development, property management,
cold storage logistics and travel agency businesses, he is also responsible
for legal affairs and corporate communications of Chevalier Group.
Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing University of
the PRC, a Master of Arts Degree from City University of Hong Kong
and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the U.K. and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a member of the CPPCC, Changchun.
Presently, he also serves as an Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims
Complaints Bureau, the Chairman of Publication Committee and a
Council Member of The Hong Kong Association of Property Management
Companies as well as a Committee Member in the Education Committee of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
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Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Executive Director, aged 35, joined
Chevalier Group in 2000 and is the Managing Director of CPHL, a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering
from the University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee
Member and Chairman of the Environment Committee of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Committee Member of the
Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Mr Chow is a member of the Committee Member of
the CPPCC, Shanghai. He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman
of the Company.

Mr HO Chung Leung, Executive Director, aged 59, joined Chevalier Group
in 1985. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
responsible for management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury
activities. Mr Ho is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr HO Sai Hou, Executive Director, aged 43, was appointed as an
Executive Director and Company Secretary of the Company on 1st April
2008 and is also an Executive Director and Company Secretary of CPHL,
a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. He joined Chevalier Group in 2005. He is
responsible for management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury,
corporate finance and company secretarial activities. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Ho holds
a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The University of
Hong Kong and completed his EMBA with The China Europe International
Business School in 2007. Previously, Mr Ho was the Chief Financial Officer
and an executive director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph O.B.E., J.P., aged 67, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director in 2002 and a member of the
Audit Committee and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He is the Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an
independent non-executive director & chairman of PYI Corporation
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings
Limited and Road King Infrastructure Limited as well as a non-
executive director of Wheelock Properties Limited. He has over 40 years
of experience in the planning, design and construction of many major
engineering projects in the U.K., Middle East, the PRC and Hong Kong.
He is currently the Chairman of the Construction Workers Registration
Authority and Hon. Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary
Police Force. He was previously the President of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration
Board, Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well as a
Member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 31st March 2006. He has
extensive experience in business management. He was the founder of
Zindart Limited, a company incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United
States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive
Officer of Zindart Limited since 1998.

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles J.P., aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1st
April 2008. Previously, he was the Chief Financial Officer and Director of
Hong Kong Asia Television Limited. Mr Yang is a partner of S. Y. Yang &
Company, Practising firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from The City University London in 1983. Mr
Yang was appointed as Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government
in 2004. He was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He
is currently a member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr Yang is the Chairman of
Admissions, Budget and Allocations Committee and a Director of The
Community Chest. He is also a member of the HKSAR Chinese Medicine
Council and Partnership Fund For The Disadvantaged.

Dr KO Chan Gock, William, aged 63, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 1st April 2009. Dr Ko graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in the government of
Hong Kong for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide range of
departments including the Water Supplies Department, the Highways
Department, the Civil Engineering and Development Department and
the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as the Director of Water
Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service in January 2007.
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MASOR EVENTS
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APRIL 2008 - MARCH 2009
2R/ \FMAZE=BBNFEZS

April 2008 —Z= )\ A

The Air-conditioning Division was awarded a contract
to install and supply mechanical system for the City of
Dreams in Macau

2 REPEORPIHT R R M 25 e (B TI2 A 4

+ Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited won the
2007 Green Contractor Award — Gold Award

H+ G25) AR ABER 2007 RRAER ] 288

ST P

May 2008 —Z=Z )\ FH A

The Group announced the disposal of its 75% interest The Group donated HK$1 million to help Sichuan

in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH to Sekisui earthquake victims through the Liaison Office of the

Chemical Co., Ltd. with the new joint venture company Central People’s Government in the HKSAR

renamed as Sekisui CPT GmbH R L
REBFEBPRARBTEE B BT BUR B 4%

REES M E CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies WA IR B 1008 T  EB)| M EKER

GmbH 75% # % TIREKE BT ERA &1t - ML

A B AN A Sekisui CPT GmbH + Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited was
awarded the Outstanding Environmental Management

+ Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited won the Considerate and Performance Grand Award — Silver Award and the
Contractors Site Award — Merit Award Considerate Contractors Site Award — Bronze Award
HARIERM) ARAFERE ARInRR | ERR HEt(BE)BERARERGHERRERR | RER

[ A1 | 155
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July 2008 —ZZ N\F+ A
+ Announcement of 2008 annual results

A 2008 FE R FRAE

September 2008 —ZZ T )\ F /1L A

» Chevalier Thailand Office celebrated its 20th
anniversary

HEZREBREEBVNT —+AFLER

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited
completed the curtain walls project of Sydney
Water headquarters in Australia

Ht+ (3T11R) AR ARTHRORMNERKEHE
AREO IR TA2

October 2008 —_ZEZE N\F+ A

“The Praia”, a construction project in Macau participated
by Chevalier (Macau) Limited, held the topping-out
ceremony

HTCRM)ARARZEEZMRM [BEX] EE
HASTFEEN

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited completed
the project of Wharves 8 & 9 Pyrmont, a luxury residential
property in Sydney, Australia

H+ (33 T18) AR QB TARIMNEFETZ Wharves 8
& 9 Pyrmont mARTEH TIZIER

The Group launched pre-sale of Phase II of My Villa in
Beijing, the PRC

AREBBEEMN P EIL R 2 IE B L REERE — 8
Pacific Coffee secured a franchise partner to operate

licensed stores in Zhuhai, Guangzhou and Macau

Pacific Coffee RISHFAFEEEM  RINE - BN MR
FIR RIS
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MAJOR EVENTS
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November 2008 —ZZEN\FE+— A

Chevalier sponsored Chevalier Cup Race Day for the
13th consecutive year

HIEBE+=FEYNELRESFA]

December 2008 —EZ N\FE+ — A

+ The Lifts and Escalators Division was awarded [

two prizes in the 2008 Quality Public Housing
Construction and Maintenance Awards, namely
“New Works Projects — Outstanding Contractor
Award (Building Services Installation — Lift &
Escalator)” and “New Works Projects — Outstanding
Contractor Award (Workers Wages Payment System
— Nominated Sub-contractor)”

ERTREEAEEERZEARRESHE AR
2008 JHREM IR G AR R J(FT T2 S8 E )
R REETFEB(FARERELEEH) RTAX
FHlE (BESER)

Chevalier Investment (Hefei) Limited entered into
agreements with Anhui Province Travel Group
Company Limited and Anhui Anxing Development
Joint-Stock Company Limited to increase the capital
subscription in a joint venture company to continue
the development of Hua Qiao Plaza in Hefei, the PRC

HIRE (AIE)ERAREZBHIRKESEER
RANRLZHLZEERBNERABDRIT HHELHE
BRAEE  EEZERUNTESIENERES
EH
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+ The Group announced to form strategic partnership

with Toshiba Elevator and Building Systems
Corporation to jointly develop the elevator business in
Asian market

AEESMERZEMRA SR IREEHE
% BFRRIMNERER

Announcement of 2008/09 interim results

A 2008/09 FE R ERZELE

Handover of Chevalier Tower residential units in
Chengdu, the PRC
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March 2009 —ZEZ N F = H

+ The Group completed the acquisition of the
remaining 51% stake in Igor’s Group

January 2009 —ZEZ 1 F— A N B R UL Tgor's R B8R T ) 519 1S
+ The Group acquired 49% beneficial interest in a - Charming Garden and Charming Garden Car
hotel which has been renamed as Jinjiang Generation Park, managed by Chevalier Property Management
International Hotel to further expand its business in Limited (“CPML”), won the “Star Managed
Chengdu, the PRC Property” and “Outstanding Managed Public
AR B XA A R8T BIREE 2 49% 1 g Farke respectively In the Kowloon West Best
2 s Ak . ecurity Services Awards , while Grandview
IR B X Garden, another property managed by CPML, won

. . the “Outstanding Managed Property”
Action Honda won the 2009 Honda Quality Dealer

Award for the 8th year HT- G EEEARATMEENEET

- \ - BREREESRERILE S RER
Action Honda 3 /S HEH A B H (125 SEREE R R RS AV 2008

FEANESRERZRBER | W[ EREEY
R [HETEARFESE| M REEE
MEE]

+ Harmony Garden, managed by Chevalier Property
Management Limited, was granted the “Class of
Good” Energywi$e Label in the “Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence”

HIBEMEERARARMEENEMRIER
K [EBRREMETE ] - B8 [ RFRH ] &

4k HaE 2t
Ber s

February 2009 —ZEZNF_H

+ The Lifts and Escalators Division was awarded a
contract to install and supply lifts and escalators for

YOHO Town in Yuen Long
EHEETTHAYOHO Town R R ETHEH N E
BB IREAR

HEEREMERAT g
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Chengdu, the capital of Sichuan Province, is located in the southwestern China.

WE M)A EE T B -

i)

J.HIJ i

TN

iii)

CHENGDU, SICHUAN PROVINCE [MJI| & & H

Chevalier Tower Project, Chengdu

The project is located on the Binjiang Road, Jinjiang District, Chengdu. It is a commercial
and residential project in the downtown and within the commercial center of Chengdu
next to Jinjiang River. It is adjacent to the Metro terminal and enjoys comprehensive
ancillary facilities.

The project occupies a site of approximately 8,200 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of
approximately 47,000 sq.m.

The project has been completed and the units sold have been gradually delivered to the
buyers.

&t 25T Hl hE PR B
A BRI AEDER T R BITBE - RARE TR OEERR - LEKEBTREE - £5%
RERTS - ADOE A TENEERERRERE
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WBEEEKET  WTEEEBSELELURHER -

ii)  Phase IB of Jinjiang Generation Project, Chengdu

The project is adjacent to Chevalier Tower Project, Chengdu. The project is going to
provide over 300 hotel guest rooms and will be combined with the current Jinjiang
Generation International Hotel to be a four-star hotel with over 500 hotel guest rooms in
total.

The project occupies a site of approximately 4,600 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of
approximately 22,000 sq.m.

The project is under construction and expected to be completed by 2010.

K EB 88T — HIB /& B 5

T8 B #Pa AR R BRI S BEPIIE R - THE IR 3002 M & FE « I B IR At (X
RIEEEEEGKRESS RS0 ZHEEHNERBE -

TH B L FE 494,600 F 75 K + ARIEE FEFEXY 22,000 F 75 K ©

WIEE ITRIEFEETY B 2T —TFET -

Lushan Road Project, Chengdu

The project is located on Donglin Village, Wanan Town, Shuangliu County in the southern suburb of Chengdu, 13 kilometres
(“km”) from the Shuangliu International Airport. The project is planned to be developed into a low density high class
residential community with ancillary facilities.

The project occupies a site of approximately 116,000 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately 394,300 sq.m.

The development of this project has not been commenced.

AL A ERE
HAURKETEBEREELRBARNN - BHERBEREREEOBRE - ZRBFINERETESRE
EEAT  EAEERERE -

T8 B 4 FE 49 116,000 37 77 2K N 4218 [ E 18 47 394,300 F 75 3K ©
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iv)  Huayang Luye Village Project, Chengdu

The project is located in Luye Village, Huayang Town, Shuangliu County in the southern suburb of Chengdu, 13 km from the
Shuangliu International Airport. The project is planned to be developed into a residential community with ancillary facilities.

The project occupies a site of approximately 26,800 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately 67,100 sq.m.

The development of this project has not been commenced.

HEBE G R T IEH
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(II) HEFEL, ANHUI PROVINCE Z#&&ES

Hefei, the capital of Anhui Province, is located in the central region of China.
BE - REEEE  MEPEPE -

Huagqiao Plaza Project, Hefei

The project is located on Changjiang Road Central, Luyang District, Hefei,
adjacent to pedestrian streets in the central business district of Hefei. By
consolidating the former site of Anhui Huaqgiao Hotel and surrounding land,
it will be developed into a high class residential and commercial project. The
project is expected to become a landmark property in the heart of Hefei,
featuring a combination of high class and modern mega shopping arcade,
restaurants, hotel/serviced apartments, office and residential buildings.

The project occupies a site of approximately 20,600 sq.m. with a total gross
floor area of approximately 135,200 sq.m., including a shopping mall of
approximately 80,000 sq.m.

The basement is currently under construction. The project is expected to be completed by 2011.

EIEEEELEH
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(II1) CHANGCHUN, JILIN PROVINCE EFM&REHEM

Changchun, the capital of Jilin Province, is located in the northeastern China.

RE EMEEE  MEPBERILE-

Fanjiadian Urban Renewal Project, Changchun

The project is located in the shanty areas at Fanjiadian, Luyuan District in the west of downtown Changchun. It is a large scale
redevelopment of shanty areas. The project is planned to be developed into a low density commercial and residential community by
phases.

The project occupies a site of approximately 485,000 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately 700,000 sq.m.

Land demolition is in progress.

REBRIEWFEKEEE
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(IV) BEIJING dt&=mH

Beijing, the capital of the PRC, is located in northern China.
bR FEEE  MER B -

My Villa Project, Beijing

The project is located on Fengxiang Street East, Yangsong Town, Huairou
District, Beijing in the northern suburb near downtown. It is situated in the
centre of China (Huairou) Movie and TV Industry Zone. The project will be
developed in three phases mainly comprising of exquisite villas with a Nordic
garden style supplemented by leisure clubhouse, commercial street with the
theme of movie and TV and serviced apartments.

The project occupies a site of approximately 193,000 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately 137,900 sq.m.

A total of 112 villas of Phase I have been completed and the units sold have been gradually delivered to buyers. Phase II is expected
to be completed by 2010.

LR EEE

BEMAIERTUIE ZAMBRESRERDRY - LERREAZBZOER  FRALBHBEXNEHRNERE @ &
UHRBgHH PREABHEEIRREREE  D=HER -

18 B 1 # E T 49 193,000 F 75 0K R AB AR E E FE 49 137,900 F 752K ©

BEHE-HHRIDRAEEEX  TEEHCEHEURINER - BAE MR _T—TFRT -

(V) SHENZHEN SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE ZE3II| &S =

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone is located in the south of Guangdong Province next to
Hong Kong.

RYGERR - wEPEEREEE - BHBES -

Xiling Project, Shenzhen

The project is located in Lower Liantang Xiling Village, next to the planned Liantang Port
of Luohu District, and adjacent to the Hong Kong border. It is a commercial and residential
project comprising of two 50-storey high-rise residential buildings. The project occupies
a site of approximately 15,000 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately 120,300
sq.m.

FYFEEEE

HEMREREWFBPEEEODF=EL AR EERE TN - iE 585
AREEMROESEEEENEEIEE - HE G4 A 15,000 F 5K R EEEE
& %9 45 120,300 F 5 5K ©

Remarks:

it -

Floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement buildings, preserved buildings and clubhouses are not included in
the total gross floor area above.

NERBEEETERERTE 25 AEEE DEBEE REZELGHzEE-
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SCHEDULE OF THE MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEWER

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows: AEBEBZEEWEFTIWOT -

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES (I) F/ERE BRWE

FOR OWN USE
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
A %M
i B A EEHEHBAH ZHNFH iRz
sq.ft. £ 5 R %
Hong Kong
BH
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise and 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and carpark FHA
one-third interest in WAENIFES
201 car parking spaces
of Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
BEERAE /R
HEL|Efh L+
i
TAhE-+=Z8FK
H=n—Hm2FBEA
201 1
Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial 15,000 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, I% 1 Hf
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
NBEEBRIEREST 7%
BAETERLARMT
Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T B Hf
Fanling, New Territories
MAMELZ LML RE =5
TN |
Chevalier Engineering Service Centre, Industrial 177,500 Medium 100
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T # HA
NEEBEHE=-+—5%
HEA+TRREH DL
124-130 Kwok Shui Road Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories REEE oA
R ORI
—BA-tHEE—F=1%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
AR E BN Ex=c * AR
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
ARE =58 *= i HA

At EREEARAT
TTHEFR 33




SCHELULE OF THE mAJOR PROPERTIES
FEWEE

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () H/ERE "BRWE @)

FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
g3
B Jiik=S EHEBEANH ZHEH iRz
sq.ft. £ 5 R %
Hong Kong
B8
The Whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
5th Floors, Factory Units Nos. T 1 Hf
2205 and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 car parking spaces of
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre,
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FRESELHE_BA-_T=
AN
B TES D
Tz HRABERE -
Tt _TRR
T EREBEASE
Singapore
0 3
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 81,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T KA
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road, Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 T KA
Canada
m&Ex
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Office, workshop and 20,200 Freehold 100
Ontario, MIF 2M8 carpark for KA R
automobile dealership
RERBEEHE I MAE
TiHEREES
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office, workshop and 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario carpark for KA ERE
automobile dealership
FRERBELHEIMAE
TiEREEE
888 Hamilton Street, Hotel 66,000 Freehold 86
Vancouver, B.C. i KA ZEHE
US
ES
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA I% /2R KA ZEHE

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SCHELULE OF THE MmAJOR PROPERTIES

FTEWER
() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () H/ERE "BRWE @)
FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
RE
Hb B Rz BEEEAR ZUEH 4t R
sq.ft. F 5 R %
Thailand
%
No. 540 Bamrungmuang Road, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
Debsirin Sub-district, showroom KAZERE
Pomprab District, PRERRIN=E
Bangkok Metropolis
(REATMZBERE)
Mainland China
T A it
355 Minquan Road, Hotel 105,000 Medium 70
Xinyang City, Henan Province B oA
e EETRER=RRLR
Sha Long Road, Sha Tong Village, Office premise and hotel 191,000 Long 100
Houjie Town, Dongguan City WA= ROBE 5
REmEHEDENDER
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, Guangzhou, MA=E H HA
Guangdong Province
BEREBRMTRILES T /\Z
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark =&
FETRERZEE—X/\5HR FE mHEIEES
IR
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SCHELULE OF THE mAJOR PROPERTIES
FEWEE

4-storey shopping acrade and 150 car parking spaces,
No. 8, West Binjiang Road, Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan

P )1 5 2 58 BT B\ S R 88 T LB P SE R 181 -
ABES REEA 150

*  Excluding car parking spaces

FEEEER

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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(II) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT () BEPYE
Estimated
gross floor The
Stage of Expected date Approximate area after Group’s
Location completion  of completion Major usage sitearea completion* interest
\ EEET U Bt mRARE A%ZE
1t 26 BE B FEAE HEAY ERIB- EEz
sq.ft. FHFR sq.ft. FHR %
Mainland China
HE A it
Chengdu Jinjiang District In progress 2010 Hotel and 49,500 237,000 49
REBRTE TRETR —T-TF _commercial
VEEPNEEES
Shenzhen Luohu District In progress 2010 Residential and 161,000 1,295,000 46
R EHE TREFR —T-F4F commercial
(ERSIVEEES
Beijing Huairou District  In progress 2011 Villa, residential 2,077,000 1,129,000 44
L RBEEE Tirsh —F——%  and commercial
RIE - FEREE
Hefei Luyang District In progress 2011 Hotel/serviced 222,000 1,455,000 51
ARER R Ti2#s7sh — =T ——4 apartment, resident@al
and commercial
B/ BERAE -
ERY EES
Changchun Luyuan In progress 2014 Residential and 5,220,000 7,535,000 96
District Ti2EfTHh —T—MF commercial
RREZER FEREE
Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement buildings, preserved buildings and clubhouses
TEEMTZE FEE  NELE  FER2E REEERSHTZEE
It w
(IIT) PROPERTIES FOR SALE (1) &M=
Approximate The
gross Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
AEH
1t B BEEED ZHEH Frib i
sq.ft. ¥ 5 R+ %
Hong Kong
5#
Charming Garden — 3 shop units and 67 car parking spaces, 2,339 Medium 100
8-16 Hoi Ting Road, Mongkok West, Kowloon H
NEEATEEREENE TR ERIEE ML E M FEL67 A
Beverly Garden — 6 shop units and 294 car parking spaces, 11,753 Medium 100
1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories A
MAEERERE R E RIEE A6 (8 M5 =294 A
Glorious Garden — 7 shop units and 187 car parking spaces, 5,765 Medium 100
45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories H
MR EMIREMEN A ERIEE M7 (@ M= EA187 A
Mainland China
B A it
Chevalier Tower — 18 residential apartment units, 114,883 Medium 49
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SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2 ERROE
For the year ended 31st March 2009 HE_ZTNF=-A=+—HIEFE
Computer and
information
communication
Constructionand  Insurance and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others
BER ERRER
BHIE RBRRE VES £ BANBRAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BETR BETRT BET BRI BETR
Segment revenue FEWE 3,697,400 66,384 321377 311,106 799,310
Segment results before impairment RABEZAEHEANN
loss on goodwill PEEE (264,147) (235,996) (21,536) (20,289) (15,678)
Tmpairment loss on goodwill BEAEER (10,579) - - (118,700) -
Segment results PEREE (274,726) (235,996) (21,536) (138989) (15,678)
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries HERBAR Z BROWE 777,922 - - - -
Segment operating profit/(loss) PEEEET/ (F8) 503,196 (235,9%6) (21,536) (138,989) (15,678)
Share of segment operating loss/(profit) DEREAE
by minority shareholders AREEER/(EF) 75,044 10,217 (10,962) 56,068 (108)
Segment operating profit/(loss) attributable RRTIRESE AR
to equity holders of the Company BELET/ (BE) 578,240 (225,779) (32,498) (82,921) (15,786)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company: RRRIRERE AR -
—results of associates -BENAEE (5,750) - 1,934 6,699* 69
- results of jointly controlled entities -HREHEEE 685 - (12,041) - -
Segment Performance PERE 573,175 (225,779) (42,605) (76,222) (15,717)

* After share of results by minority shareholders

Construction and engineering segment

The construction and engineering segment achieved a Segment
Performance (as defined above) of HK$573 million profit for the year
ended 31st March 2009. This profit was mainly attributable to the gain
on disposal of interests in subsidiaries of HK$778 million, lessening by
the segment results (including impairment loss on goodwill) of HK$275
million loss but adding back share of the operating loss by minority
shareholders of HK$75.0 million.

Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries

The Group disposed of its 75% interest in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies
GmbH and its subsidiaries (the “CPT Group”) to Sekisui Chemical Co.,
Ltd. (“Sekisui”) on 25th July 2008 (the “CPT Disposal”), recognising a
disposal gain of HK$156 million. Furthermore, on 31st March 2009, the
Group sold its 49% interest in Chevalier (HK) Limited, its subsidiaries and
associates engaged in lifts and escalators business (the “CHK Group”) to
Toshiba Elevator and Building Systems Corporation (the “CHK Disposal”),
recognising a disposal gain of HK$622 million. Total gain on the CPT
Disposal and the CHK Disposal thus amounted to HK$778 million.

* BHROERREEREA

BEEREBIEDE
BHE_ZZNF=ZA=1+—BILFE BER
B IREIBZOBRRE(WEXER)ER R
MBS 7387 < m A E 2B ENE R A
BaRRREBE778ETL BoBRREEE
(BREBEZRERBRE) BB 275 BT SRR
o B INE D BRI E E 2 R 7,500 8
5T o

HE ] B 2 A2 B2k B K 2
AEER_ZTZENFLA-_THBERBEKERE
T A G (117K ) & CPT Chevalier Pipe
Technologies GmbH 52 E fff & 2 5] ([ CPT & & ])
Z75% s ([CPTHE]) - R L ERAEE
L56f87C © WS R—FTNF=A=+—H8"
AEERRZEHRA ST HEXEIHERE
BEEBEBHET(FBE)ARAR - EMBLQ
AINBERNR([ELEEEE]) 249% s ([ H
TEBLE]) HALEWREEKc2ET -
Hit - CPTHERAELTHEBELER KA REBE
7.78 87T
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Segment results/Share of segment operating loss by minority shareholders
Included in the segment results was a loss of HK$101 million recorded
by the CPT Group during the period from Ist April 2008 to 25th July
2008 (date of disposal) while HK$75.0 million was borne by the minority
shareholder pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement
between the Group and Sekisui. After the date of the CPT Disposal, the CPT
Group is accounted for as an associate of the Group.

The significant price rise in construction materials and cost increase
in handling unexpected complexity in projects suffered by building
construction division, as well as losses in Hong Kong from pipe
rehabilitation and construction projects managed by previous operation
teams, also attributed to the substantial loss recorded in the segment
results.

Insurance and investment segment

The insurance and investment segment reported a Segment Performance
of HK$226 million loss for the year ended 31st March 2009. This loss
was primarily derived from HK$159 million realised losses on securities
investments upon downsizing of investment portfolio during the financial
tsunami and HK$75.0 million unrealised losses from derivative financial
instruments. Such unrealised losses from hedging derivatives were mainly
due to exceptional fluctuation of certain financial indexes beyond the
historical range in the second half of the fiscal year. Such exceptional
deviation narrowed and the underlying indexes resumed to historical levels
after year-end as the economic situation recently stabilised.

Property segment

The property segment recorded a Segment Performance of HK$42.6
million loss for the year ended 31st March 2009. Profit contribution from
the cold storage and logistics business, property management and rentals of
investment properties to segment results remained at similar level as in last
year. However, decrease in fair value on investment properties of HK$99.6
million loss (2008: increase in fair value of HK$387 million gain) and write
down of properties for sale to net realisable value of HK$26.7 million loss
(2008: write back of HK$11.8 million gain) were recorded as a result of the
global decline in property markets as at 31st March 2009. Together with
the HK$12.0 million losses shared from jointly controlled entities, which
were primarily selling and administrative expenses incurred for the pre-
sale of Phase IT of a property development project in Beijing, the Segment
Performance was thus substantially reduced and resulted in loss.

Food and beverages segment

The food and beverages segment attained a Segment Performance of
HK$76.2 million loss for the year ended 31st March 2009. Suffering
from the operating losses of the overseas Pacific Coffee operations and
an impairment loss from property, plant and equipment of HK$15.5
million, the segment results before impairment loss on goodwill had been
negatively affected to a loss of HK$20.3 million. Further, in view of the
deteriorated consumer market, an impairment loss on goodwill arising
from the business acquisitions for Pacific Coffee and Igor’s Group of
HK$119 million was prudently made. Taken into accounts of the share of
the operating loss by minority shareholders of the Group’s listed subsidiary,
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, amounting to HK$56.1 million and
share of profit by equity holders of the Company on an associate, Igor’s
Group during the year, of HK$6.7 million, this segment ended up with
Segment Performance of a loss of HK$76.2 million as stated above.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Computer and information communication technology and others
segment

The computer and information communication technology (“IT”) and
others segment provided a Segment Performance of HK$15.7 million loss
for the year ended 31st March 2009. The segment obtained major profit
contribution from the IT business and food trading business in the United
States of America (US). However, fair value loss of HK$27.7 million (2008:
gain of HK$23.9 million) on the derivative component of convertible
bonds as assessed by independent valuer according to the option price
model turned the Segment Performance to a loss.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Total revenue of the Group decreased by 6.7% or HK$373 million from
HK$5,569 million last year to HK$5,196 million this year. In general,
other than food and beverages segment which reported a slight increase
of revenue of HK$12.1 million, all other business segments recorded
drop in revenue as a result of the worldwide economic downturn. For the
construction and engineering segment, since the CPT Group has been
accounted for as an associate after the CPT Disposal, the Group only
consolidated about the first 4 months revenue from the CPT Group for the
year under review, leading to a drop of HK$261 million in consolidated
revenue as compared with last year. Such decrease was partly compensated
by the increase in revenue from lifts and escalators and electrical and
mechanical divisions; thus, the revenue of construction and engineering
segment reduced only by HK$148 million. The decline in revenue of
computer and information communication technology and others segment
by HK$153 million was mostly attributable to the decrease in sales of
computers in Hong Kong and trading of cars in Canada as a result of
shrinkage in consumption.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased by 49.6% to HK$344 million for the year ended
31st March 2009 and gross margin dropped substantially from 12.3% to
6.6%. Such drop reflected mainly the project losses suffered by building
construction division, the CPT Group as well as the pipe rehabilitation and
construction business in Hong Kong.

Other expenses, net

Increased realised losses on downscaling the investment portfolio of
the Group to minimise further exposure during financial turmoil plus
increased unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments as detailed in
insurance and investment segment’s Segment Performance review above
mainly caused the other expenses, net to increase by HK$117 million for the
fiscal year.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net remained in similar magnitude as in last year but with
different components or same items with movement in opposite directions.
Gain on the CPT Disposal and the CHK Disposal totalling HK$778
million was realised for the year ended 31st March 2009. Nevertheless,
unfavourable financial market in the second half of the fiscal year brought
to a fair value reduction in investment properties of HK$99.6 million
(2008: fair value increment of HK$387 million) and net exchange loss
of HK$36.5 million (2008: net exchange gain of HK$9.4 million) arising
from receivables and transactions denominated in foreign currencies other

EINANCIAL REVIEW
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than US dollar. Impairment losses on goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of HK$148 million (2008: HK$7.4 million), substantially for
food and beverages segment, were made after considering the prevailing
fundamental economic uncertainties. The derivative component of
convertible bonds also gave rise to a fair value loss of HK$27.7 million
(2008: fair value gain of HK$23.9 million) based on the independent
valuation.

Share of results of associates

Decrease in the Group’s share of results of associates was mainly due to a
decline in fair value of an associate’s investment property and the share of
25% net losses from the CPT Group after the date of the CPT Disposal.

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Selling and administrative expenses of a jointly controlled entity on
property development project in Beijing as mentioned in the property
segment’s Segment Performance review above primarily led to the share of
losses of jointly controlled entities by the Group.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net reduced significantly by 36.2% or HK$39.7 million. The
Group obtained substantial proceeds from the two disposals of subsidiaries
and from realisation of investment securities. Such proceeds had been
used to repay bank borrowings contributing to the reduction in finance
costs during the year ended 31st March 2009. The Group also arranged
where practically feasible project financing for its property development
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and interest costs
of HK$11.9 million incurred under current development phases have
been capitalised and not charged to the consolidated income statement as
finance costs during the year.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit is derived from the current tax expenses of HK$28.2
million (2008: HK$40.1 million) offsetting by write back of deferred tax
provision of HK$32.3 million (2008: provision of HK$72.7 million). Drop
in current tax expenses was mainly caused by decline in the Group’s taxable
profit and reduction of Hong Kong profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
while write back of deferred tax provision was mainly due to devaluation on
investment properties.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Decrease in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
mainly attributable to the operating losses from construction and
engineering projects and securities investment sector, fair value loss on
investment properties plus impairment loss on goodwill compensating by
gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries.

Loss attributable to minority interests

The share of minority shareholders on net losses of the CPT Group until
25th July 2008 and food and beverages sector as indicated in the Segment
Performance review explained the share of loss attributable to minority
interests for the year.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Investment properties

The reduction of carrying value of investment properties of 10.1% or
HK$112 million to year end balance of HK$1,005 million was basically due
to the drop in fair value of the properties in the amount of HK$99.6 million,
reflecting the downward adjustment in global property market value under
the world economy recession.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group acquired fixed assets of HK$48.3 million from the step-up
acquisition of interest in Igor’s Group, yet disposed of fixed assets of
HK$181 million in the CPT Disposal. Coupled with the impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of HK$19.1 million mainly from food and
beverages segment as mentioned in the Segment Performance review and
exchange realignment reduction of HK$36.0 million in the carrying value
brought forward from 31st March 2008, a decrease in property, plant and
equipment of 27.4% to year end balance of HK$558 million was resulted.

Goodwill

On 31st March 2009, the Group stepped up its interest in Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (“SEL”), the holding company of Igor’s Group,
from 49% to 100% pursuant to the previous share purchase agreement
dated 25th November 2006. Under the terms of the agreement, the
Group acquired the interest in SEL in two tranches with the purchase
consideration set as fixed multiples of adjusted earnings achieved by
the Igor’s Group during the years. Total consideration for the shares in
SEL amounted to HK$199 million resulting in an addition of goodwill
of HK$172 million to the existing goodwill of HK$84 million for Pacific
Coffee in the Group’s food and beverages segment. However, in view of
the severe market deterioration faced and future economic uncertainties,
impairment of goodwill arising from these business acquisitions for Pacific
Coffee and Igor’s Group in a total of HK$119 million plus impairment
of HK$10 million for goodwill for pipe rehabilitation business in Hong
Kong were made. Other than the above, the CPT Disposal and the CHK
Disposal also caused HK$50.0 million removal of goodwill. The mentioned
transactions briefly explained the movement in goodwill from HK$210
million last year to HK$203 million this year.

Interests in associates

In addition to the share of results of associates and dividends received from
associates, there were different components contributing to the movement
in interests in associates. Firstly, the step-up acquisition of SEL from
49% associate to a 100% subsidiary of the Company as mentioned above
reduced the interests in associates by HK$71.7 million. Secondly, as stated
in the Segment Performance review, the CPT Group has been accounted
for as a 25% associate of the Company after the date of the CPT Disposal,
increasing the interests in associates by HK$14.7 million. Thirdly, on 31st
March 2009, the completion of the acquisition of 20% interest in the lifts
and escalators plant of Toshiba Elevator and Building Systems Corporation
in Shanghai (“TCE”) pursuant to the same sale and purchase agreement of
the CHK Disposal also raised the interests in associates by HK$83.6 million.
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Interests in jointly controlled entities
Increase in the interests in jointly controlled entities of HK$119 million
to year end balance of HK$384 million was principally attributable to
the Group’s capital injection to its jointly controlled entity engaged in a
property development project in Hefei.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss (under non-current and
current assets)

As a result of the disposal of securities investments during the year and
the reduction of market value of the investment portfolio as at 31st March
2009, a decline of investments at fair value through profit or loss under both
non-current and current assets in aggregate of HK$702 million to year end
balance of HK$192 million was recorded.

Properties under development, other non-current assets and amounts
due from jointly controlled entities

An amount of HK$69.9 million incurred for relocation of existing residents
for the property redevelopment project in Changchun was recorded under
other non-current assets as at 31st March 2008. Such amount together with
the costs incurred this year totalling HK$236 million were re-designated
as properties under development as at 31st March 2009. The advance of
HK$125 million to a joint venture property development project in Hefei
included in other non-current assets as at 31st March 2008 was transferred
to amounts due from jointly controlled entities as at 31st March 2009 upon
establishment of the jointly controlled entity through capital injection this
fiscal year.

Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale
According to the sale and purchase agreement for the CHK Disposal, the
Group has committed to further dispose of 2% interest in the CHK Group
on or before 31st March 2010. Upon such further disposal, the CHK Group
will be de-consolidated and accounted for as an associate of the Group.
While 100% of assets and liabilities of the CHK Group as at 31st March
2009 were separately presented as assets and liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale (the “Disposal Presentation of the CHK Group”),
only 2% beneficial interest of the net assets of the CHK Group on the actual
date of disposal would be further disposed of by the Group.

Inventories and amounts due from customers for contract work
Inventories and amounts due from customers for contract work of
HK$80.4 million and HK$101 million respectively were disposed of in the
CPT Disposal. Further, the Disposal Presentation of the CHK Group also
caused separate presentation of assets of disposal group classified as held for
sale and hence reduction of inventories and amounts due from customers
for contract work by HK$52.0 million and HK$88.2 million respectively.
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Debtors, deposits and prepayments

The Disposal Presentation of the CHK Group attributed to the reduction of
HK$149 million in the balance as at 31st March 2009. The deconsolidation
of the CPT Group also caused reduction of HK$188 million from
debtors, deposits and prepayments. On the other hand, the receivables
on the remaining balances of considerations for the CPT Disposal and
the CHK Disposal amounting to HK$192 million were recorded. The
above significant changes led to the net decrease in debtors, deposits and
prepayments by 17.5% to HK$1,197 million.

Amounts due from associates

Increase in amounts due from associates was primarily attributable to the
shareholder advance of HK$79.0 million made to the CPT Group prior
to the CPT Disposal. Such amount was converted to amounts due from
associates upon the change of the CPT Group from subsidiary to associate.
HK$59.3 million of which shall be repayable not later than 30th September
2009 pursuant to the agreement of the CPT Disposal.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31st March 2009, bank balances and cash soared 45.4% to HK$1,732
million (2008: HK$1,191 million). Significant amount of proceeds received
from the CPT Disposal and the CHK Disposal as well as the realisation
of securities investments contributed to such increase. Part of the cash
received had been applied to repay the bank borrowings so as to lower
the finance costs during the year. At the balance sheet date, 72.5% (2008:
59.8%) of bank balances and cash was denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollars while 18.4% (2008: 22.0%) was denominated in Renminbi.

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

Other than movement arising from normal operations, there were
several major components in relation to the acquisitions and disposals of
businesses during the year contributing to the 25.2% net decrease in the
balance to HK$988 million as at 31st March 2009. Creditors, bills payable,
deposits and accruals of HK$27.1 million were acquired from the step-up
acquisition of SEL. Consideration payable for acquisition of interests in SEL
and TCE totalling HK$181 million also increased the balance. Nonetheless,
amounts of HK$295 million disposed of in the CPT Disposal and HK$104
million reclassified as held for sale under the Disposal Presentation of the
CHK Group reduced the balance of creditors, bills payable, deposits and
accruals.

Amounts due to customers for contract work

The substantial amount of project losses recognised in the construction and
engineering sector for the year led to a significant increase in amounts due
to customers for contract work with year end balance of HK$534 million.
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Bank borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)

Net repayment of bank borrowings of HK$441 million reduced the
balance by 19.7% to HK$1,794 million (2008: HK$2,235 million) as at
31st March 2009. 68.7%, 25.7% and 4.1% (2008: 74.1%, 11.2% and 9.4%)
of the balance were denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars, Renminbi
and Euro respectively. At the balance sheet date, maturity of the bank
borrowings in respect of the portion due within one year increased to
46.1% (2008: 32.4%).

Convertible bonds - liability and derivative components

In July 2006, the Group issued 2.125% convertible bonds with face value
of HK$450 million to be due on 28th July 2011, HK$50 million of which
was subsequently repurchased by the Group during the year ended 31st
March 2007. The holders of convertible bonds have the right to require
the Company to redeem the convertible bonds on 28th July 2009 (the
“Put Option Date”) at 113.1% of their principal amount together with the
accrued interest. On 26th June 2009, all the holders of convertible bonds
confirmed to exercise their put option rights on the Put Option Date. The
convertible bonds were reclassified from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities as at 31st March 2009. Subsequent to the redemption of all the
convertible bonds, no further finance costs in relation to the accrued
interests of the convertible bonds will be incurred.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$3,225 million (2008: HK$3,322
million), a decrease of HK$97 million or 2.9% when compared with 2008.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$136 million for the year offsetting by
payments of final dividend for last year and interim dividend for this year
totalling HK$96.1 million, exchange loss on translation of operations of
overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities of HK$55.5
million and fall in carrying value of available-for-sale investments of
HK$64.4 million.

At the balance sheet date, the decrease in bank borrowings helped improve
the total debt to equity ratio to 61.1% (2008: 69.5%), which was expressed
as a percentage of the total borrowings (representing the sum of bank
borrowings, other loans and liability component of convertible bonds) over
the Group’s total net assets of HK$3,606 million (2008: HK$3,767 million).
Substantial increase in bank balances and cash further led to a considerable
decline in the net debt to equity ratio to 11.8% (2008: 34.5%), which was
expressed as a percentage of the net borrowings (representing the total debt
net of the sum of bank balances and cash and structured deposits) over the
Group’s total net assets. The ratio of total debt to total assets of HK$8,114
million (2008: HK$8,589 million) also dropped from 30.5% last year to
27.2% as at 31st March 2009.
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BORROWINGS

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s total borrowings descended to
HK$2,205 million (2008: HK$2,618 million) because of the net repayment
made during the year. Cash and deposits at bank, including fixed and
structured deposits, increased to HK$1,777 million (2008: HK$1,318
million). Net borrowings (total borrowings after cash and deposits at bank)
thus were largely reduced to HK$428 million (2008: HK$1,300 million).
Most of the borrowings were carrying floating interest rates based on Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate with small portions based on various prime
rates. Included in the borrowings was also the liability component of the
convertible bonds.

Finance costs for the year were substantially cut down to HK$86.9 million
(2008: HK$126.0 million), represented a decrease of 31.0% as compared
with 2008.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group’s treasury activities are centralised in order to
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is generally
placed in short term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the
Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate level
of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND INTEREST RATES

As at 31st March 2009, the Group has arranged foreign currency swap
contracts amounting to HK$78.9 million (2008: HK$195 million) to hedge
the exchange rate exposure between various foreign currencies to other
cross currencies. The Group had outstanding interest rate swap contracts
which amounted to HK$1,256 million in total (2008: HK$1,027 million)
at the balance sheet date, enabling the Group to manage its interest rate
exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2009, bank borrowings of HK$405 million (2008: HK$
351 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were secured by charges
on investment properties of HK$351 million (2008: HK$420 million),
property, plant and equipment of HK$154 million (2008: HK$194 million),
prepaid lease payments of HK$152 million (2008: HK$149 million),
inventories of HK$46.3 million (2008: HK$107 million), properties for
sales of HK$62.7 million (2008: HK$92.1 million) and bank balances
of HK$138 million (2008: HK$6.3 million). For the above purpose,
other intangible assets of HK$11.3 million and debtors, deposits and
prepayments of HK$53.2 million were also pledged as at 31st March 2008.
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Due to divergence in opinion between the Group and the joint venture
partner over the operational management of a jointly controlled entity
undertaking a property development project in Shenzhen (the “SZJV”),
arbitrations and legal proceedings were commenced by the Group against
the joint venture partner and the SZJV. Investment properties with a total
carrying value of HK$72.0 million as at 31st March 2009 (2008: Nil) of the
Group were also pledged to a court of the PRC as security for its property
preservation measures under the legal proceedings. The management of
the Group is currently in the process of negotiation with the joint venture
partner with a view to reaching amicable settlement of the disputes and
hence, the release of the above-mentioned pledge.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Commitment of the Group as at 31st March 2009 amounted to HK$3,083
million (2008: HK$1,999 million). These commitments are to be financed
by internal funds and borrowings.

Details of the commitment are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial assistance
to, and guarantees given for banking facilities granted to, affiliated
companies as at 31st March 2009, which together in aggregate amounted
to HK$523 million as loans and HK$791 million as guarantees issued for
banking facilities granted. These amounts represented a percentage ratio
of approximately 16.43% as at 31st March 2009 and exceeded the relevant
percentage ratios of 8% under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In
accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an unaudited proforma
combined balance sheet of those affiliated companies with financial
assistance from the Group and the Group’s attributable interest in those
affiliated companies as at 31st March 2009 are presented below:

Non-current assets EREEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities R EE
Shareholders’ advances % &R
Total equity R

As at 31st March 2009, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees, amounted to
HK$629 million (2008: HK$369 million).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEBRREE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasing stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) came into effect on 1st January 2005. The CG Code sets
out two levels of corporate governance practices namely, mandatory
code provisions that a listed company must comply with or explain its
non-compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed company
is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-
compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory code
provisions of the CG Code except for the following non-compliance:

All the Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as
annual and interim results, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. Management
profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set out on pages 22
to 25.

The Board comprises 6 Executive Directors, 1 Non-Executive Director and
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full Board met five times
during the year under review. The attendance of Directors at the Board
Meetings and the Board Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

EZeR NIRRT EXEARRLEE
BREFENAGE  YTREHRHREF LIRS
BENEOMENRERNERERER -7
EREATEHEANEEHEEERTRKT
TERANPLEHNT A A BRENERER
UEEBEBREZSHETEBLEE SN
ExgTHRAIEENSEEARER -

EABATSAERARI([BRFT)ESELT
AN ETR R D8R+ O E (D2 E S
BRTADTEEEARTHNER-_ZEZRF—
B—B4Efk dEEATRFIAMER XN
EERTA BIE: @BISFRANESL — LA A
WEBST - BT R BE ST RIS XA 1B R B
fRlE: DEZRETE —SBLETARMNE
FEOZEERBMERNERL - BT TIEEH
BRI KRR BT REEARTAR®E
Il <7 AN ST
FrERITER B EMLE -

EEE
EEEeRARNARATEREIEHANENEET
EE - EESENE - BEmERskERH -
HNBEBMART REBRRNEERNZ A
AEITE - EF U AEB 2 BERKEIN A
M REEMFHAEEELEHRPK EZR
B WA ARG 2 EERKFE - BEFEN
BERTESHAREE HbPBEEFRPHE
BOBEARS EBEEREICHEE REHKREK
EHBE RAREEZZH  ARREEER
NENE2NEFE2H -
EEGHANBITES  —BIIERTEER=
BB IFNITESHER EERFARLETT
AReSH SESEEEREFNESTLED
AL EERNT

Meetings Attended/Held

/

il

BREEBIRY
Audit Remuneration

Directors Board Committee Committee
= E=ER EREES FHESS
Executive Directors
#iTEE
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 5/5 - -
E TS £ (FE)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang

(Vice Chairman and Managing Director) 5/5 - 1/1
BEBERE (B ZTEREFLLE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 5/5 - -
BEIRSE (BIEFREE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4/5 - 171
JE 4 1E 55 A&
Mr Ho Chung Leung 5/5 - -
fAIRR &
Mr Ho Sai Hou 5/5 - -

At e L
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Meetings Attended/Held

BREEBTRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
E=x E=ER EREES FHESS
Non-Executive Directors
FHITEE
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph® 4/5 2/2 1/1
[ERREE L
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George* 4/5 2/2 1/1
B ER L
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* 5/5 2/2 1/1
B EES
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William (appointed on 1st April 2009) - - -
SEEBB L (R-_FENFHA—HEZE)
*Independent Non-Executive Director
B IBITEE
The Board members have no financial, business, family or other GCRENEHETHEHFEEFEESERXFIN &F

relationships with each other save for the father-son relationship between
Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Company has
received annual confirmation of independence from the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all
the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when considering new director appointments. All candidates
must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the
Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the
year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following their
appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from office by
rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting since the last
re-election or appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director were considered and confirmed by full Board on 1st April 2008.

Appointment of Non-Executive Director and re-designation of Managing
Director were considered and confirmed at a Board Meeting of the
Company with the attendance by full Board on 26th March 2009.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. Dr Chow Yei Ching remained as Chairman and has ceased to
be the Managing Director of the Company with effect from 1st April 2009.
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang is currently the Managing Director of the Company.
The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director.
The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board
while the Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group’s
businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He is qualified accountant with
extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. Other members
include all other Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow
Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is
responsible for the appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s
financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control procedures and risk management frameworks. It
is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. Its terms of
reference are accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st March
2009. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any), the
interim results for the six months ended 30th September 2008 and last
year’s final results for the year ended 31st March 2008, and has reviewed
with Management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting
matters and risk management systems of the Group. The final results for the
year ended 31st March 2009 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in its
meeting held on 14th July 2009.

The Audit Committee of the Company regularly discusses with the
management the system of internal control to ensure an effective internal
control system albeit that amendment of the terms of reference of Audit
Committee became effective on st January 2009 with the Board approval
to include new responsibilities including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and financial reporting
function, and training programmes and budget.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10th March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman
of the committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Yang
Chuen Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing
and determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. Its terms of reference are accessible on the
Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31st
March 2009 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31st March 2009.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1991.
Members of the Executive Committee comprise 6 Executive Directors,
namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing,
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance control and
risk management functions. Subsequent to 1st January 2009, being the
effective date of the amended Listing Rules, the Board has considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Group’s system of internal control includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, and is designed
to help the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management. The Internal
Audit Department is also responsible for following up the implementation
of recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department without
reference to the Chairman of the Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009 on a
going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st March 2009 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 60 to 61.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2009, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

B % 14 &

SNES A% BB
BE_TTAF=A=+—ALMBEER
PR S E B R 2 KB R BRBE X
/R EREm ST -

Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers ZE R
— other auditors
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 1% B AR %5

— other auditors

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated different
charitable and voluntary organisations in various community activities
and taken care for the environment. During the year, our Building
Construction Department won three awards including “Green Contractor
Award — Gold Award”, “Considerate Contractors Site Award — Bronze
Award” and “Outstanding Environmental Management & Performance
Grand Award — Silver Award”. Our property management team has
received the award in “Source Separation of Domestic Waste 2007/08
Program” for the recognition in waste reduction. In addition, the Group
has supported a variety of charitable activities of the community such as
“The Community Chest Corporate Challenge” raising funds to support
“Children and Youth Services” under the Chest umbrella. Besides, the
Group has made a donation of HK$1 million for supporting the disaster
relief and reconstruction in Sichuan and made another donation of
HK$250,000 to HKU SPACE Fundraising Performance Premier of “De
Ling & Empress Ci Xi” for the Sowers Action for rebuilding schools in the
affected area in Sichuan.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other
information relating to the Group are disclosed on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.

Amount (HK$000)
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are shown on pages 152 to 160.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31st March 2009
analysed by business and geographical segments are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009 are set out
in the consolidated income statement. An interim dividend of HK$0.055
per share was paid on Monday, 12th January 2009. The Directors now
recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.200 per share and
special dividend of HK$0.200 per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 21st
September 2009 to Wednesday, 23rd September 2009, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the
proposed final and special dividends, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 18th September 2009.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31st March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$1,379,839,000 (2008: HK$771,745,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M BERERE
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year E ER AEBEZYE BERRENESHEH
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. RERE M REMF 15 -
BORROWINGS (EES

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at 31st March AEBE_ZTTNF=ZA=+—HZRITER
2009 are set out in notes 35 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements REMERZFHED RERERE T B mER M

respectively. 35 K364 ©

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW BB EE WS E R

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on REBEVBRERVEEBESHERE2E
pages 2 to 3 and on pages 37 to 46 respectively. E3HNFEITEE46H °

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS ITBEEFPRHEER

The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the Group’s FEAN AEBZARHEERLREREF 75
five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than 30%. HASEBERENMKNETR30%  AAREE
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to the F EBMBALNTARE(LESHANESE
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued BARRDBETRABIR%E ) EENESR
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five MNAABRERSIAEAEF B EMAER -

largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES EE:2Y/ES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March 2009 are AEERZZEZNF=A=T—HZETEYE

set out on pages 33 to 36. BERENEBEE3CH °

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES BERFMGIE

The Group employed approximately 4,700 full-time staff globally as at RZZEZNF=A=+—8" $’i .E/\’i\ﬁﬂﬁ

31st March 2009. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$819 B#44,7008 2 HE T - H 2 ENFE=A

million for the year ended 31st March 2009. The remuneration policies _"f— HIEtFE BI#EX Hj /]/t'j #8191

are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, o REE Z @M HEDLRERE 2 TEK

company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits E MEBE - RAEERENE T ZRERM

include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, = i,ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ ° Ef’@ B TR B ERIEE R

retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme. 4488 - BESE - BRAREFE LEEBRE
ETEIE

DONATIONS HBEB

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$3,753,000 to charitable FENR  NEERRTESHE ABE3,753,000

bodies. JC °

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BRAERE

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye- AN B 7 408 AE R GERE 2 G AR

laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws in BARRNB Z M EREZED - ;T I N £ 1

Bermuda where the Company is incorporated. H A AT PR 1) ©
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased its shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as follows:

BE HEFBELE LHES

REER  ARBRNEBLEBARZHERAE
(B 22 P 1) BB EIAS R RIA AR

Price per share

BRER

Number of shares of Aggregate

Month/Year HK$1.25 each repurchased Highest Lowest consideration

BEE R Kt

FEA#B HEB¥®125 THRE RS RAK Fr X+ 7R

HK$ HK$ HK$

ok ks ki

October 2008 1,018,000 4.81 4.39 4,721,880
—ZEENE+A

The repurchased shares were cancelled, and accordingly, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and
Managing Director)

Mr TAM Kwok Wing

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr HO Sai Hou

(Deputy Managing Director)

(appointed on 1st April 2008)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph”
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

(appointed on Ist April 2008)
(appointed on 1st April 2009)

*Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs
KUOK Hoi Sang, TAM Kwok Wing, Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph and Dr
KO Chan Gock, William shall retire from office at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. The Non-Executive Directors are subject to the same retirement
requirements as the Executive Directors.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

FriEm BN EEE - ARB 2B BITHRAD
A FE AL A48 0B B B () VT {E ©

B b XX ERSN - AR B SE B A F Y R
BE HEXBEARAZ EWES -

EE
FEARBEAREERHL2EEFESMOT:

HITES

BIEBEL (£E)

BEBELLE (BIZTEREFREE)
BEREE (FIEFHLE)

[E#EERE

A =RRIEE

Ittt SEE (R-FENFOAA—HEZF)
FHITES

[E B RE1E L

REFEL L

BERELE (R-ZFFENFOHA—AEZE)
2EESLT (R-FFENFHA—HEZET)

B ITEE

REARR] AR AREBL  FELER
£ EEKALE  ARRBLRRERE LA
KA AR 2 RRBEFAE EHER - HREBE
BE - BFATEFCEERRTHZRTES
HHE e



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs KUOK Hoi Sang, TAM Kwok Wing, CHOW
Vee Tsung, Oscar and HO Sai Hou are interested in certain contracts in that
they are the Directors and/or have beneficial interests in Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (“CPHL”).

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had
a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation, within
the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to S352 of the SFO or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interestsin the Company — Shares

REPOKRT OF THE PIRECTOKRS
EHGRESE

EERNENRZER

ANMEIE L S E%E  BEKLE A
E%E A SREEEEFAOPREEES
BRBSHELZTmBRARAR(HLZ
TDN2EFR/AEHER S

7 i N NS S R CI R =PI S
ARERIFEANTAER  IBEZITEAES
BREERERZAH -

EENHFURB 2R
FERN BEEFEAKENETABREFZ
X P B -

EERFETHABZE SRR

R-ZBZENF=_A=1t—H ARAEEKE
EITBRABRARBREMBB AR (EERE
FRHIBEEROI(TES KA DEXVE) 2
Betn - AR MESTABRACRIEES K
HIERPIEXVAF 7 RFSN NG ARE R
B RER (BRARRESREL
it 78 75 N E R ARG I SR D B AR R A 2 1
BqNER)  IBAVECHENRIEEZESFLAE
ROIE32EMEATFEZECMAZ B
KR - REFESTRIBNE ANRQ A KR
FrefmREamT :

(R) xaFAER-RH

Number of ordinary shares

EERROEE

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

EEEB =g B A RE 2 ARER ay EREN

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359* - 154,682,359 55.73
JE I 9D EREAA

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 — 98,216 0.04
A& EREAA

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
TS BEREAA

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 — 40,000 0.01
fa] SRR BEHEAA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares of the Company, * JE RN £ B & R A 154,682,359 % AR 2 A

representing approximately 55.73% of the issued share capital of the Company.
These shares were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.

7 (B ARR RN K955.73% © 2SR BT ER
[EERRzEFEE | P2 ROER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

BEENFTETHAEZESERZ @

(2) HBARAERE-RH

Number of ordinary shares

EERROEE
Approximate
Associated Personal Corporate Family percentage
Name of Directors corporation  Capacity interests interests interests Total of interest
EEER EHAR 54 BAEE AEER RIRER ag B
%
CHOW Yei Ching CPHL Interest of controlled - 128,582,933 - 128,582,933 59.66
corporation
= HtZd XEHLR
KUOK Hoi Sang CPHL  Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 111
BEE HTZT ExEBA
TAM Kwok Wing CPHL  Beneficial owner 400,000 - 10,400 410,400 0.19
EEE HITZT EH#EA
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar CPHL  Beneficial owner 17,412,000 - - 17,412,000 8.08
[A#IE HTZT ExEBA
* Dr CHOW Yei Ching had notified CPHL that under the SFO, he was deemed to * H TS & a5 154,682,359 RAN A AR (D + 154

be interested in 128,582,933 shares in CPHL which were all held by the Company
as Dr Chow beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares, representing approximately
55.73% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31st
March 2009, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to S352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CIHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002.
Another share option scheme of CPHL, the subsidiary of the Company (the
“CPHL Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CPHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002. The CIHL Scheme
and the CPHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme. There was no outstanding
option under the CTHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme at the beginning and
at the end of the year.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was
granted exemption from Mandatory Provident Fund regulations by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority and shall not open to new
members starting from Ist December 2000. Certain of the Company’s
overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local government’s central pension
plans for their employees.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as an alternative Mandatory Provident
Fund (the “MPF”) service provider for employees of the Group who join
the Group from 1st December 2000. The MPF is available to the employees
aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. The benefits are required by law to be preserved
until the retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$36.7
million against which the forfeited contributions amounting to HK$0.2
million have been deducted. There were forfeited contributions amounting
to HK$8,000 available at the year end date for the reduction of future
employer’s contributions.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

TERRZESEDS

As at 31st March 2009, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief S

executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO were as follows:

NF=A=1+—H REARAEEK

EBTERABMA  TIALIEAERARA]
P tn Sk ARBE ARt P B AR IBRE 5 B R
BIEXVERSE 2 K3 D B RR XA A R A HE -
KB HEN AN R BIRIEE 75 L HIE 1505 336

FREFzREMAZREREREMT

Number of
underlying
shares held
(under equity
derivatives of Approximate
Number of the Company) percentage
Substantial Shareholders Capacity shares held BFHEROBEE of interest
FERR &4 BRHE (ERARSTERS) ERBA
%
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359(L) - 55.73(L)
5l BEHERA
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359(L) - 55.73(L)
BEIEST E=A A (Note 1) (Hfat 1)
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of controlled - 26,993,989(L) 9.73(L)
__corporation 2,306,93\3(8) 0.83(S)
L PN £ (Note 2) (15t 2)
Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C. Interest of controlled - 23,992,101(L) 8.64(L)
__corporation 2,306,933(S) 0.83(S)
STHEHI A B 2 RS (Note 3) (#7:#3)
Goldman Sachs Group Holdings Interest of controlled - 23,992,101(L) 8.64(L)
(U.K.) __corporation 2,306,933(S) 0.83(S)
REGIAE 2 s (Note 3) (#7142 3)
Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) Interest of controlled - 23,992,101(L) 8.64(L)
__corporation 2,306,93\3(8) 0.83(S)
B IV £ (Note 3) (#1#£3)
Goldman Sachs International Beneficial owner - 23,992,101(L) 8.64(L)
BERBEAA 2,306,933(S) 0.83(S)
(Note 3) (f1:£3)
Goldman Sachs & Co Beneﬁﬁial owner 3,001,888(L) - 1.08(L)
EmBEAA
Notes: it
(1) Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is deemed to (1) BEEHFMPEEMNEXVIE AL ZEBEBSIIIE
be interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 shares held by Dr Chow. BF 2T WA REEZEH AR TRE Z154,682,359
ARAZ A ©
(2) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is taken to have an interest in the 3,001,888 shares held (2) Goldman Sachs & Co ¥ /A 3,001,888 i% i% 19 % Goldman
by Goldman Sachs & Co and the 21,685,168 shares that would be held by Goldman Sachs Sachs International & %57 F Goldman Sachs International
International upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds held by Goldman Sachs BB AR ES S EE AR21,685168 A% © The
International. The Convertible Bonds were issued by the Company to Goldman Sachs Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. #18 B8 ZE K H 2 #
International on 26th July 2006. Goldman Sachs & Co and Goldman Sachs International #He ARARZBEZRFLA - HRBBEITZAR
are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. [I% {& % T Goldman Sachs International © Goldman Sachs
& Co % Goldman Sachs International ¥ /& The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. )= E M B AR °
(3) Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C., Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman (3) Goldman Sachs International 5 & # & /& 7] # % &

Sachs Holdings (U.K.) are taken to be interested in the 21,685,168 shares that would be
held by Goldman Sachs International upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
Goldman Sachs International is 99% owned by Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) and
100% held by Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.

The letter “L” denotes a long position and the letter “S” denotes a short

position.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERRBEERZ®
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2009, so far as is known to the bR EXFIHEBEEIN  RARFRESRETETH
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has ABFTA RZBETAEF=A=1+—0 #E
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures EATE M A TR QR sk H A 485 R 72 %
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required % - 7FE B D M ESH EF‘ BEAREZESLPE
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of M BIEXVEE 2 REIDERARD R TE 2
Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the @R RARBNARRIREESMAE

Company under $336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested 1P ZE 336 R B 17 < io Bk N - SKE Bk
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying BEAETAEMNBEA AR ETAIBR T

rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company. VAN _7 ZRERE EREZRA)EE 5% 3K
JA b#Egm e

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR BERONES 2B

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and CPHL, BRANE RETZEEA BREREIN - R
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries AEETMERA - AR A E TR E R A
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to WESEEIMLZHE RARRERTFREEAR
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of NEIHEMAT 2RO KESFMES M= -
the Company or any other body corporate.

-1,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE EER

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of RKANREEFSHIMBESKEZLEERS
corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout the year H-EBHE2—_TEZENF=A=+—H JJ:;K% =T
ended 31st March 2009 with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of TREEIN » NAF E%firﬁa%%t o #8 A1) B
the Listing Rules, with exception of deviation. Detailed information on S+MMBcEXERTANRTE  BEAR
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate AR EREREFHNANFRFEWAES]
Governance Report contained on pages 47 to 51 of the Annual Report. BZhEEARREER -

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT REHOIRFRE

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and BRIBEARNBESZ ARER MIBEEESFT _%El
within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s share R-ZZTTNELA+0 B (BIAF R [
which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total EZEERNKRERAITAM)  2RAL
number of issued shares as at 15th July 2009, the latest practicable date to FriF B AR RAIR M BBARNR B EITRDEE
ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report. 25% °

AUDITOR D

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs N4RE B 75 #ﬁ %E HEERKESTMERTE
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves o BERXKBESHMEFEEEE IR
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the AERBERERFBETASEEST-
Company.

On behalf of the Board EEEGM

CHOW Yei Ching FE

Chairman =PI

Hong Kong, 15th July 2009 58 —ZEZNFLATHHE
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 160, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st March 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15th July 2009

5 7 ¥ R R

da
o

\ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁ B 7%
NEHREE QD T&E%.F
=T HONEBHRARES
Ma Al MIReRE :[E,HZ/ 5§
GOINE) I BE 48 E & R R B -

—
=
—m

3 o
ﬁ .
WJ:@MH%

Bl
S
mmﬁ’
\—§
Bl

I B | | s
N

i

BORKES TSR
L ES=4aT]
FB —ETNAFLHATEHA

HIBEREEARAT 61
=TT FER



INPEX TO THE CONSOLIPATEY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Income Statement
Al ER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Balance Sheet
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARREDE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN
N

RERMER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE MRS R BT

1 General information
—RE R

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
BEREABEME

3 Financial risk management objectives and policies
s E B IR B 1R M BUR

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
A9 & 5 b A R MR

5  Revenue
Yo 2

[ Other expenses, net
Hipsc - F5

7 Other gains, net
Hi st - F8R

8 Finance costs, net
MHER  FHE

9  Profit before taxation
B 35 A A

10 Income tax (credit)/expenses
P Bi (B %), /X i

11 Dividends
BB

12 Earnings per share
SREF

13  Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
RRBIPAER A AR

14 Investment properties
BEMZE

15 Property, plant and equipment
ME - BE &R

16 Prepaid lease payments
TR EERIE

17 Goodwill
kS

18  Other intangible assets
H\IPEE

19  Interests in subsidiaries
PGB 2~ B 2 e as

20 Interests in associates
Frib B & R B 2 e

21 Interests in jointly controlled entities
Bl Rl b 2 2

22 Available-for-sale investments
AftHEZRE

23 Investments at fair value through profit or loss
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24  Properties under development

BRTME
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CONSOLIPATED INCOME STATEMENT

A W i &

For the year ended 31st March 2009 BlZ —EZNF=A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENFE
Note HK$’000 _HK$’000
Ff 5 BET T BT T
Revenue Was 5 5,195,577 5,568,678
Cost of sales 8H & AX 2 (4,851,435) (4,885,395)
Gross profit E 7 344,142 683,283
Other expenses, net B - FE 6 (218,778) (101,450)
Other gains, net Hiblzs - i ] 7 428,386 422,382
Selling and distribution costs H B I 48R Ak AR (347,474) (386,864)
Administrative expenses THYE (128,961) (125,925)
Operating profit 4R A 77,315 491,426
Share of results of associates P Bt & A 5] 348 7,482 27,258
Share of results of jointly controlled entities P A 122 il 1 R 32 45 (11,356) 2,909
73,441 521,593
Finance income WA 8 16,996 16,420
Finance costs %5 E A 8 (86,881) (126,043)
Finance costs, net MEER F8 8 (69,885) (109,623)
Profit before taxation R B3 31 v ) 9 3,556 411,970
Income tax credit/(expenses) Frigfiile, () 10 4,144 (112,811)
Profit for the year RE Z i F 7,700 299,159
Attributable to: FE1G 75
Equity holders of the Company KAFIREZE A 135,634 230,747
Minority interests g Hx R (127,934) 68,412
7,700 299,159
Dividends % 2 11 126,292 125,362
Earnings per share isc 22 ) 5
— Basic (HKS per share) — BN (FREE) 12 0.49 0.83
— Diluted (HKS per share) —EE (R B ) 12 0.49 0.77
The notes on pages 70 to 160 are integral parts of these consolidated F0EZEI0E WM NI FHREHBRER L

financial statements.
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éO/YSOMPﬁTE? EALANCE SHEET
REREAMRE

As at 3lstMarch 2000 R—_EZNF=ZA=+—H

2009 2008
—BBhE -TT)\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
DES BT BT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties LEYE 14 1,004,810 1,117,445
Property, plant and equipment M - HWEREE 15 558,381 769,438
Prepaid lease payments TE T EFIE 16 435,197 446,018
Goodwill EES 17 202,591 210,330
Other intangible assets HMmp s E 18 151,679 161,044
Interests in associates TG B & A B Z #Ex 20 187,482 172,818
Interests in jointly controlled entities P LRI G ¥ 2 xS 21 383,508 264,745
Available-for-sale investments GIR:S Hi'l EZERE 22 243,728 293,224
Investments at fair value REBZEIREARE
through profit or loss B ZIRE 23 27,704 134,005
Deferred tax assets EIERRIBE 41 4,641 25,438
Properties under development BRPYZE 24 236,424 -
Other non-current assets HEmIERBEE 25 187,644 403,187
3,623,789 3,997,692
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 26 150,119 338,717
Properties for sale FEWE 27 197,431 258,945
Debtors, deposits EWIRSR - FF RS
and prepayments NEENNEOE] 28 1,196,915 1,450,026
Amounts due from associates JiE WA Bt 25 1N &) R 5K 20 101,582 19,273
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities R LT 3 [R) 4% ) 1 S R K 21 424,837 240,820
Amounts due from customers b=y r\/j TiEME W
for contract work B F K2 5K 29 116,753 312,422
Investments at fair value RIBEIRE AR TE
through profit or loss BREZRE 23 164,600 760,218
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEET A 30 5,893 9,460
Prepaid tax TR f)fé 18 15,297 9,866
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRE 31 1,731,606 1,191,145
4,105,033 4,590,892
Assets of disposal group classified PEREFEZ
as held for sale HEEENEE 32(a) 385,642 -
4,490,675 4,590,892
Current liabilities RBAE
Creditors, bills payable, FERTIRR - BN 5
deposits and accruals FALZS MTEIRER 33 988,004 1,321,692
Unearned insurance premiums S ﬁ /Hﬂ RpE
— due within one year A B HA 24,427 26,503
Outstanding insurance claims * /?% 1% e RE 34 167,158 215,572
Amounts due to associates i 1—JL Aﬁ NGILEN 20 89 5,926
Amounts due to customers MEHNTIERE
for contract work M) % )5 XA 2 7 29 534,181 260,681
Deferred income EEYA 25,509 24,484
Current income tax liabilities BHIFS B E 60,174 81,331
Derivative financial instruments PTAEBKI A 30 86,496 38,930
Bank borrowings HRITIE K 35 826,637 723,584
Other loans H b & 5% 36 - 315
Other payable Hfih B 37 - 7,760
Convertible bonds — liability component MR ES —a &S H 38 410,798 -
Convertible bonds — derivative component AMRES —ITETHE D 38 30,488 =
3,153,961 2,706,778

6 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIPATEY BALANCE SHEET
GRREARK

As at 31st March 2009 R—_ZEZEAF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —EENFE
Note HK$’000 _HK$’000
Ff 5 BETT BT T
Liabilities of disposal group classified PERBEFEZ
as held for sale HEEENERE 32(a) 200,200 =
3,354,161 2,706,778
Net current assets REEEFRE 1,136,514 1,884,114
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBRRBERS 4,760,303 5,881,806
Capital and reserves B K @
Share capital A7 39 346,955 348,228
Reserves 5 40 2,878,053 2,973,919
Equity attributable to RRFREREE A
equity holders of the Company JE 5 #E 2 3,225,008 3,322,147
Minority interests DHRR R 381,328 445,036
Total equity g 3,606,336 3,767,183
Non-current liabilities I REBEE
Unearned insurance premiums RomHA R B &

— due over one year —fBE—F 10,468 11,357
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBR R 41 176,198 206,231
Bank borrowings RITIE K 35 967,301 1,511,621
Other loans H &5 36 - 1,384
Convertible bonds — liability component AR E S — E_ 381 38 - 381,275
Convertible bonds — derivative component MR ES —TELTAE D 38 - 2,755

1,153,967 2,114,623
Total equity and non-current liabilities HWEZNERBERS 4,760,303 5,881,806

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009 and signed on its REFENR_TTZNFLATHBEBE I

behalf by: B NIEERRES
KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
gL B #IE

Director Director

EBEF EF

The notes on pages 70 to 160 are integral parts of these consolidated £70E 2160 B ZHE UL FREMBHHER 2
financial statements. HRERD ©
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EALANCE SHEET

BEA A&

As at 31st March 2009

66

R-BFENF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—ZZhE —ZE)N\F
Note HK$’000 _HK$°000
fi BET X ERTT
Non-current assets ERBEE .
Interests in subsidiaries BT B E NG Z B 19 1,294,926 1,485,525
Available-for-sale investments AHHE s RE 2 226,244 199,784
Other intangible assets HiE & E 599 599
1,521,769 1,685,908
Current assets TEEE . N
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUIR 2R i & MM FE 28 203,374 18,811
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Y8 2 Bl ik zk 19 2,619,824 2,223,157
Amounts due from associates F? ”g Hﬁf NI 20 85,409 13
Investments at fair value through profit or loss ﬁ@,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ]ﬁﬁﬁ/‘t BREZRE 23 53,179 503,721
Derivative financial instruments PTE E7T i% IA 30 5,821 8,381
Prepaid tax B 1,108 1,108
Bank balances and cash BOEFRRE 31 589,565 120,541
3,558,280 2,875,732
Current liabilities TE ﬁﬁi
Creditors, deposits and accruals FERIRTR - EA Tg e RIERER 33 14,317 7,322
Amounts due to subsidiaries /V?i GEINGLE 19 1,413,584 1,095,855
Derivative financial instruments DTS ;—L A 30 86,484 38,914
Other payable H i@ ,‘S'E\LTJL FA 37 - 7,760
Bank borrowings RITER \ 35 327,037 158,270
Convertible bonds - liability component G — % P N 38 462,146 -
Convertible bonds - derivative component HrREF-TETARS 38 34,300 -
2,337,868 1,308,121
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,220,412 1,567,611
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 2,742,181 3,253,519
Capital and reserves BRAR &
Share capital R 39 346,955 348,228
Reserves f#fE 40 1,799,226 1,220,258
Equity attributable to RAFBRERSEA
equity holders of the Company e (b 2,146,181 1,568,486
Non-current liabilities ¥* /‘ﬁ/*ij g E
Bank borrowings RITER . 35 596,000 1,253,000
Convertible bonds - liability component MR ES-aEHD 38 - 428,933
Convertible bonds — derivative component AREES-—TETIEISS 38 - 3,100
596,000 1,685,033
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEERERBERS 2,742,181 3,253,519
Approved by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009 and signed on its REFEN_TZ jl FHATHBE I
behalf by: EE T3 é%?@% :
KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
/L JE#EIE
Director erector
o =2
The notes on pages 70 to 160 are integral parts of these consolidated E708 2160 B 2T FRE M B mE 2

financial statements.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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CONSOLIPATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES (N EGUITY
NI T

For the year ended 31st March 2009 BlZ —EZNF=A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable to
equity holders of Minority
the Company interests Total
KATRE SHRE equity
BHEAEGER e BRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
At 1st April 2007 RZZZLEMA—H 2,993,321 322,196 3,315,517
Exchange difference on translation BWEFN W%
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, B DA H T“ %
associates and jointly controlled entities HEB E E ZNERBEE 180,824 4,803 185,627
Change in fair value of At HE 2 REM
available-for-sale investments NAhEE 36,344 - 36,344
Total income recognised directly in equity B EME BERZIAETE 217,168 4,803 221,971
Profit for the year FRET 230,747 68,412 299,159
Total recognised income FABHERLZ
and expenses for the year WARZ BT 447,915 73,215 521,130
Dividends paid Hﬂxm (128,148) = (128,148)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BERFOEBRE HX g - (7,886) (7,886)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y iE — R B A - 7,428 7,428
Placement of shares of a subsidiary RE—FAREA Ej 2
(note 40(b)) (M3 400b)) - 92,046 92,046
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary R—REME ARz EENEE
(note 40(b)) (Fff 5 40(b)) 13,566 (13,566) -
Acquisition of additional interests HENEN R
in subsidiaries (note 40(c)) 1 2= (HTEE 40(c)) (2,330) (30,574) (32,904)
Premium on acquisition of further EREWBAR 2 Ex
interests in subsidiaries (note 40(d)) /)@ {8 (B 7E40(d)) (2,177) 2,177 -
At 31st March 2008 RZEENF=A=1—H 3,322,147 445,036 3,767,183
Exchange difference on translation BEGING B E
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, YN H T“ %
associates and jointly controlled entities M) % fﬁz Fﬁ F E ZINE R EE (55,538) 4,179 (51,359)
Change in fair value of AftneE Z REH
available-for-sale investments NRLEE (64,409) 55 (64,354)
Fair value adjustments upon step-up R DR R
acquisition of interest in an associate NAEFE 908 - 908
Total (expense)/income recognised directly BERNERER
in equity (i) WABEE (119,039) 4,234 (114,805)
Profit/(loss) for the year ﬁﬁiﬁ?’i M,/ (E#8) 135,634 (127,934) 7,700
Total recognised income FHNERER
and expenses for the year WA R i i % 16,595 (123,700) (107,105)
Dividends paid EARE £ (96,055) - (96,055)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ENTOEBRERE - (20,745) (20,745)
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder —ZVERELE - 3,616 3,616
Repurchase of shares (note 39) HED I ERD) (4,738) - (4,738)
Acquisition of additional interests EREMERARZ
in subsidiaries (note 40(c)) 1 22 (P FE40(c)) 775 (18,393) (17,618)
Disposal of 75% interest in CPT Group HECPTEE 2 75% xR (13,716) 55,657 41,941
Disposal of 49% interest in CHK Group HEHETABEE 2 49% s
(note 32(b)) (Fff 3£ 32(b)) - 39,857 39,857
At 31st March 2009 “ZTAE=A=1+—H 3,225,008 381,328 3,606,336

The notes on pages 70 to 160 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIPATED CASH FLow STATEMENT

"'Zl‘ (&) Iﬂ% ILE

For the year ended 31st March 2009 #Z =T F

NE=A=+—BIFE

2009 2008
—g2hE —TT)\&
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B i BMTR A%t
Cash generated from operating activities REXBEEZRE 52(a) 709,033 595,457
Interest paid B FE (69,227) (99,191)
Profits tax and the mainland China BB S R
income tax paid MR B ) 3B P 1S AR (61,848) (66,286)
Profits tax refund S HL R K 6,394 7,507
Net cash inflow from RELEXEB RS
operating activities A FEE 584,352 437,487
Investing activities REXH
Interest received 2 U F B 16,996 16,420
Dividends received from associates R A= N I ) s 3,250 4,750
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME HWELREE (71,837) (112,231)
Purchase of a investment property BEREME - (7,799)
Deposits repaid from/(paid for) EEER(XZR)
property development projects R B A 3 1) 25
in the mainland China BHREB A& 29,471 (372,534)
Purchase of other intangible assets BB\ E A (5,933) (3,780)
Dividends received from listed securities RS2 B A 4,259 11,079
Net cash outflow from step-up R B 18 i — [ A A A
acquisition of interest F 5| B2 38 &% it i
in an associate ZHERE 52(b) (4,316) -
Net cash inflow from acquisition PR B U i — [ B E NG
of a subsidiary FralBizBemA - 8,587
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BER&E
property, plant and equipment and RIENHEERIE
prepaid lease payments Z FT1S 5038 12,453 32,110
Proceeds from disposal of HEREY %
investment property Fﬁ ?% FIE - 3,807
Proceeds from disposal of HE A Tﬁﬂﬁ/ BE
other intangible assets Fr {5 5038 - 929
Proceeds from disposal of & P S ﬁ\
— 75% interest in CPT Group —CPT&HE Z 75% HE 7 52(c) 190,792 =
—49% interest in —HIHFAE
CHK Group 2 49% 1 2w 449,574 =
Payments to acquire additional W S B B8 A B RE AN =
interest in subsidiaries ZAF R (17,618) (32,904)
Investments in associates LEBE AT (21,479) (9,621)
Net advances to associates [\ Bt R B PTE 2 F B3R (882) (1,933)
Investment in jointly controlled entities REH RGP E (182,648) -
Net (advances to)/receipts from ) 2 [R)428 1l 1 3
jointly controlled entities (FTEZ FER),/
Yo HR 2 % R IR (52,974) 44,992
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BAHDBEZERE (33,170) (74,736)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) REBEXEKZ
from investing activities BEFARACRE) BEE 315,938 (492,864)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) MELKA2BEE
before financing activities TSGR =5 900,290 (55,377)

6 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009




CONSOLIPATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March 2009 £\

GRISRER
E_TTAF=A=+-—BILFE

2009 2008
—gBAE —TTN\F
Note K000 HKS000
B i BMTR A%t
Financing activities e
Dividends paid BT E (96,055) (128,148)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ENLEBREZKE (20,745) (7,886)
Drawn down of bank and other loans RERITEREE ﬁﬁ & ?ﬂ( 2,162,797 3,206,039
Repayment of bank and other loans 15 e SRITE R K E M ERR (2,378,337) (2,683,686)
(Decrease)/increase in pledged deposits \ ), 1B E K (131,363) 17,228
Proceeds from placement of shares EE% FRE AR
in a subsidiary i 17 BT 15 718 - 92,046
Capital contribution by a minority — B LERE ﬁ &
shareholder 3,616 =
Repurchase of shares E=AE g (4,738) =
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from DS E MEXK RS
financing activities (RHE),/ RAZE (464,825) 495,593
Increase in cash and cash equivalents BHEeRREEEYWE M 435,465 440,216
Cash and cash equivalents REAZEER
at beginning of the year REZLEY 1,182,197 697,081
Effect of changes in EXEFH2ZE
foreign exchange rates (24,624) 44,900
Cash and cash equivalents REAXAZEER
at end of the year REEEY 1,593,038 1,182,197
Analysis of balances of cash and RERAESEEBYIM
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRE 31 1,731,606 1,191,145
Bank overdrafts RITHEZ 35 (928) (2,671)
Pledged deposits B FER (137,640) (6,277)
1,593,038 1,182,197
The notes on pages 70 to 160 are integral parts of these consolidated £ 70;5\ 2160 B 2 M I SR A IEREKRZ
financial statements. HRE D
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G5 & B 05 R I RE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a public listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial
Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively.
The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 53 to the

consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative component for convertible bonds.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKERS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Amendments effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on

1st April 2008

— HKAS 39 Amendment, “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” and HKFRS 7 Amendment, “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” (effective from 1st July 2008). HKAS 39
Amendment permits reclassification of certain financial assets out
of the held for trading and available-for-sale categories if specified
conditions are met. HKFRS 7 Amendments introduces disclosure
requirements with respect to financial assets reclassified out
of the held for trading and available-for-sale categories. These
amendments do not have any impact to the Group, as the Group
has not reclassified any financial assets.

7 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERSHBEHE®

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued) (a) wABMERE

New/revised standards, amendments and interpretations that are RBE-ZEZENF=ZA=+—HLFE

not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 2‘2 g ERZHET KRBT ER - BT K

— HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” — BB ERF15(KIEE]) [ 5
(effective from 1st January 2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires mMERZEHRARN] (BZEEhE—HA
all owner changes in equity to be presented in a statement of —HEER) - BAEEFERE 15
changes in equity. All comprehensive income is presented in B ERBE2HMEEEZEZED)
one statement of comprehensive income or in two statements NIEREHRATIUNER - FEES
(a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive WABE—MiRe Wam kI mmmEk
income). It requires presenting a statement of financial position A(—mBr W mR N —ga RAR)
as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period in a TLAEH o IBIERI R EEETEN
complete set of financial statements when there are retrospective AENEMHDEAER  BEE—HR
adjustments or reclassification adjustments. However, it does not BEZUHERBAREARSG 2 TP BRE
change the recognition, measurement or disclosure of specific NERIIEARN o A > HLIBEE] I
transactions and other events required by other HKFRSs. The N U e B B TS R 2E A PR
Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1st April 2009. HETHEER S HEMEIE 7 ER -

HERRE AREBE - ETEAE

— HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs” (effective from 1st — BB ERFE 23R (LIEET)—[1E
January 2009). The amendment requires an entity to capitalise ARA] (BTN FE—H—BHEE
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, ) o WLIBIERT Bk UE - B
construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a NEE—HAEREEBRFERK
substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of HEEEUANEERNEHEZEE)E
the cost of that asset. The option of immediately expensing those BN 2 BRKANEEREIE - 1F
borrowing costs will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS BREEER —I D 2HA - FER
23 (Revised) from 1st April 2009. The amendment will have no AR R A B B 2 & 2 & w il
material impact on the Group’s accounting policies as the Group’s BroAEBBHEE_ZTTNFNHA—AH
existing accounting policy on borrowing costs complies with the RIEMB AT ERF 2358 (KIBET) °
amended requirements. P 7N 4 B 3R e 3 18 SRR AN 2 2 5T I

RITAERI 1R 2 2R BULEEFT T
SHAKE SRR EKNEATE -

— HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial — BB ERFE 275 (KEST) —[ 4
Statements” (effective from Ist July 2009). The amendment ERBYBEGRKR] (R_ZEENF+
requires non-controlling interests (i.e. minority interests) to be A—BHRER) - LB E T IEE
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position HliE s (B DB IR R ) R 4R & B 75
within equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the MARKFPEEANTUEHR  BEQ
parent. Total comprehensive income must be attributed to the AERE RS FEWARRE
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even VRREBRAIERE KIEEGIER D
if this results in the non-controlling interests to have a deficit 1l BN fR 1t 5] B3R HI 4 25 1 2R R
balance. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary T SRR RWB AR 2 AR
that do not result in the loss of control are accounted for within BERHIBE AR ARG E EH)E
equity. When control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and RIEZAAR - BERENBAR &
liabilities and related equity components of the former subsidiary B RIMBARIZEERABGEN
are derecognised. Any gain or loss is recognised in income MA@z RO EIEER - s
statement. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary is B RN W e R R o (A (R B8 7E Bl
measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. The B AR Z IR ERERNKEEHES
Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1st April 2010. BHZARBEFE - ASEBEE-F—

TENA-HBRRMNEBSHELE
275k (RIERT) -
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretations that are
not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 (continued)

— HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments, “Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation” (effective
from 1st January 2009). The amendment requires some puttable
financial instruments and some financial instruments that impose
on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata
share of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation to be
classified as equity. The Group will apply HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments from Ist April 2009, but they are not expected to
have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

— HKFRS 2 Amendment, “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” (effective from 1st January 2009).
The amendment clarifies the definition of "vesting conditions"
and specifies the accounting treatment of "cancellations" by the
counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement. Vesting
conditions are service conditions (which require a counterparty
to complete a specified period of service) and performance
conditions (which require a specified period of service and
specified performance targets to be met) only. All "non-vesting
conditions" and vesting conditions that are market conditions
shall be taken into account when estimating the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. All cancellations are accounted for as
an acceleration of vesting and the amount that would otherwise
have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting period
is recognised immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
Amendment from Ist April 2009, but it is not expected to have
any impact on the Group's financial statements.

— HKEFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combination”, (effective for
business combinations with acquisition date on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after Ist July 2009). The amendment may bring more transactions
into acquisition accounting as combinations by contract alone
and combinations of mutual entities are brought into the scope of
the standard and the definition of a business has been amended
slightly. It now states that the elements are “capable of being
conducted” rather than “are conducted and managed”. It requires
considerations (including contingent consideration), each
identifiable asset and liability to be measured at its acquisition-
date fair value, except leases and insurance contracts, reacquired
right, indemnification assets as well as some assets and liabilities
required to be measured in accordance with other HKFRSs. They
are income taxes, employee benefits, share-based payment and
non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree is measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. The Group will apply HKFRS
3 (Revised) from 1st April 2010.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

BEAESTTHEME @
RBLER ()

fﬁ%Aﬁﬁw E325 BB
FIRBITA-[EBREEY
FIE&;EMQ TTA
Hiiﬂ)tﬁ{ﬁﬁi1
B TARE $@%Iﬁﬁ

o

N

A

~

| Bz

ﬁemm
o I

N

atd
| Em | &

m

Ij 2
S
i
)tﬂi
g DF
’:/H\—/f
Tft 2
B2
I
st
T
[y
=
S B 2

Y
%
=
;éﬁ
P
I
hiiYs
R
m
pui
P

] AFI0E
i

i
° 191 I

BE_TThEIA

e o
=i
A
F I

HEER 4K
iR

I AN

%LTK%

BB FE2RIEFT A [ AR
DAERNRZEB RS REHE] (R
ZETNF R —BABEM) c %lE
FIEAEREEEE] cERWFIRAS—
73 DARR ) R BB 2 N R e FE 1T 5 85
e RE - FBIGHERS R
%W?ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ&HﬁZHﬁﬁﬂmﬁu\&’E*
PR E RIS B R R I E RIBIEE 2
R GM - %ﬁﬁ&k$IAZ@f
BRE AMANIS [IERE REE] K&
G- AR HYAEERE S
B mRARRER T B HARER
BEBIR FERR o ANEE R

MA—RREREEMB
2 SR(ERTAR) - HETEHRZ
Bl S E Rk T A

ér:éjr
W
D‘—“'i
p
_%_
KT
- W
o
e
i
Hm)
-

-wmw
Nw\m

T s g

S

B o i | |
S

i

2

B

=)

R

s

5
Bt
It UH;
ﬁ

H
Hi

o
]

F"Wﬁh@ﬂ
_mm}

7

a

NLING

e
2
A 3

=

o¥
‘>¢_
— S
H.
R
ol
—

\
—

/\-k
o
1
HY
BN o TEH

i
=
=
B
m

N

)
N
e
e
o)

M 3k S
[
AN
5

k(N e

I

SN

op
H‘T’-H:H 0

gprem

O

B | O)

—
Koy 4

&
m o SH 1 10

i 0D
=4

w8 0>
Mt
o 2
\R i} e B SR Y e

FEEwe
o i3
P
i 48 N
/,@

anp

[\Yay

W

= 0 3 XA
o T M Lo
i

[

;Ef
}K
2
)
He

iy
—

=
s
R
23
it
L
T

:>‘€>‘Z>E'ik>k?i#+tr\>k%n‘°ﬁhﬂ§ﬁm
i)
| —+
S

W 2
RN Sl R R o

“m
K
I
i
>
pil

b @y

pur

\;
/!

o
i
EJ -
e
0
s
jan PRt
gt

N ~ b ——
& 3 m
5%

j

72 o o

~
.
i Dk
\
’

el

i3

=
S

T
=

i o
iy
S3d
o

—
m
>m

el TR N

DR - 2

| RS S
hay

4\7
= -

R
ST ING

S R - 2

RN o B

BHRBI D
m
&

245

g //>\Z\

I S DI 8 555
A2

i#mﬁﬁi?ﬁ?»%:@ﬁ?
)
B RS NI

SN

T

e
Elpalsiy

SRS
2 A 28
i
5 oA
A iR
#57) -

E/\\LLM
N T T

L
T

i
N
Ji

il !
T >k
s

50

]

( 4

A

I3 N\ 55 FY ik 2 B i

i)

¢ I 2| ooy e O 8] b I =2 3
Jn
|

W%WDD%:H{HF?

o
TfF 4)
W
%}nr

4



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERSHBEHE®
POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued) (a) wABMERE
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretations that are RBE-ZEZENF=ZA=+—HLFE
not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 (continued) ied g 4 ’;)tf( ZHERRIETTEL S BT R
RE(E
— HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective from 1st January — BBV KRELELESHE—[KLEHHE]
2009). HKERS 8 replaces HKAS 14. The new standard requires (BZZEZNF—H—BEER) - B
a ‘management approach’, under which segment information is B mEERFEIRMRE BT
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting ERIFE 1458 o WLIBFEREREKAIE
purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st April BEE] Bl &R AL R E A EL
2009. The expected impact is still being assessed in detail by MEMKABZEREERZR - AE
management, but the manner in which the segments are reported BE-—ZTZENENA —HRRERNEE
is not expected to change significantly. B e S LR B85t - BIREIR R
AT ER 2 TEEEE - RE
SEAAERPIEXINEATE -
— HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes” (effective — EB (B EREREZE®) -2
from 1st July 2008). HK(IRFIC)-Int 13 clarifies that where goods BEH-[LAAERTE] (B=2Z
or services are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive (for ZENFELA—BRER - BB (HE
example, loyalty points or free products), the arrangement is a HREREZES) -REFI13R
multiple-element arrangement and the consideration receivable BT iHESERSRSEBEE —BR
from the customer is allocated between the components of the PR E REN T2 (0 a0 B E o &
arrangement using fair values. The interpretation has no material iR MEL IBEELHEBRZ
impact on the Group’s accounting policies as the Group’s existing HHEHARH  BREFP ZREEA
accounting policy complies with the requirements. MBAAREEZEHEHEE ZHEEHD
PHE - ARAEEREB 2 G5t HE
REBFRZER  HERBHAE
ErestRET|EALE o
Apart from the above, a number of improvements and minor M biiEI s MAEREBEBEEStEHAS®
amendments to HKFRSs have also been issued by the HKICPA but KEEMZBE BB REER 2R
they are not yet effective for the accounting period ended 31st March REE]  ERE8E_TTNLF=H
2009 and have not been adopted in these consolidated financial —f+t—HItEe:tEEEALEN BEE
statements. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REEEETBERERER ~ASEBIE
the impact of these improvements and minor amendments would be G E B RS EIE 5 X AT
in the period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state 2R ME R BE TR E It R E) K B
whether these improvements and minor amendments would have a MRS AEE 2 EEXERUT
significant impact on the Group's results of operation and financial R HIRE REE) -
position.
Basis of consolidation (b) #HREWRBER
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial GETEHRERBIEAR B RENE A G
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st R=A=T—RAzZWB@mE -
March.
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over WEB ARy IEAEE A REEZEHEIBKE K
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating EERENTCE(BESEIEMNERE) A
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one —RBEEEFLEN L REREZIE - R
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting AR EBERITE S —ER @F
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered BRI ATk A ER BT ERE 2
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. FERTE-
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control MBAREEHHEEREALEE Z2HE
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date HERE AR - B AR EEFIERIEZ
that control ceases. HifF L4RE AR ©
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the

consolidated income statement.

When a business combination involves more than one exchange
transaction, the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities may be different at the date
of each exchange transaction. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities must then be recognised by the
acquirer at their fair values at the acquisition date, any adjustment to
those fair values relating to previously held interests of the acquirer
is a revaluation and shall be accounted for as such.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation. All unrealised gains/losses are

eliminated.

Minority interests in the net assets are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess
of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
minority interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals
of minority interests are also recorded in equity. For disposals to
minority interests, differences between any proceeds received and the
relevant share of minority interests are also recorded in equity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERSHBEHE®

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions () WEmE ?ﬁ' =

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate s B B B8~ &) - Bt 2 R A sk 2L R 2 Al 1B
or a jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the cost ¥EEZH %% Th¥8 Ui B B 7R B HH AN &=
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the R RGN B LR BERQ
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant ek EEIEEEAEBBEE BE
subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of &i% BEALBERER ZEE  WIEK
acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment AR 2518 E R SR -

losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented WERNB AT MELE ZEEIRNES
separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Goodwill arising on an BEBBRIAZEY RHWEKS A
acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity is included S HEFERHCENEEAZBENIAR
in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate or jointly B E AR EREIEHI N E 2 KREKAK o
controlled entity.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually BUMAZHEeGFNETRBLRNY
or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might 2 7] Bk H IR R (B B B S8 2 o 2 17 R (B R
be impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly & o UK HE B 2 R B Mo 2k R I 1 S PTE
controlled entities is included in investments in respective associates A7 EEET AR L D F) &R
and jointly controlled entities and is tested for impairment as part TEZEE UWREBEHREBREZ — 0D
of the overall balance. For the purposes of impairment testing, ETRERR - SR EARmE - W
separately recognised goodwill arising from an acquisition is FESX 2 BIYERAZEENRESESE
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or A RERNNERRNEZSEEES
groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of ErBNIReEEBLMER - B
the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested BUORSELBUSETFREATRE
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that TNREN IR RERETRERNR -
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition TREEVEEEZWBIEEANEE
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated ms BERBEZREELEEMNRZ
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. MBERETEAETRENR BEH S
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying EABEMN A YR 55 D RZEM R
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the EE - BB EIE 8 2t o B UA 8l R
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then D EEEZEMN 2 ENREE A
to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill BHIRZEAAEMEE - B8 2 Ef[
is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An BEBBEDEERNGEWNERER -
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 2 REBEREZBARAS TED -

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly HERHENB AR - B2 QA sk EEE
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised AR Bt AEENMEEENEN
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on SR UBELREZER -

disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, U BE BT /B A |) ~ B & A A 5k £ 745
an associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of TEMEEZWETZE - DERKES
the net fair value of an acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and ZAHREE BERKABEZAR
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is FEBHERE KNS 2 Z5 o WEH
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement. ZAIENEES R KRPER -

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of B U EE R s A B fE AT DA A) SE b RT %
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be - 25 ABELEREBEER - ;
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair WHEER ZAARBERAALEEER
value at the date of acquisition. R o

HAEBREEFRAR
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G5B M ORI B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(d) Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of
changes in equity of the associates, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

(e) Joint ventures
Jointly controlled assets

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets,
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements and classified according to
their natures. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of
interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual

basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a Group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity, except to
the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is

recognised.

7 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 M R I gk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance
sheet when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
income statement.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
each category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)
(i)  Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors,
amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income statement
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 M R I gk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the income statement in the period in which they
arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, creditors, amounts due to associates and bills
payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values
of such derivatives are recognised directly in the income
statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as held
for trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contracts, and the combined contracts are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances,
derivatives embedded are not separated and are accounted
for together with the host contracts in accordance with
appropriate standards. Where the Group needs to separate an
embedded derivative but is unable to measure the embedded
derivative, the entire combined contracts are treated as held for
trading.

Convertible bonds

The Group’s convertible bonds issued with embedded
derivative features is split into liability and derivative
components. The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is the residual amount after separating the
embedded derivative. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The derivative component is remeasured at each
balance sheet date and any gains or losses arising from change
in the fair value are recognised in the income statement.

BEAESTTHEME @

B TEE
(i) MBRERRIEL (E)
BAEETEARTHEEBEERR

(iii)

(iv)

s (RMBREMBRE) ZEMRNE
e AEEZHMBREDBSNE
RIRBRAARBERBEZHBEBERE
B AE - M5B E R
@ TAMRMAZ SRR T

RiB k&
RESIREREALEREZUBEE
TRIIRERETFHIER S 2 B
@f °b_/\_§//\ﬁ€wu1§/zt 1rD§v—
B RERKREBAAERE 2 TB
BERARBEEHNNAE HORE
DEEEREERA 2 KPR

7
o

]‘

R % E &
HMWWEEa%ﬁ N H fth 5
K EAIRFR - BT %QEWJE?X
RENER %é%%;@ﬂﬁ%
REBIER ARG HE o

BAERTA
AR AVEIT 2 AR T ARATIR
B2 R E R BEITRARALR °

TETA -~
RNEBUAPTEM G T AL AR
2 HEE R &R =R b o ux—rmi
Eﬁﬁﬁl/ﬁci/j?ﬁﬁﬁﬁu-l'i ZET
EMBIAZAR g nEER
J‘Iy i%q:ﬁgu/u"

iz NEPTE T A 2 &1 M
REIANTETIEE  ma bt
AN A IR RIAERBRIKREE
B ERETAEME X RONZHT

N\ﬂ]];\

S TEHHEEBFEOIBERERAS
BIEEERGE EEMBRT BT
BATETAETEsHER  WRIE
BAERER AL K- &
$%E%£ﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁmil
BEBREBZTER  B2HAHA
BHWERFBIEEERE -

LIE .y E

AEEBTARENETARHZ
ABEESFDID SBERITETA
MERty - BEEMD Z B IREETD
RWBRAENMET G 26888 8
i%ﬁ&éua%ﬂ+£&5%%

RAHE o T4 TABHIRER
HEEHHE TEALERDR

Bt 7 Wi SRS R s Ao

HIBREEAFRAR]
—TTNFER

AAEBEZYBERIE

79



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Investment properties
Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property
is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as part
of the other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
statement.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHSER@®
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (h Y BERREE
(i)  Properties (i) Y=x
Hotel properties, cold storage warehouses and other BIEME - REER REMFIER
properties held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated BRI AR R T E MORE
depreciation and impairment losses. BRIk -
Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a BFDEKANEAESRERAGE
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 £3205F B 504F B i A F HA gk A £
years or the remaining terms of the respective leases, whichever TeBEEEEFH(MEREE)L
is the shorter after considering the residual value. ZREFIHRE TE BEHIRITE -
(ii)  Plant and equipment Gi) BERRE
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated BB K 3R s TO AR PX ANEUR A REHIT
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided ENRFBEBIEYIR - BE k&
to write off the cost of the plant and equipment over their B2 EDZKAERE ZREEM
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking into ST FEISREE  REGFERFH
account their estimated residual value at the following rates ETHRABZETFTIR
per annum:
Annual charge
FHE
Pipe rehabilitation equipment BBEERE 16.67%
Others HAt 10% — 33.33%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected 7 Eﬂ & i%j-ir B EENRBERRAS
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. HEtiethE - AEEEGHEEEMER -
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 1‘;%3&2&@@%5@/ st AR E £ 58 -
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 2 BN 1§ & A 2 R T B MO 2= B AT e
estimated recoverable amount. T
The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is HESHREEEE WA EIE AR E i3
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and HAEENEMSREZEZEEE W
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income W as 2R NFER
statement.
Prepaid lease payments i) HENEER

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premiums paid for land
cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement
over the term of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis. The
amortisation during the period before the commencement and
after the completion of the construction of the properties (except
for investment properties) is expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

i‘ﬁﬁfrﬂ‘éﬁklﬁ\%ﬂ_’\iiﬂﬁﬁﬁziﬂﬂg°iﬁ
738 & SR AH R 1 3 M & B DL 5 AR
ER W E R AR - RWE(REWER
SN 522 5 7 4R A K% SE K 1R B TR 2 S X A
BlERIIZ -

HEEREMARAA
—TTNFFR
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(k)

M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted average
method. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business less applicable
selling expenses.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out during
the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet, as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet
under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability
in the balance sheet.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Unearned insurance premiums

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portion
of the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the balance sheet date and are deferred to subsequent
accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed on the basis
of net premiums written for all classes of insurance. Net premium
written represents gross premiums received or receivable after
deducting reinsurance premiums.

Insurance claim

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the balance sheet date and an estimate of claims
incurred but not reported which is calculated with reference to
foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured with reference to the value of work carried
out during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived
at after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are
accounted for as deferred income.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)
Premiums for direct insurance business and reinsurance are
recognised as income over the terms of insurance policy period.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset's
net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

(q) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as an obligation
under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement, unless
they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs as
stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 M R I gk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHSER@®
POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs (r) EEEA
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction EA J—l& B REREERARTENEEN
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the EREA  EERNAEZEEEMNKAK
cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases — D WBERKXABNEE AN L
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or B F A SR mE IEEARL o &
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of AMANERENEEMNSGZERELR
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is mARAREERERIEREEIRE MR
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. BZEEWA - TIR A tE& AN b Z & 3K
PN AR IR o
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in HEMmERKA  ITRERABAEBFRKZ
the period in which they are incurred. REPFEDR o
Foreign currencies (s) Fhis
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group RRESEREBCEZ W ERERE
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency RN ELNNEE T AN 2 B (SN i
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional TZRXSHU RSBz ERAERBE
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment RNEEE(AIZEELEMETELE
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on HE B8R - RNEEER - AINE
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary FTEEEEEELREER 2 ERAE
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates RME AR EUINETEZIEER
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at MEEDRRAAEEEE AZERE
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at RME BT ARGTENINEEEZ
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. FEWHEBHEAKRE -

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, REARMEERIEREREL ZER
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the ZBEORELEHET A 45§ A AR
income statement in the period in which they arise, except for AN B g N E RS 2 I B F R /\Zm
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part VIR B PTE & 2 B %gﬁ Kff\\ N 2 E
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, which are PE R =B RERE B E?\:z g AR
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements. s DRAEEEZ 3'5 ERMEEKE
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary S E B B N 2 BN 5
items carried at fair value are included in the income statement for A=K EREFEKRENEERE
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non- ERTANERZIEEEMEIRE TEED
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised EHEZRRI MABRANEREZE
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that HEmEEEERAER -

gain or loss are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, MEINGEYEHREMS  AEE 28
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are INEBZEENBBIERNEER 2@
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the FEXHELAEE 2HREE  mHE
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their WARST BT RZFEZ FHYERETT
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates HME - BRIEE RN Z M A LR KEK
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during o AALBRAT BIFEBERXRSE H
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the ZHFAER FIEAZELZZ(NAE)
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, THERIERR AN fE 2 2 18 7 #1n (FIME 3 #2
are recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange FENFEE) c ZFIEHEZBIINBINET
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the % E 2 I AR AR S W am R AR
consolidated income statement in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired RZZZTHFMA—HRUBEERES
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after Ist April INEBMATEEZEERARREEN
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation AR BEARTIVEIEZBINEBL 2EER
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet BE RERGEEBZEAERKRE - fT
date. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange EEAE ZE N ZRENINE LI F B E P
fluctuation reserve. TR o
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)  Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

(u) Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment

Assets that have indefinite useful lives or have not yet been available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as assets and liabilities held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair values less costs to
sell if their carrying amounts are recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through a continuing use. The carrying
amounts of the reclassified assets and liabilities are determined
based on the same applicable accounting policies prior to the
reclassification, except for prepaid lease payments and property,
plant and equipment, no amortisation and depreciation have been
provided for subsequent to the reclassification.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments. The Group has chosen
business segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary reporting
format.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
debtors, creditors, amounts due from/to related companies, bills
payable, bank balances and cash, borrowings, convertible bonds
and financial derivatives. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank balances,
investments in debt securities, bank borrowings, bills
payable and derivative financial instruments. Majority
of the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest at floating
rate and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The management monitors interest rate exposure
and hedges significant interest rate exposure by using
financial instruments such as interest rate swap.
However, these instruments are not qualified for hedge
accounting.

At the balance sheet date, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by one percentage point and all
other variables were held constant, the post-tax profit
of the Group and the Company excluding impact of fair
value changes of derivative financial instruments and
investments in debt securities would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,255,000 (2008: decrease/
increase by HK$12,510,000) and decrease/increase by
HK$1,812,000 (2008: HK$10,438,000), respectively
resulting from the change in the borrowing costs of bank
borrowings and interest income of bank balances.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various
currency exposures. Foreign currency risk arises
when the Group’s recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies that are not the entities’
functional currency.

The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts
and equity securities and accounts receivable balances
arising from sales made to overseas customers. The
Group’s financial liabilities that are exposed to foreign
exchange risk mainly arise from Euro denominated
borrowings and accounts payable balances arising from
overseas purchases. It is the Group’s policies to ensure
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short term imbalances. The
management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts should the needs
arise.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 UBEREEEERBEX®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HERERBEEE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) HHERE)
(ii)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (ii) SPEEJE SR (48)
Major financial instruments under foreign currencies K EB 7 M e SN E & B 2 S EE
(other than the functional currencies of the Group’s (T"BEERNEENDE 2T
entities) that are exposed to foreign currency risk are EEVBBETAFEUARK
mainly denominated in Renminbi and United States RETHBEMN KNEF({HE
dollar (“US dollar”). The carrying amounts of the ) &N B LASNEE A& B8 g
Group’s (on entity level) and the Company’s foreign CHEBEELRTEEaERER
currency denominated financial assets and financial SHEAZEmMELNT :
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2009 2008 2009 2008
The Group rEH —EEAFE —TEN\F ZBBERLFE —ZFTTNF
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BE¥TrT AE¥TT AB¥TrT BE¥TR
Australian dollar YR IT 10,648 1,571 - =
Canadian dollar MEKRTT 185,772 225,584 - =
Euro L %% 186,921 422,055 (76,914) (252,800)
Hong Kong dollar Bt 91,358 - - -
Japanese Yen = 25,268 17,672 - =
Macau Pataca gl 8,310 = (279,020) =
Renminbi AR 161,513 120,110 (37,466) -
Singapore dollar 3T A0 T 1,711 27,138 - =
US dollar ET 728,817 1,334,244 - (9,445)
Others H A 11,626 47,026 - —
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2009 2008 2009 2008
The Company PN ZEEAF —TENF ZEBBEAF —ZTIT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT EETT HA¥Tr EETR
Canadian dollar MEKRTT 180,430 223,090 - -
Euro Bl 78 111,302 394,046 (3,660) (99,370)
Japanese Yen Ht 320 12,673 - =
Macau Pataca gl 8,310 = (279,020) =
Renminbi AR 7,041 = (37,466) -
Singapore dollar 703 T - 22,344 - =
US dollar e 252,378 554,247 - -
Other H A 17,063 23,825 —
The following table details the Group’s and the TRFHIIA 95 195NN a 2
Company’s sensitivity to every percentage point 18 E’j 11 Ef W LA EONEE 2
increase and decrease in the functional currency of BB —EE DR Z
corresponding Group entity against the above foreign (=i ’@ZJ‘;" {54 R I3 ’D\ﬁ RBE
currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only L/\ HNERERL 2 BE¥EMIAR
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary I B R F 3E 4 @ x { m—
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for BEEDHZ2BE T LA FA o
every percentage point increase in foreign currency EHRBAE Jf/\ EONEE 3K
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in % MEEXRESE
profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above g — M@ E Pal Z ER NS
foreign currency strengthens every percentage point wm A IR E B A AT
against the functional currency of corresponding Group hm e

entity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

3 BiIREREEERREE®)

30 HERBEZEGE)
(a) HHERE)

(i) SME R Sz (%)
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2009 2008
The Group KEE —EZhEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BT
Increase in profit i ) 3 AN 6,561 15,756
Increase in investment REEHEBEM
revaluation reserve 2,235 2,750
2009 2008
The Company AN ZEENF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EET T BT
Increase in profit i ) 3 A 421 9,486
Increase in investment KRE S HEFBE M
revaluation reserve 2,063 1,822
Price risk (i) 1E15/E
The Group and the Company are exposed to equity PN EA S NN N
securities price risk because investments held by FERRR WA RAE
the Group and the Company are classified on the NARBAFHGEZRER
consolidated balance sheet and the balance sheet either meEEARRREERRE
as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or ZRPEBERAHEEEHRN
loss. BRIRRAAEREMREY -
If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments WASE EMRATARR
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one Fisk .z B m, md—
percentage point and all other variables held constant: BERH2 BEMAI#RE
BERTE - A
— the post-tax profit of the Group for the year —AEEHEE_ZTTNEF=
ended 31st March 2009 would increase/decrease A=+T—-—BHBILEFEFEZH
by HK270,000 (2008: increase/decrease by 18 a5 A % 38 0 R A A B
HK$2,301,000) as a result of the changes in fair value 270,000 ( = & & )\ F :
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; 80, A 7 2,301,000
TT) W ER RN ERE
NAEREZMEEERN
NABEEFHFE
If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments WMAAA EMIRATARB
of the Company had been increased/decreased by one BTk < (BH&35 8k 2 — (@
percentage point and all other variables held constant: Ao BHMAIZEREN
MR ATE - R
— the post-tax profit of the Company for the year —ARBBE_ZZNF
ended 31st March 2009 would increase/decrease =A=+t—RHBIEFEZ
by HK$35,000 (2008: increase/decrease by Bt 1% 5 ) # 1 nOm D
HK$1,181,000) as a result of the changes in fair value #% 35,000 JT ZE)\F:
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. R A 7 1,181,000
TT) W ER RN E SRR
ARERBZMBEEEDN
NAEZEAE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 MEBERBEEEERERRGE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HERERBEEE)

(b) Credit risk b)) EEEE
Principal financial assets consist of debtors, amounts due from TEMREEBDIERE J.Iﬂz sk - FEUL
related companies, investments at fair value through profit BENTIRS  REERKREALE
or loss, derivative financial instruments and bank balances RIEBIEE - PTERKITA );2 fﬁ 17
and cash. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk EEERE HMEXSZYEHFEEE
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their THRERNEEEEZEE R IE
obligations as at the balance sheet date in relation to each class BEZEE  AEEBRGSE T
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those T/ AEEREABEEARBERA
assets as stated in the balance sheet. o RnZEEEZIREE °
Under the ongoing financial crisis, debtors of the Group ELRBlEETT  AEBZER
may be affected by the unfavourable economic conditions A ® B S 4% 7 IR 5 R R B
and the lower liquidity situation which could in turn impact RIEBREE  MeZHEBRK
their ability to repay the amounts owed. Deteriorating Beh o BB ARER R E=AL JRA] B
operating conditions for debtors may also have an impact FETIEBWIRSRE 280 LY
on management's cash flow forecasts and assessment of the FEWSREZ G EEECIRE
impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is AEZER  EEFREITIGEE X
available, management has properly reflected revised estimates S ET 2 TREAAR RIR G R 2t o
of expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments.
The Group has established different credit policies for NEBHREZOLDERZPLE L
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit TRZEERE - KTEHFRPE
period granted to trade debtors was 60 days. The Group HEEH AKX REELEER -
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at each 7N £ B ke 5 & o (E Bl FE W 5k 2 aT W
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses [B] k58 - FE/R gt AUk Bl X 58 1B B
are made for irrecoverable amounts. B 7 REEE -
Amounts due from related companies are continuously FEWREE N RIE R - JhiE B a2
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty, SHEF AL WREHBE
taking into account its financial position, past experience and MR BERKEBEEMmEAEmEST
other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for BEEE WAEZEE @510l
estimated irrecoverable amounts. As at 31st March 2009, the Oz st sEERREER - R
amounts due from related companies are fully performing. EENE=A=+—08  EWKE:E

RAEMRRI KRB -

Investments as fair value through profit or loss, derivative EEHERRESERITZSmKE
financial instruments, interest receivables and cash EITREREEREALAERE 2R
transactions are limited to and bank balances will only be B PTERET AN EKR S M
placed in financial institutions with high credit quality. ERGLREBEEETERGERRAZ
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by SR o NEEIFIBEIHT S Y
its counterparties through monitoring their credit rating FIZERAIRE AR S FERITLK
and setting approved counterparty credit limits that are Tﬂ;}ﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁ SN2 EFHABEE - =4
regularly reviewed. The Group does not expect any significant HEERBUMIEEZT SHFELRE
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual TEL ﬁﬁ z]g EEEHITESE A
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure T HEFRERE o I KR EEFH
that the limits are strictly followed. HEFERE ﬁﬁ PfB5E - HEHETIR

A EREEETHBRAE -

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any 7N £ B 3 fE A E ] B BIE 7S A 3RS
individual debtors or counterparties. SHFEFAEENERR
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

3

3.1

P EEEE B L

= RER ()

Bt %5 L B IR 3% (4%)

(c)

B0 8 m e

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk z}xﬁ BXROHEEEEZES RERE
management and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient EENEBREECHIRSEE
cash equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and hfr@ —f B B 3 2 EBELERD A
to have committed short term and medium term credit lines %_LHH K A Hﬁ1m EHENREES
available. BRI o
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) believe Vi N/NET -5 $$ (= ZlS SEEERITH
that the Group has obtained sufficient committed and B ABERAEAE—RIEZER
uncommitted general credit facilities from banks for working & BUAJE ﬁ w8 @ FTEE o
capital purposes.
The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan RARRERETVERAEE 2R
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the BEESR AR BETERILEIENR o
Company. The following table details the Group’s contractual TRFVWAEBBKEEZAEADF
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn HAE W « RIS TIIBIEANEEF A E
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities kM7 BHNTEa’EZ R
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required WHRIRe R - KK Es8EF
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash BRAEVZHEME °
flows.
Total
Less than 12 25 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
ANRES
The Group rEE PR-F -EWE ZZILf BRAF RELE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETR EBTR EBTR BB BB
2009 =k
Bank borrowings RITER 860,511 134,357 584,186 279,133 1,858,387
Convertible bonds AR 7 452,400 - - - 452,400
Amounts due to associates RRBEDRAIRR 89 - - - 89
Creditors and bills payable ENRZRENEZE 794,202 - - - 794,202
Derivative financial instruments fTEMEIA
(net settled) (F&5) 17,123 13,290 30,185 - 60,598
Derivative financial instruments TERMKIA
(gross settled) (Ba&E )
- outflow — i 79,007 - - - 79,007
~inflow —mA (78,495) - - - (78,495)
2008 “FEN\E
Bank borrowings RITEHR 761,553 429,832 1,063,740 120,631 2,375,756
Convertible bonds AR E - 452,400 - - 452,400
Amounts due to associates JERHEE A B R 5,926 - - - 5,926
Creditors and bills payable ERRZRENZE 949,972 - - - 949,972
Derivative financial instruments ITEHBIA
(net settled) (F£8) 3,590 (6,802) (16,808) (21,100) (41,120)
Derivative financial instruments (TEHKIA
(gross settled) (ameE)
~ outflow — i 262,374 - - - 262,374
— inflow —mA (190,865) = = (1,769) (192,634)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 HEERREEEERBE®@®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 30 HERBEZEGE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) EBEZhREEEE)
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
AERE
The Company N SR-F -EWmE “EEE BELF RES
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BRI BRI BT BETT
2009 “EENE
Bank borrowings RITAR 329,616 78,237 518,241 13,422 939,516
Convertible bonds Ak ES 508,950 - - - 508,950
Creditors ERER 14317 - - - 14317
Derivative financial instruments TERKTA
(net settled) (F&8) 17,123 13,290 30,185 - 60,598
Derivative financial instruments TERKIA
(gross settled) (a%EE)
- outflow =it 33,899 - - - 33,899
—inflow —mA (34,043) - - - (34,043)
2008 ZZTNE
Bank borrowings RITER 161,752 331,101 1,135,503 16,364 1,644,720
Convertible bonds R ES - 508,950 = = 508,950
Creditors JEfIIR R 7,322 = - = 7322
Derivative financial instruments ITESKIA
(net settled) (F£8) 3,590 (6,802) (16,808) (21,100) (41,120)
Derivative financial instruments ITERKTA
(gross settled) (azes)
- outflow =it 94,282 = = = 94,282
— inflow —mA (20,836) = = (1,769) (22,605)
Capital risk management 32 BEXEBER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the RNERBE IE BARZ BH AREKREF T
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the BrrE s AREAKELEGRR
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and REZS L 1A 75'5 EE STl
equity balance.
The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital NEBTFHRS KRB BEE HERGEE -
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its NmAEBEREETARIIREFEBKA
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of WMewm 2B WHKEBRAKPEER
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs. N EREEIEH AR -
The capital structure of the Group is solely represented by total REBZENEHBETHAERZREK
equity.
H B

EEARA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 UBEREEEEREKR®E
AND POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 32 EXERER(E)
The Group's net debt to equity ratio is expressed as a percentage ﬁ’% = fiéﬁ\%ﬁutt R ASRETE (A
of net debt (comprise total debt less bank balances and cash and FE 48 (5 757 fﬁ TEEERRS RERLF
structured deposits) over total equity. Total debt comprises bank =) gz- RESS ZE S o 48 (E RS A FESR T
borrowings, other loans and liability component of convertible B HpERRaailREs s aEs
bonds. 4 o
The net debt to equity ratio at 31st March 2009 and 2008 was as —EENER_EENE=A=+—H
follows: 2R EREE R ETZZDT
2009 2008
“BBRAF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
Total debt BB TS 2,204,736 2,618,179
Bank balances and cash |ITHEFRIRS
and structured deposits R EMETER (1,777,413) (1,318,496)
Net debt FERS 427,323 1,299,683
Total equity A 3,606,336 3,767,183
Net debt to equity ratio (B 7% B R AR bE K 11.8% 34.5%
4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BARITHAETTRFHE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based EEt RABFRESELBREMESE -
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations EREEREREIEN NEE 7%/\ I8 [
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the AIREBHRTER - W BTG -
circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. AREBARKELGERBRKR - FIEZ
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal SR EERVERBENERER
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have HE - EEEARBIFEFEEREBREZ
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying IREER T —EM % EEANEESEKR
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are B2 MBEREHOT
discussed below:
(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (i) MHFARBRELEERE
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets i TJ% ,i?\ A B s #ﬁ F Mt E2(v) BTl 2 25t
have suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting BR AEEGFRBHELREVEER
policies stated in note 2(v) to the consolidated financial statements. BHIBEMABEETAR - fﬁfﬁ\lz EEB
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based on LL Z AW ESBIRER T EBESEE
value-in-use calculations or its fair value less cost to sell, whichever HEHNBREERAZ AR BEUABES
is appropriate. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group BEREEE RAFERPRFEER K
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs EEBEGTZREEALAENZRAKRIES
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. mE - WAHERRREXAERBE -FE
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material BMARRESRELHRTEE  BrEELX
impairment loss may arise. R EEE -

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BARSITHETTRAE @
IUDGEMENTS (continued)

(i) Estimated useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill) (i) FHHAEFEE(REBEEN ZAEAEH
The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and AEBZERBAEBBUINZETLE
consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its intangible assets EEEMETA] @ FB & BA 0 95 1 5 F AR
(other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the historical BHE(ME)  ZSEst DR EEBT
experience of the actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets ¥ HEREFEEZERAFRAF
in related industries. Actual economic life may vary from estimated B BELEBRMIEL ERLEFHT
useful life. Periodic review could result in a change in amortisable gelafhst A ERAFEHAERE A - FHE
lives and consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses B 0] {5 A 2k $H F HA1S DA - 14 1 32 0
in future periods. R ARKEBE 2 HIHE -

(iii) Income taxes (iii) FTBH
At 31st March 2009, a deferred tax asset of HK$32,718,000 in relation RZEZNF=A=+—H" ' BEXH
to unused tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated balance AHEEEEHECELEREBEEESK
sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends 32,718,000 TE RN AN EEGEEEBER
on whether sufficient future taxable profits or taxable temporary FER BRLEHRBERER 28T
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual A& TE B TR @A ok ERRE
taxable future profits generated are more or less than expected, BEZEmMTE EBER TELEZRKE
additional deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred tax assets may Rim AN Z R D RTEH - HIRIET
arise, which would be recognised in the income statement for the MIBEE 2 hnsk £ [E - 37 712 0 sk £
period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place. B HIR MR MmN R -

Also, the Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. B REBEHMNZEAREEERZ
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide FriEfi - EHETEEIRFAET 2 BEERF -
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and SEAFEHEXRAL ELEEXBHBRE
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain P BFZRGNAELHHRREEL
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises R ZMIEETE - AEBAMAKSE
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of B E AN REINTL TE - 48 T T R ) T B AR 15
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome BEZEEZAMT MEZEFEZZEH
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially BEREBYAR 2B IR 25 =
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred BB ENGEEFHRNZMER RIET
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. FRIE B o

(iv) Construction contract revenue recognition (iv) BESHUBER
According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as BERF20)MEAREES DN K
stated in note 2(1), the Group uses the percentage of completion xR ANEBEMNT TT BoOHERE HER
method to determine the appropriate revenue to be recognised in a =) ?é? E’\] J—I& ]\ 75 IE E 23% EE EFEMER

3

given period. The stage of completion is measured by total amount of
work done certified by customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group EREATIADLER  AEEEIZIR
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction BT EEaNEKAEENRERE
contract, which was determined based on the estimated total HEBEIIERRE)  B8E22845Y
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum, HWEMR - MERESHZERERN X
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit HEBENGGEER R TFEH
margin of construction contract differs from the management’s EARANBEES NS IERERE -

estimates, the construction contract revenue to be recognised within
the next year will be adjusted accordingly.

HAEBREEFRAR 95
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
IUDGEMENTS (continued)

(v) Determination of insurance liabilities
The Group's insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the
basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing modeling
and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities
are affected by assessed net loss ratio. Assessed net loss ratio for 2009
and 2008 was 90% and 103% respectively. Differences resulting from
reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised in subsequent
financial statements. The directors continually review the estimates
and make adjustments as necessary, but actual results could differ
significantly from what is envisioned when these estimates are made.

(vi) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is
made on the basis of the "Market Value" adopted by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (the "HKIS"). It is performed in accordance
with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by the
HKIS. The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by
considering the information from a variety of sources including (i)
current prices in an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active market, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary
income potential based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date.

(vii) Impairment assessment for available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short term business outlook for the investee and
historical price volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost are considered
significant or prolonged, an additional loss of HK$48,352,000
would be incurred in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31st March 2009, being the transfer of
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity on
the available-for-sale financial assets to the consolidated income
statement.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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(v)

(vii)
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REVENUE 5 WE
2009 2008
—ETNF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Revenue represents amount RKENATE WK
received and receivable from: fEl 2z W s
Construction and installation contracts fES ;’:L R&EET ﬁ 3,027,886 3,170,812
Sale of computer, business B - R KR
machines and others & Hih 7 HE & 850,476 1,043,613
Provision of maintenance RERERYE
and property management B I AR 75 660,049 624,952
Food and beverages BN 311,106 299,034
Warehouse and logistics operations BERYREE 122,288 117,257
Hotel operations R & B 57,580 66,005
Leasing of properties MEHE 55,386 52,904
Sales of properties MEIHE 42,776 85,082
Insurance premium e 36,570 40,129
Interest income from investments REEE ZFBUWA 25,555 53,894
Dividend income from listed securities EmEAHZRBRA 4,259 11,079
Leasing of equipment RiEHEE 1,646 3,917
5,195,577 5,568,678
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by business and geographical REE 2 WHREB LR S EHN DT
segment is set out in note 42. ORI 42 ©
OTHER EXPENSES, NET 6 HfttxHi FHE
2009 2008
—RBRE —TI\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Loss on investments at fair value RERIREARBREZEE
through profit or loss, net (note) E’] }gﬁ TE HEA (B FE)
— Realised B &35 (158,939) (15,893)
— Unrealised —RER (1,800) (71,830)
(Loss)/gain on derivative TTEFMBIAZ
financial instruments, net (B18), Wz - F5E
— Realised —B &3 2,347 12,196
— Unrealised —REH (74,981) (36,528)
Interest income on amounts due from JrE Ui B = X BIR 3R 2
associates B WA 5,340 165
Interest income on amounts due from JEUT H RIE HI D EIRR Z
jointly controlled entities B U A 1,418 1,257
Commission income RN 3,351 9,183
Others =i} 4,486 =
(218,778) (101,450)
Note: ffsE -
The balances include net unrealised gain of HK$3,540,000 (2008: ZEEBBER VA TERRIE iﬁﬁé;‘gﬁmﬁ
HK$7,533,000) and realised loss of HK$687,000 (2008: HK$2,398,000) on BARERIE z I EE(RGE 7 RA %
debt securities and structured deposits designated as financial assets at fair MER) 2 AEH W B3, 540 0007T (=
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. ZNE: B @F’f 7,533,000 7C) M B #4355 18 8 @F’f
687,000 (= F T )\ : % # 2,398,000 7T ) ©

HIBEEEARA
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7  OTHER GAINS, NET

7 Hftlas o FHE

2009 2008
—EZThF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$000
BETFT BETT
Gain on disposal of & 2 Was
—75% interest in CPT Group (note 52(c)) —CPT & & 27 75% #E 25 (K 5E 52(c)) 156,296 =
—49% interest in CHK Group —H+BEEE 2 49%

(note 32(b)) (Bt sE32(b)) 621,626 -
Impairment loss on goodwill 2 2 REEE (129,279) -
(Decrease)/increase in fair value WEMEZ ARBECRD),/

of investment properties (note 14) 300 (PR3 14) (99,637) 387,263
Exchange (loss)/gain, net BN (B18), W - F57 (36,525) 9,373
Fair value (loss)/gain on derivative AJ Tﬁ R EHHTE T AEES Tﬁ

component of convertible bonds ZRARME(ER), /WS (27,733) 23,912
Impairment loss on property, M BERE#EZ

plant and equipment VERENSEE] (19,139) (7,415)
Bad debts (written off)/recovered (B, B W e 5=k (20,429) 7,770
Impairment loss on available- AEHEZRED

for-sale investments B B 18 (10,552) (835)
Impairment loss on loans and receivables & X [ & W 5% 2 7l 1B &5 18 (5,334) -
Tax incentive W EE R 4,498 1,768
Government grant SR 1,367 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and & ¥ 3% « B M& &

equipment and prepaid lease payments RIERA f}Zﬁ\IEZ B8R (6,773) (1,438)
Write back of impairment loss O ENEERIE 2

on prepaid lease payments B B 18 - 2,637
Net loss on disposal of HEREME

investment property ZEBFE - (653)

428,386 422,382
8  FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 MBEMR FHE
2009 2008
ZBENF —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
Interest expenses on bank loans wholly ARIFNEHERZ

repayable within five years and overdrafts SBITERAMEYOF B H 60,585 90,511
Interest expenses on convertible bonds ARIFANEZHERY

wholly repayable within five years A AR & 7 B 7.8 52 i 38,165 35,532
Less: Amounts capitalised to W BIEERPE

properties under development (note) Z &%) (11,869) -

86,881 126,043
Less: Interest from bank deposits o RITERFEMA (16,996) (16,420)
69,885 109,623
Note: ffsE -
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the RIERIS R BIERBYWE ZENEFEF =
development of properties was between 5.31% and 7.47% per annum during NARFEENF5.31% E 7.47% °

the year.

9 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9 BRBAEF
2009 2008
—EZhF —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$’O@
BMTRX AW
Profit before taxation has been arrived B B Bl & A 2 FBR
at after charging the following: THIER :
Depreciation on property, ME - BB R&RE
plant and equipment 2 & ‘ 68,519 89,333
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work & : ¥ {E& ¥ T2 2N (1,177 (177
67,342 89,156
Auditors’ remuneration % 6 B & 7,907 10,236
Staff costs (note a) BT (MisEa) 818,974 964,739
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work & : ¥ {E& ) T2 K 2N (105,295 (93,337
713,679 871,402
Operating lease payments B ApAYE! faf_ INTERZEF M
in respect of leasing of HEEMA
— Premises (note b) ,@g_: (Pt 5Eb) 106,815 107,852
— Equipment & 1,442 22,690
108,257 130,542
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {< 18 & 3k 18 & 85 11,798 11,783
Amortisation of other intangible assets ’rﬁlﬂ ﬁ/ é = 8 1,597 3,986
Write down of properties W /UZ H % e
for sale to net realisable value I8 R (E 26,717 =
Write down of inventories i 5)@ 7(? ES
to net realisable value A &5 R E 9,197 1,315
and crediting the following: Wit ATFIIEE
Gross rental income of HK$55,386,000 #2843 1 & W A% ¥ 55,386,000 7T
(2008: HK$52,904,000) from properties ZZTE)\4F ¢ ¥ 52,904,000 7T)
less direct operating expenses (note ¢) B (5 ) 43,235 37,775
Write back of properties for sale to BOGEWES
net realisable value A &5 EE — 11,831
Notes: Bt 5 -
(a)  Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in @ EBZEHNeeEEEIZHRN EBF

()

note 44.

Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$3,980,000 (2008:
HK$3,613,000) in respect of redundancy payments made to staff and
an amount of HK$36,651,000 (2008: HK$39,003,000) in respect of
contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, net of
forfeited contributions.

Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises
are contingent rental of HK$6,184,000 (2008: HK$8,623,000).

Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,953,000 (2008:
HK$1,960,000) less outgoings of HK$1,093,000 (2008: HK$1,126,000)
from jointly controlled assets.

Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$46,033,000 (2008:
HK$21,410,000) derived from investment properties.

(c)

EM 44 R P EE -

EEFBEEISIHFRARME T LB
3,980,000 7T (ZZEZ N\ : B ¥ 3,613,000

7‘1)&E%DI%%%%H&Z#%MJ%EPFE@M%%’X
7 ¥ 36,651,000 C( Z T Z )\ F : B

39,003,000 7C) ©

EEEREEEFmTAEEETES
mz&%fﬁiﬁ/%ﬁ% 184,000 T (=&

T )\ £ : 5% 8,623,0007T) °
BEeEHS AR AR LRSS EK
HXZ%E$5§M1,953,0007E(_ Seic

7 11,960,000 7T ) 3 2 H 7 #51,093,000
TL(ZZZ)\F : H¥1,126,0007T) °

a%ﬁﬁiuﬂmnp;%xa&ﬁ%%zm
%i@%ﬁ,%ﬁﬂsossoowc(f T\ F
75 21,410,000 7T ) ©

H B ;
=TT FER
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10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES 10 FAEH(ER), Xl
2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BEET T
Current tax NEERIE
Hong Kong BB 18,542 32,686
Overseas EEI 9,566 20,479
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFENT(BE)BE 107 (13,036)
28,215 40,129
Deferred tax EER IR
Origination and reversal of TRHEERZES
temporary differences K # Bl (26,053) 72,682
Impact of change in profits tax rate NMERBHE2H T8 (6,306) -
(4,144) 112,811

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting tax losses
brought forward of each individual company. Taxation on overseas
profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 41.

The income tax (credit)/expenses for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

BEBENEH IR AERS AR ZIH5HE
ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ%m%mﬁgﬁéﬁﬁz
16.5% ( — T Z N\ : 17.5%) 5t & ° b
%ﬁﬁ&iwmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂm$%§
LEZEEHE 2 IRITREGE -

FEEMRIB 2 FBEE R4 #EE -

AEEMREHRER) /X HAREES
Wk 2k R 2 BRI A g A B IR A0 R ¢

2009 2008
—EZNF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit before taxation bR 5 BT A 3,556 411,970
Adjust for: TE
Share of results of associates FfME i N (7,482) (27,258)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities P {dy % [ #25° 5 1& % E S 11,356 (2,909)
7,430 381,803
Tax at the domestic income 12 2R 1 15 B B K 16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) —ET)\F 17.5%) st EH A FLIA 1,226 66,816
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ £ B 5% B 8 [ 4F & 1) [ [ 2 &)
operating in other jurisdictions ERTRRENTE (5,482) 25,273
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T —f BN HZHE 3& % 69,242 50,908
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERHRUWA 2 RIB R (144,591) (42,457)
Tax effect of current year’s ATHERBORFEE %fo
tax losses not recognised EBIEMNTHIERE 87,617 60,755
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses R LART R TR B8 &
and other deductible temporary HEMr R ERMEERES
difference not previously recognised TR By E (12,263) (35,448)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years B F r T B/ (HR5E) BE 107 (13,036)
Income tax (credit)/expenses for the year ANFEFATEH (%), S H (4,144) 112,811

100 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&6 BB R M AT
DIVIDENDS 11 ’E
2009 2008
ZEENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’O@
BMTRX AW
Interim dividend of HK$0.055 2K ‘:F' HH % BB RS # 0,055 7T
(2008: HK$0.160) per share paid —ZET)N\F : GREK0.1607T) 15,266 44,573
Final dividend of HK$0.200 BER AR 2 IR 2, 8 AR # 0.200 7T
(2008: HK$0.290) per share proposed (ZZ2 N\ : FHE%0.2907T) 55,513 80,789
Special dividend of HK$0.200 B 5 Bl % B B AR S 0.200 7T
(2008: Nil) per share proposed (ZZ2NF &) 55,513 —
126,292 125,362
A final dividend of HK$0.200 per share and a special dividend RAAESZE @uﬁ/& TOREAAR B i@%
of HK$0.200 per share, totalling HK$111,026,000, have been % 0.200 7T 2 45 Bl i tﬁx/aﬁ%o 2007T °
proposed by the Board of Directors and are subject to approval by & H B 111,026, OOO 7T - A ﬁ% ARz
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The % R A F K fa\ s 3% PR ER 4t /E ° ZENRIA
amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for BREBE_T-—FTF=A=1+—HILHF
the year ending 31st March 2010. [E AR BRI 2 DIk o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 8K
Basic (@ EXFX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit %%Z’K BATIREBEARR L EEA A
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted e R MR AR EZE BITERR 2N
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. EFHEGE -
2009 2008
— i —ETN\F
HK$°000 _HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit attributable to equity holders RABIRERA AR
of the Company i A 135,634 230,747
Number of Number of
shares shares
RGEE P 25 B
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of BEITEBERZ I
ordinary shares in issue NS 278,073 278,582
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FREARNZF (EE) 0.49 0.83

**Thii #
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rT (&) Eﬂ%iﬁi‘%l‘ﬁ nf

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BREBN@®
(b) Diluted (b) &8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted FRESEFNTABRKXEEE S LB
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume D HEMEH O BT TR Z NEFY
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s %{ FTEAE M E - NR A2 /BEH S
dilutive potential ordinary shares are derived from the convertible TR ITEB A BRES AIRBRE
bonds. The convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted % TRREERK LB mARE R
into ordinary shares, and the profit attributable to equity holders of R A FE AL s A B A S5 7 B 52 1R
the Company is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax Rz 2RI A K F 5 E
effect and for any other changes in income and expenses from the H 7 A E A B S AR o
conversion.
For the year ended 31st March 2009, the convertible bonds HE_ZTZNE="A=1T—HILHFE -
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per AR ESESERERNABFES RE#E
share and the diluted earnings per share equaled the basic earnings TR WMEREERNBEREFRER
per share. BH o
The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March 2008 is HE_ZTTZNF=-A=+—HLEFEZ
calculated as below: REERAMFENAT
2008
—TENF
HK$’000
BT
Profit attributable to equity RARRERFEA
holders of the Company JEAE 4 A 230,747
Interest on convertible bonds AMEESCFE 35,532
Fair value gain on derivative AHRKREFMTETARMZ
component of convertible bonds N EIE I (23,912)
Adjusted profit for diluted REgR# ERF
earnings per share 7 S8 B O A 242,367
Number of
shares
Pin &R
’000
T A%
Weighted average number EBITT R ME
of ordinary shares in issue Rk 278,582
Adjustments for convertible bonds 1A R R B 5 B 37,873
Weighted average number of ordinary REGR# RN 2
shares for diluted earnings per share TR A & 316,455
Diluted earnings per share (HKS$) SR EE R EE) 0.77

13 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 13

THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company is HK$708,887,000 (2008: loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$33,935,000).

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&6 M Ok I B

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REWZE
The Group
A
HK$°000
BT T
At 1st April 2007 R-ZZETLFMPHA—H 523,644
Exchange realignment ME H S 35,430
Additions NE 7,799
Disposal k== (4,460)
Transfer from properties for sale EHETEME 167,769
Increase in fair value (note 7) NREEIHEE7) 387,263
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZNF=A=+—H 1,117,445
Exchange realignment ME H S (6,298)
Transfer to properties for own HEQ R
use (notes 15 and 16) (Pt 5F 15 M2 16) (6,700)
Decrease in fair value (note 7) NAERD (HE7) (99,637)
At 31st March 2009 RZZEZENF=ZRA=+— 1,004,810

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying values are
analysed as follows:

f%Z&ﬁ%%%Eﬁzﬂlﬁﬁﬁz il
N

2009 2008
ZEBhF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 _HK$°000
BETT BETRT
In Hong Kong BB
Leases between 10 to 50 years FHR+ERTF2ELY 360,074 438,688
Outside Hong Kong BBEIZIN
Leases between 10 to 50 years FHRTERTFEZHEY 518,222 528,637
Freehold KA 126,514 150,120
1,004,810 1,117,445
Notes: B &

(a)  The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong,
the mainland China and overseas as at 31st March 2009 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight
Frank Petty Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who
are independent qualified professional valuers and have appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS
Valuation Standards on Properties of the HKIS, was arrived at with
reference to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties
or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a carrying value of
HK$18,667,000 (2008: HK$21,000,000) represent the Group’s share of
interest in jointly controlled assets.

(c)  Charges were created on the investment properties with a total
carrying value of HK$350,976,000 (2008: HK$420,458,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Pursuant to arbitrations and legal proceedings among the Group and
the joint venture partner of a jointly controlled entity in Shenzhen,
investment properties with carrying value totalling HK$71,974,000
(2008: Nil) were pledged to a court of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) as security for a property preservation measures under
legal proceedings.

@ AEBECRES - PEAHZENZZE
MER—ZTAF=A=+—HZ2A
%B”%mﬁié§%$%¥ﬁ%%%
BIEHEIITER AR KRB ERITERA
nE ELHZHEH%& &#Eiﬁﬁ
FEEA A EER  WHER AR EET
MEGERLER - ZEETETESAE
MESmBERNES Il SmEaey
%ﬁ%ﬁa%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%i%;
SR ERBE 2 W F R AL TS -

b)) MREBZEREMEREASERE
45,\H% %IQFZ%“ HIFEEA
B ¥ 18,667,000 C( Z T Z )\ F : B

2lpoopooii)°

() IREEARB 350,976,000 (=T N\
F ;B 420,458,00070) Z A WEE (E
- ERETASBERITEE ZHBER -

RIEAEB R —RERIEHOERN
BIERBHEZRERARFR  IREEE
a8 # 71,974,000 T ( Z 2T )\ F : £)
ZIREMECIEA T P EARILM
Bl ([ E])EBR - (EAERFRTZEH
EREEE -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 YE- -BERKRE

The Group NEE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Other Plant, other
Cold properties machinery equipment
storage Hotel for own and and motor
warehouse properties use equipment vehicles Total
BR - %E-
Hitr HE Hitif
REER BRENE BRNE  BBERXE RAE AR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BETR BRI BETR BETT BETR
Cost KA
At Ist April 2007 i 2
mA—A 61,000 139,901 392,804 286,293 311,748 1,191,746
Exchange realignment 5 AR - 15,139 24,809 32,092 16,258 88,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB - - - 45 658 703
Additions NE - 634 331 63,019 48,247 112,231
Disposal HeE - - (630) (35,596) (10,464) (46,690)
Reclassification ENNE - - - (424) 424 -
At 315t March 2008 e /\i
- )5] == 61,000 155,674 417,314 345,629 366,871 1,346,488
Exchange realignment 5 A% - (23,623) (23,011) (3,804) (7,216) (57,654)
Step-up acquisition of interest ~ JEFE—FEHE AT 2
in an associate (note 52(b)) 1 (Pl 52(b)) - - 2,160 15,572 30,596 48,328
Additions e - 224 9,156 37,937 24,520 71,837
Disposal HE - - (381) (22,026) (35,759) (58,166)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (57,004) (211,693) (18,418) (287,115)
Transfer from investment ZER ﬁ nx
properties (note 14) (FizE14) - - 1,550 - - 1,550
Reclassification B *E - - - 158 (158) -
Reclassified as held for sale ENNEAGE - - (4,675) (10,037) (23,454) (38,166)
At 315t March 2009 RZZENF
“A=t—H 61,000 132,275 345,109 151,736 336,982 1,027,102

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

A&

15 % - BERZRE @

B 5 ek I ot

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Furniture,
fixtures,
Other Plant, other
Cold properties machinery equipment
storage Hotel for own and and motor
warehouse properties use equipment vehicles Total
B RE
| LA ER REER
REER BENE BRNE  HERRE RAE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ick: " ickici " ARTR BRI ickicha " ABTR
Accumulated deprecation R E
and impairment R fE
At 1st April 2007 A\ZZTLE
@E —H 11,392 37,544 82,921 131,047 199,675 462,579
Exchange realignment EXAE - 4339 5,99 12,144 10,516 32,995
Charge for the year FERE 2,205 2,801 9,391 38,766 36,170 89,333
Impairment loss recognised E ﬁﬁé@ﬁfﬁ)@ﬂé - 2,915 - - 4,500 7,415
Disposal & - - (185) (10,286) (4,801) (15,272)
Reclassification ENNE - - - (297) 297 -
At 31t March 2008 RZFENF
EE =T—H 13,597 47,599 98,123 171,374 246,357 577,050
Exchange realignment B A% - (6,109) (8,583) (1,730) (5,280) (21,702)
Charge for the year FERE 2,205 2,501 8,192 23,732 31,889 68,519
(Write back of impairment B (&m) /B3R
loss)/impairment HEEE
loss recognised _ - - - (95) 19,234 19,139
Disposal HE - - (90) (9,963) (29,498) (39,551)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB LA - - (7,275) (91,309) (7,072) (105,656)
Reclassification B %ﬁ ’JJ\iE ‘ - - - 120 (120) -
Reclassification as held for sale  EF A HAFE - - (1,227 (9,014) (18,837) (29,078)
At31st March 2009 RZZENE
ZA=t-H 15,802 43,991 89,140 83,115 236,673 468,721
Carrying value REE
At 31st March 2009 RIZTNE
=A=1-H 45,198 88,284 255,969 68,621 100,309 558,381
At 315t March 2008 RZZENF
=ZA=1+-H 47,403 108,075 319,191 174,255 120,514 769,438
Notes: B
(a)  The carrying value of properties comprises: () WEZIREHESRE:
2009 2008
ZEEAF —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT T BT T
Freehold land and buildings thereon KAXERBERE EZEF 98,710 156,788
Buildings on leasehold land HELT F2EF 290,741 317,881
389,451 474,669

(b)  Charges were created on certain properties, plant and equipment with
a total carrying value of HK$153,601,000 (2008: HK$193,692,000) for
the purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

(b) PR AEE A B 153,601,000 L( — =

Al

J\EE : #15193,692,000 7T ) 2 5 T W% -
WEMEEBEIEER  (EARTASEHE

RITERZER -

H B
=TT FER
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16 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16 FBENHEERE
The Group
£
2009 2008
—EENF —ZET)N\F
HK$°000 _HK$°000
i i A BT
The Group’s prepaid lease N & [H TR A ERIE
payments comprise: & %
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: MREBZHEE T :
Leases over 50 years FHIBBA T F 2L 96,511 97,967
Leases between 10 to 50 years FH+ERA+F 2L 314,904 317,464
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: MREBRINZHE L
Leases over 50 years FHRBR THFZ2HLY 13,888 18,113
Leases between 10 to 50 years o HA+ :tE: f+ ﬁz Z A 9,866 12,428
Leases under 10 years FHROR+TFE 2L 28 46
435,197 446,018
The movements in the Group’s prepaid lease payments during the AEBFAENEERBESH 2D N
year are analysed as follows: N
2009 2008
—EENF —ET)\F
HKS'000  HKS000
BET T BETT
At 1st April ! 446,018 455,239
Step-up acquisition of interest in an R — Fﬂ 55 EREl R
associate (note 52(b)) ( = 52(b)) 1,640 —
Exchange realignment I 3,38 (1,552) 2,055
Disposal =4 (611) (2,130)
Amortisation 1 5 B (11,798) (11,783)
Write back of impairment loss 5 3R {E & TE - 2,637
Transfer from investment #H &ﬁ ES
properties (note 14) (ﬂ FF14) 5,150 -
Reclassification as held for sale (note 32(a)) B #H 8 AFE (MisFE32(a)) (3,650) =
At 31st March R=A=+—H” 435,197 446,018
Charges were created on the prepaid lease payments with a total IR [ 4818 /378 % 151,989,000 L (— & = AN
carrying value of HK$151,989,000 (2008: HK$148,778,000) for the £ - WK 148,778,000 7T ) 2 T H E S
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group. %1}5 fﬁ # 13/{ (5 75'5; BT AREBRITEE
17 GOODWILL 17 BHE
The Group
&
2009 2008
—BENF —ETN\F
HKS'000 _HK$000
BETR BETT
At 1st April REA—H 210,330 210,330
Step-up acquisition of interest BB —HBERF
in an associate (note 52(b)) 2R (M sE52(b)) 171,543 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A -
—75% interest in CPT Group (note 52(c)) —CPT E& 2 75% *E 7= (BT 5E52(c)) (46,744) —
Reclassification as held for sale (note 32(a)) B ﬁj\ iﬁ =¥ :Jrf & (M 5E32(a)) (3,259) -
Impairment loss recognised BEREAREERE (129,279) -
At 31st March R=RA=+—H 202,591 210,330
Notes: B 5E

Details of impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 43.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 HMEFEE
The Group NE
Cold
Roads and Other Trademark storage and
drainage patents  of branded public
and and coffee shops, bonded
Development waterworks license restaurants warehouse
expenditure license rights  andbars licenses Others Total
EE REWGEE . RHAEE

RERKE RENE REREE ROX
HExE IERR RER  EE REARR Hit ag
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
ERTR E¥Tn BETr ERTR E¥Tr BETR ERTR

Cost RA
At Ist April 2007 i a3
mA—H 10,014 26,534 19,969 108,000 3,000 4,069 171,586
Exchange realignment I 5 3% 1,695 - 4,024 - - = 5,719
Additions NE = = 3,780 - = = 3,780
Disposal e - - (3,257) - - - (3,257)
Reclassification BEHNE 1,016 - (1,016) = = = =
At 315t March 2008 RZZENF
=A=+—H 12,725 26,534 23,500 108,000 3,000 4,069 177,828
Exchange realignment E SR (272) - 264 - - - (8)
Step-up acquisition of interest 1 & — [ B &
in an associate PR £
(note 52(b)) (Fft 5E 52(b)) - - - 10,337 - - 10,337
Additions WE - - - - - 5,933 5,933
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREBERA (12,453) - (23,764) - - - (36,217)
At 315t March 2009 RZZENE
=A=1+—H - 26,534 - 118,337 3,000 10,002 157,873
Accumulated amortisation 2 BHER
and impairment HE
At Ist April 2007 RZZEE+F
mHA—H 4,299 2,157 2,829 - 1,537 1,900 12,722
Exchange realignment B 5 32 1,560 - 844 - - - 2,404
Charge for the year FEHH 1,262 = 2,424 = 300 = 3,986
Disposal & = = (2,328) = = = (2,328)
Reclassification DB 169 - (169) - - - -
At 315t March 2008 RZTENF
=A=1t—8H 7,290 2,157 3,600 - 1,837 1,900 16,784
Exchange realignment B AR (171) - 75 - - - (96)
Charge for the year EEEE 433 - 864 - 300 - 1,597
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF (7,552) - (4,539) - - - (12,091)
At 31st March 2009 RZTZNE
=A=+—H - 2,157 - - 2,137 1,900 6,194
Carrying value REE
As at 31st March 2009 RZBENF
=A=1+—H - 24,377 - 118,337 863 8,102 151,679
As at 31st March 2008 R-ZZBENF
=A=+—H 5,435 24,377 19,900 108,000 1,163 2,169 161,044
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18

19

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continucd) 18 HMELPEE @
Other intangible assets (other than roads and drainage and E|BILEE(REE RS MKE IR
waterworks license (“License”) and trademark of branded coffee ([FER ) & &,:' Héﬁ W BEJIE 2 g A2 ([ o0 B JE
shops (“Coffee Shops Trademark”)) are amortised on a straight-line BZ ) IN) Th A B &R 75 1R T 514 51 Bl 5 BB
basis over the following estimated useful lives: FEHAETTEESY o
Development expenditure 10 years HEE A TF
Other patents and license rights 16 years H b 2= 5 N2 b BR +RF
Trademark of restaurants and bars 15 years ZEE KOBR 2 e +HE
Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years REBRERABRRIE AR T4
The License and Coffee Shops Trademark were purchased as part R MBEEEIZER A EFEEELEE
of business combinations in prior years. The Directors are of the HMBA - KRB EERE BEEZS
opinion that the upkeep of the License and Coffee Shops Trademark MR R M EEIZME AR - A%
is at minimal cost and the Group would renew the License and TN A5 RE RR K% W O T P AR N BT T o AN
Coffee Shops Trademark continuously. Various studies have been SEEBESETZEME  ZE5HR
performed by management of the Group, which support that there is SRR R K N R R A AE AN B TR HA AE
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the License and Coffee EEFReR IS WEAREMNZ
Shops Trademark are expected to generate net cash inflows for the PR &l o
Group.
The License and Coffee Shops Trademark are considered by the AEEEEERAEBEMUEEEEZER
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life and will EERUFEHAFEH Ty
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite upon BEEEEERENFERFEHIRFEHN
reassessment of its useful live annually by the management. Instead, fihE BEEAIERFEHERAL -
they will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is /ﬁ ERwEE RELRA]EREDRE
an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment HEATRE R o RERIH 2 FE B R M EE
testing are set out in note 43. 431K R -
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 FHEMEB AR 2 Em
The Company
YN
2009 2008
—EBhF —ZTENF
HKS$’000 _HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cost less impairment X ZF0BR BB
Share listed in Hong Kong BB LT KRG 268,154 309,536
Unlisted shares FE LD 802,483 944,405
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE 5 B /B8 1 B R 3K 224,289 231,584
1,294,926 1,485,525
Market value of shares listed in Hong Kong BB FmzRHBOmE 102,866 237,694
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE 5 B JB8 R B R 3K 2,619,824 2,223,157
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A Rl IR 1,413,584 1,095,855
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2009 RZBEZNF=RA=+—HZTENE
are set out in note 53. NElZER - EERHIEES3 o

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19 PFRALEMEB A Rl 2 A (40

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets and current R @J ‘B E )SZ TEABERNZEW
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; RN 7 R DEET EERKRE
except for a sum of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling KIEE - f W B /B A Rl IR A KB
HK$427,276,000 (2008: HK$344,598,000) which bears interest at "5 427,276,00070( — B Z )\ F: B K&
Prime Rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation 344,598,000 7TI:) RiZBB LBELRTE
Limited plus 3% (2008: Prime Rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai BARZHZEENEINFER3N(ZE
Banking Corporation Limited) per annum. TN\F: BB LBEERTERAAZ
XEBENE)FTE °
The net carrying amounts of the Company’s amounts due from/(to) AAREW () MBRRAIRKRZ FRE
subsidiaries are denominated in the following currencies: Ty LA TR %I & ¥ A 8
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENEFE
HK$°000 _HK$000
BETT BT T
Canadian dollar JIE YN 172,433 213,359
Euro & (3,383) 223,565
Macau Pataca R PTH (270,710) -
Hong Kong dollar B 1,554,305 914,364
Others HAth (22,116) 7,598
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 FHiEBE AR R
The Group The Company
PN S b N/NE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAE —ZTTN\F ZEBETRE ZZTTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
BT BT B¥TIx A% Trn
Interests in associates, Fir 15 Bt AN A 2
including goodwill BEEE 187,482 172,818 - —
Amounts due from e Uk Hy SN
associates (note b) Rk (BY5ED) 101,582 19,273 85,409 13
Amounts due to & {~HBsE 2 A A
associates (note b) R FX (M 5ED) 89 5,926 - =

The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year

Ny

SEFAMEBERARZEZES

are analysed as follows: SWAT :
2009 2008
—EZhF —ET)\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETT
At 1st April KA H—H 172,818 137,084
Share of results FTih 348 7,482 27,258
Capital contribution BREE - 3,381
Adjustment arising from finalisation EEWREREEE
of purchase consideration Z A - 6,240
Transfer from interests in subsidiaries upon 1 & CPT £ B 2 75% & 7 18
disposal of 75% interest in CPT Group B P (L B A Rl 2 s 14,673 -
Acquisition of interest in associates B A PTG B 2 A B 2 #EZ 84,701 =
Transferred as part of step-up acquisition 1 /1% i — B & A &) 2 #E &= &)
of interest in an associate (note 52(b)) a2 12 (FfY 5E 52(b)) (53,179) -
Eliminated on business combination XTS5 E O i & 8 (18,528) -
Dividends % 8. (20,735) (4,750)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 38 B 250 3,605
At 31st March R=A=+—H 187,482 172,818

HIBREEAFRAR]
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continucd) 20 FREERE DR 2 fEm (|
On 31st March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% issued R-ZEFENEFE=ZA=1+—H ~X&EEHM
share capital of its associated company, Sinochina Enterprises 83 % = J7 Sinochina Pacific Limited 4Z #&
Limited (“SEL”) from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent E [ff /& /2 &) Sinochina Enterprises Limited
third party. Subsequent to the acquisition completed on 31st March ([SEL]) 88 T 51% 2 B BE1TAR ZIS o I fE 754\
2009, SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. —ZEENF=HA=+—HmMKIE ' SELK
REAEEZEWNB AT -
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is N BB N T 2 BT E R E 5 & a0
set out below: N
2009 2008
—®BAE —TT)\H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Total assets F 1,914,957 486,410
Total liabilities 1@ (1,329,165) (205,665)
Minority interests A+ (8,231) (8,334)
577,561 272,411
Revenue Y sk 1,357,243 540,738
Profit for the year N i A 4,146 62,477
Notes: B
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal associates at 31st March 2009 are (@) M= ggﬂ@ ZA=+—HEXZEH
set out in note 54. RElZER  BERMI 54 ©
(b)  Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and (b) JEUEEEARIRZRTVERE - 28
repayable on demand, except for the following balances: MIRERER - AT ERERI -
(i) Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$9,039,000 (i) A& E e U — B2 R R IR X
as at 31st March 2009 (2008: HK$7,566,000) which bears 75 19,039,000 TR ZEE N, E =
interest at a rate of 6.2% (2008: 6.2%) per annum. A=+—B(ZZEZNF: K
7,566,000 7% ) Jo R 4F . %.6.29% ( =
TT)\F : 6.2%)3H B -
(ii)) Amount due from an associate of the Group and of the (i) ANEBERARARZEWR—EgE
Company of HK$79,022,000 as at 31st March 2009 (2008: 7 AR R 79,022,000 T — &
Nil) which bears interest at a rate of 3-month Euro Interbank Th&E=A=1+—H <:ff/\$
Offered Rate plus 100 basis points per annum and of which mIR=EARBERITRERL
HK$59,267,000 is repayable not later than 30th September ME S EI00EER S - HAp
2009. ¥ 59,067,000 T/ TER ~ ET
NENR=+BEEER-
(iii)  Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$4,100,000 (i) AN B fE U — R B 2 R B IR B3O8
as at 31st March 2008 which was unsecured, interest bearing at ¥ 4,100,000 TR Z TN\ fﬁ = ﬂ
Prime Rate of Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation =+— H REAMLIREE LS
Limited per annum plus 100 basis point and was repayable by ) Az BEERN
six semi-annual instalments with the first instalment due on fE] H 15 R o NH
21st September 2008. E—IR - A
—+—HEE-
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates approximate their B ME S ARRRZIEEERELS 88
respective fair values. BARERSE -
The net carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to associates are JRE U/ {5F Bt 4 R R IR B2 R R T LA R 51 & B
denominated in the following currencies: REN
The Group The Company
AEH eI
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RPAE —TT)\F —RBAE —TT)\F
HKS$°000 _HK$°000 HK$°000 _HK$°000
BETT AEETRT HEETFr AEETR
Euro B 22 80,964 - 79,022 -
Hong Kong dollar Pk 463 5,756 6,387 13
Renminbi AR 20,066 7,591 — —

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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&6 M Ok I B

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21 PR HEESEE zER
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
ZEENF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 _HK$000
BT T BT
Interests in jointly controlled FiT{h £t H = %U b5
entities, including goodwill Z *E o BEEE 383,508 264,745
Amounts due from jointly JFE Ui K () 2 ] £ ZE 1R 5K
controlled entities (note b) (B 5 b) 424,837 240,820
The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled EAEEERBRE HRZERCEZ M
entities related to the Group’s interests is set out below: BERBEIHAT :
2009 2008
—BBRAF —EBET)\F
HK$000 _HK$°000
BETT BETT
Current assets mMEEE 813,429 602,144
Non-current assets JEMEE E 222,114 134,703
Current liabilities mEBIE (525,779) (321,895)
Non-current liabilities FEREBAR (159,970) (150,420)
349,794 264,532
Revenue Wezm 218,758 183,541
Expenses, including taxation S (BiEHIE) (230,114) (180,632)
Notes: Bt 5
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities at 31st (@ R=F 2 jl% = R= TL —H ?(35 ZHE
March 2009 are set out in note 55. SRR ER - BERMI S5
(b)  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest- (b) PRI R 1 IR KTy ﬂﬁ ECiIN

free and repayable on demand, except for amounts due from jointly
controlled entities of HK$14,020,000 (2008: HK$15,545,000) which
bear interest at the rates ranging from 110% to 115% (2008: 110% to
115%) of prevailing market rates per annum quoted by The People’s
Bank of China and the average effective interest rate of the balances as
at 31st March 2009 was 6.11% (2008: 6.57%) per annum. The carrying
amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities approximate
their respective fair values and are denominated in Renminbi.

MIZESREE - r’ﬂéuﬁz P25l 1 E iR
mﬁé’%uozoooom(—ff)\i:7%”#’5
1w%mwﬁ&¢lAEﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
MHEEMEN110%E115%( ZFF )\ F:
110% % 115%) 5t 2. - &Hﬁ/\ijjli
—A=1+— EIZ EFEAFHERENE
2%611% —TTN\EFE :657%) ° UL

Rl ERE Zmﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁtﬂﬂﬁ{é
$H C WIAARBE BEN -

H B
it if?‘tii #
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March 2009 comprise:

22 THHEZRE

R_ZEZNF=RA=+—HZA#HLEE

ZREBRE
The Group The Company
AEE EYN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —TT/\F —BBRE —TI\F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETRT EBETT HB¥TRT BETT
Unlisted investments, FLEHERE
at fair value: BARME:
— equity securities N e 19,970 17,601 19,970 17,565
— private funds (note) —ALEEs (fiz) 223,543 274,961 206,274 182,219
243,513 292,562 226,244 199,784
Unlisted equity securities, FELETRAES
at cost less impairment BECAHIRIRE 215 662 - -
243,728 293,224 226,244 199,784

Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following

AHEEZRETATIEE REM

currencies:
The Group The Company
rE PN

2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAF —TENF ZBBEAF —TITN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BBt B¥Ix  ABETH
Euro IR 7% 32,054 44,079 32,054 38,580
Hong Kong dollar ok 20,185 18,227 19,970 17,565
US dollar =TT 180,112 230,882 167,995 143,639
Others Hh 11,377 36 6,225 =
243,728 293,224 226,244 199,784

Note: B &E -

The fair value of the private funds is determined based on the quoted market
prices of the underlying listed investments and fair value of the unlisted
investments is determined based on financial models (such as discounted cash
flow model) on the funds.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBEREME
INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23 RERRREAREEEZRE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March 2009 RN-_TTHE=A=+—8 RIBFE
comprise: BRARBEREZRERE
The Group The Company
ES Y | ENN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAE —ETN\F ZEBETRE ZTTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BE¥TT B¥TR  BETR
Listed investments: EmRE
Held for trading HIEE Bz
— debt securities —EBES 69,459 57,483 16,157 =
— equity securities listed —BBZ £ m
in Hong Kong N 4,249 121,895 4,249 84,688
— equity securities —Hih5 2 £
listed overseas N 23,513 70,417 - 52,996
— exchange-traded funds —RGMEEES - 8,704 - 8,704
97,221 258,499 20,406 146,388
Unlisted investments: ELEMIRE :
Held for trading HIEEEFi%
— equity linked notes — R B EEE - 49,278 - 13,104
— mutual and hedge funds —BERHBNES 21,840 165,520 19,172 116,484
— money market funds —EEmIEES - 167,712 - 167,712
Designated upon initial recognition R FJIE HEZR 5 15 € 73
— debt securities —BBES 27,436 125,863 13,601 60,033
— structured deposits —EBEFER 45,807 127,351 - =
95,083 635,724 32,773 357,333
192,304 894,223 53,179 503,721
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  {E¥ & & 2 91T
Non-current assets FRBEE 27,704 134,005 - -
Current assets mEBEE 164,600 760,218 53,179 503,721
192,304 894,223 53,179 503,721
The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on the £ MREZ AR BETIREER B §:Q 2 Ffr 2
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges and the Mm% B A8 i }% 7E M 3E J: mikE&Ez
unlisted investments are determined based on financial models or AARENZYFEERNEE B2 EXRE
with reference to quoted prices from relevant financial institutions. BRAM S 2 R(E -
Unlisted investments include structured deposits of the Group of % EBZIEET Tﬁ\; 3 ’P] b 45,807,000
HK$45,807,000 (2008: HK$127,351,000), whose fair values are T(ZE =N\ 4 B8 127,351,00070) 2
affected by the changes in market price of specific equity securities or & % EREFN . ii\ DRABEXFERANEFH
market interest rate. ZIGERTMIEHEZE -
HIBREBARARA
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23 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23 REZKREAABEEZRE®
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or REZRIZAREERRE 2RENIREE

loss are denominated in the following currencies: TIA TP E R S8BT -

The Group The Company
REE ¥
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —ZTTN\FE ZBZTRE —ZTTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Euro (7§73 - 37,351 - 29,302
Hong Kong dollar B 4,249 121,895 4,249 84,687
US dollar ETT 159,199 557,065 48,930 348,866
Others =i} 28,856 177,912 - 40,866
192,304 894,223 53,179 503,721
24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 BEHPYE
The Group
REE

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
At 1st April R HA—H - -
Additions NE 166,532 =
Transfer from other non-current assets ERHMIERHEE 69,892 —
As 31st March W=A=+—H 236,424 =

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B4 1 B A it
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 25 HMERBEE
The Group
&
2009 2008
—2BAFE —TT)\F
HK$°000 \ HK$’000
BMTR A% Tro
Deposits for a property MEBREB ZFLES
development project (note a) (M5t a) 152,835 252,198
Deposits for a joint venture property EEVMERREBEE 2 HFLERS
development project (note b) (P EED) - 125,286
Others Hth 34,809 25,703
187,644 403,187

Notes: B 5E -

(a)  The balance related to deposits paid for a property development project (a) HEBRBEATBEEMNERETAN—EY
in Changchun, Jilin Province, the PRC. During the year, balance of XEREAZFHES - FA - &0
HK$69,892,000 was transferred to properties under development. 69,892,000 T E E R A Y) % °

(b)  The deposits for a joint venture property development project of b)) REZZTZN\F=A=1+—HREEMX
RMB112,870,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$125,286,000) as BRIER 277 H %ﬁ/i\ A K 112,870,000
at 31st March 2008 has been reclassified to amount due from a jointly 7T (5B 4975 5 125,286,000 7_E> ER R
controlled entity upon the formation of a joint venture to undertake TEAMRLMA B LR BB
the project. Details of the related arrangements are set out in the AW AREH CERR - BRARHE
announcement made by the Company dated 13th January 2009. HIEERARRBBMAZZSTNGF—A

T=RZRER-

INVENTORIES 26 FE

The Group
RE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$°000 \ HK$’000
BET T BT

Raw materials R4 39,680 85,693

Finished goods 2K mh 135,540 204,236

Consumables FER IR 26,849 48,788

) 202,069 338,717

Reclassified as held for sale (note 32(a)) EFHBEAFE (HiF320)) (51,950) -

150,119 338,717

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$832,071,000 (2008: HK$1,028,090,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value of
HK$46,298,000 (2008: HK$106,782,000) for the purpose of securing

banking facilities granted to the Group.

GFERABER A H I 5 A SRR
751 832,071,000 L (ZEENF B
1,028,090,00077:) o

IR TE 428 575 15 46,298,000 T ( — T )\
78 1 106,782,000 70 ) < F & B {F K - 1F
BRTAEERITEEZER -

HIBEEEARA
= TR e E
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27 PROPERTIES FOR SALE 27 FEWx
The Group
A%

2009 2008
—2BRE T N\F
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BETT BT

Unamortised prepaid land leases AREHEMN T MBS
— in Hong Kong —RNEB 36,618 34,609
— outside Hong Kong —?\Eé‘%f‘;% BN T 8,619 13,540
Development costs R B B AR 152,194 210,796
197,431 258,945
Properties for sale include the Group’s share of interests in jointly /Tir% ) XOEASEELLRITHEE
controlled assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,623,000 Vs H VPEE, {E &8 ?q% 18,623,000 7T

(2008: HK$18,870,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to

HK$34,974,000 (2008: HK$64,634,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$62,675,000 (2008: HK$92,075,000) for the purpose of

securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

—~

—EENF B M18,870,0007_t) °

B85 & 5 A BHE R AW ’%%%Fj
7 1349740000 ( = F T )\ F : B
64,634,000 7T ) ©

IR E 42 (B &% 62,675 OOOE(;ﬁﬁ/\ii
75 192,075,000 7T ) Z FE M EE EE A -
f&?%?%%$%ﬁﬁﬁ1§%52%{% o

H%

28 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 28 FEWER - FHEZRERBMANRIE
The Group The Company
K%M PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EThE —TTN\F ZBBAE —ITITN\F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BYT T BETT BETR BT
Trade debtors B 5 E IR 512,124 701,562 - =
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (23,937) (26,897) - -
Trade debtors, net B REIIRGR - F R
(note a) (MfEEa) 488,187 674,665 - =
Other debtors, deposits H h fE IR 5K
and prepayments 7 & e RIEMRIE
(note b) (F=ED) 435,650 584,286 11,427 18,811
Consideration receivables for HENE AR ER
disposal of interests T
in subsidiaries (note c) (Fg3Ec) 191,947 - 191,947 -
Retention receivables J& U AR B8 1R 3K 229,853 191,075 - =
1,345,637 1,450,026 203,374 18,811
Reclassified as held for sale ENDBRAER
(note 32(a)) hg=2 3z(a)) (148,722) = - =
1,196,915 1,450,026 203,374 18,811
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28 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 28 BRI - FHEREREN A
(continued) (®)
Notes: B &
(a)  The Group has established different credit policies for customers in () AEEHXBERLOEBESEELTF
each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade ZEEBR - #TESEFTFHEEH
debtors was 60 days. 60K ©

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors at the balance sheet

B ANEEE S EKIRSK 2 Rk

date is as follows: fran T

2009 2008

—EENEF —EEB)N\EF

HKS$’000 HK$°000

BT BETT

0 — 60 days 0—60X 401,268 520,322
61 — 90 days 61—90 K 21,313 52,799
Over 90 days #6190 K 65,606 101,544
488,187 674,665

At 31st March 2009, gross trade debtors balances totalling RZZTTZNF=A=+—HB:  kKEH
HK$25,362,000 (2008: HK$28,904,000) were individually determined BREEXF ZEBIRREERERS
to be impaired, which were related to customers that were in financial 7B 25,362,000 L( — BT )\ F: F
difficulties. The management assessed that only a portion of the trade 28,904,0007C ) * E AR HETE & F
debtors balances is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific WA REBRE G FHHERK
provision for impairment of HK$23,937,000 (2008: HK$26,897,000) B35 E 5 MWK Bt »
was recognised as at 31st March 2009. The Group does not hold —EZNF=ZA=+—ARRERER
any collateral over these balances. The movement in provision for 7 #23,937,000C( Z T Z )\ F : B
impairment during the year is as follows: 26,897,0007T) ° A& Bt % A R
FEEAERR - FA - REREBZZ

T :

2009 2008

—EFNF —ZEENEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BETIT

At 1st April RIMA—H 26,897 27,704
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 6,249 2,065
Write back of impairment loss B BREEE (1,267) (1,805)
Uncollectable amounts written off WEH TR E 2 & 5 (133) (1,777)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 2 (501) 710
Disposal of subsidiaries B EH B A A (7,308) -
At 31st March KR=A=+—H 23,937 26,897

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

FERER TREZE S RRIRRNZ RER
DT

2009 2008

ZEBAF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BETT BT T

Neither past due nor impaired f 4% 360 B sl R B 222,936 337,064
Less than 60 days past due % EA D0 60 K 186,317 210,682
61 — 90 days past due #ER61—90 K 16,252 41,999
Over 90 days past due %0 #7681 90 K 61,257 82,913
Amount past due but not impaired B B RORE 263,826 335,594
Total R 486,762 672,658

HIBEREEARAT
=TT FER
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28 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)  Trade debtors balances that are neither past due nor impaired
mainly relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s
customers for more than six months with no history of default in the

28

EWIRR - FHESREANRIE
(#)

GERNC)

(@) WAMSHEZEIEMERESEE

REEXSNEEBBNEANETS R
EIERFEZ AL HRA ©

past.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated ZIN % g 5) JE IR R 2 MR TEN (B T3 LA R 3

in the following currencies: B REN
2009 2008
—RBAF —EENE
HKS$’000 . H\K$’0(§)
ik i P2 BETT
Australian dollar BT 1,627 51,184
Euro B 78 - 83,037
Hong Kong dollar kil 267,228 322,031
Macau Pataca RFT M 120,055 84,117
Renminbi AR® 8,342 10,060
US dollar e 18,611 20,924
Others HAh 72,324 103,312
488,187 674,665

(b)  Other debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group and of the
Company include a loan made to an independent third party of
HK$7,363,000 (2008: HK$7,780,000) which is unsecured, bears
interest at the US Prime Rate (2008: US Prime Rate) per annum
and repayable by four installments of which the final installment is
repayable on 30th April 2009. As at 31st March 2009, provision for
impairment loss of HK$5,334,000 (2008: Nil) was recognised.

(¢) Consideration receivables for disposal of interests in subsidiaries of the
Group and of the Company are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
Except for an amount of HK$58,275,000 which is denominated
in US dollar and repayable by September 2009, the balance of
HK$133,672,000 is denominated in HK dollar and repayable by March

2010.

The carrying amounts of debtors and deposits at 31st March 2009

approximate their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is the Group’s share
of receivables of HK$205,000 (2008: HK$332,000) in relation to

jointly controlled assets.

As at 31st March 2008, charges were created on the Group’s
debtors, deposits and prepayments with a total carrying value of
HK$53,150,000 for the purpose of securing banking facilities granted

to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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(b) AEBEARQNFZEMEBUIRE - FH
e RENFEBERN—BBLE=H
EH 2 BB % 7,363,000 T ( — 2= )\
F: B#7,780,00070) 7% B RUEIKE
Tﬁ%%@%ﬂ%(:%%)\? %3

Bl s B EAE)FHEGE - 35 0 H
B RE—HAER_ZTZTNLFENA
=tHEZ R-_TETAE=A=1+—
H - BRI E LR 5B 5,334,000 7T
(ZZZTNF &) -

() AEERAARMNHENBDRAER
CRERBMREAERBRRE - BIUAE
TABUIBR-_ZTTAENAEE
2 % BB 158,275,000 T A 4 BA B I
133,672,000 TC A BB BB AL WER =T
—ZTF=-ALKREE-

R-ZBEAE=A=1+—H " EKIKEX

FEFHiEZe ZkREEEE RN EEE -

EUWIER  THESEBENREAR

BAEERERZEHEEMMGZEYK

TR 205000 T(Z 2T )\ F: B

e
&

ZZNF=ZA=+—"H8 AEER

V8 7 {87 1 53,150,000 7E 2 FE I IR 3 - 15
Hine BENKAD R - (AR
AEEBTREZIER -
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 29 BENIREREFKRE X
>, &
CONTRACT WORK ZFRIE
The Group
rE
2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF
HK$000 _HK$°000
BETT BT T
Contracts in progress at REEHZBEIHRED :
the balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred BE EZ B KK AN 4,684,138 3,509,791
Recognised net losses BERERFEE (214,686) (44,633)
4,469,452 3,465,158
Less: Progress billings T S B (4,841,533) (3,413,417)
. (372,081) 51,741
Reclassified as held for sale BN BEAFE (45,347) =
(417,428) 51,741
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBERELTR -
Amounts due from customers BEERRBEEN
for contract work included ZHAEXH TIREMR
in current assets P WH Z A 116,753 312,422
Amounts due to customers BEEERABAEENRN
for contract work included ZHAEHITIRER
in current liabilities BEREXf B (534,181) (260,681)
(417,428) 51,741

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted
to HK$11,424,000 (2008: HK$7,488,000) and were included in
creditors.

MENTRURERFEMNRABK
11,424,000 70 (=T )\ F : B 7,488,000
Jo) W E BIEREMIRRA -

HIBEREEARAT 119
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30 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 TEMBIA
The Group The Company
AEE KA
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZRENF —TINF ZBENF —TINF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets/(liabilities) PTHEFBIA Z
in respect of derivative s EE/ (&)
financial instruments
— Interest rate swaps (note a) —Fl == 2 (T a) (80,397) 175 (80,397) 175
— Foreign currency —EHINES K
forward contracts (note b) (BED) (157) (3,089) (266) (4,152)
— Derivative note (note c) —MTHETEZE (M - 1,758 - 1,758
— Accumulators (note d) — 2R E R (FIwEd - (28,314) - (28,314)
(80,554) (29,470) (80,663) (30,533)
Reclassified as held for sale ENOBRREE (49) - - -
(80,603) (29,470) (80,663) (30,533)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: 5t ¥ = Fl i DT A&

Current assets mBEE 5,893 9,460 5,821 8,381
Current liabilities mEaE (86,496) (38,930) (86,484) (38,914)
(80,603) (29,470) (80,663) (30,533)

Notes: Bt 3E

(a)  Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and of the Company () AEBERARAAAHIBFNEERR
with a total notional amount of HK$1,256,125,000 (2008: TE F & 5 1 [A])F B FI) K i 2 2 B
HK$1,026,760,000) were entered to swap floating interest rate to Bl FIEREHER  BEERSER
fixed interest rate or to swap between different floating rates. These 7 85 1,256,125,000 7T (Z T T )\ 5F : B
contracts will mature within the period from 24th July 2009 to 14th 1,026,760,0007C) ° WE A HBFE N —_ZFF
October 2014. NEELA-+MAE-"Z-—NF+ A

T E HE AR -

(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and of the b)) AEEREAR ﬂﬁT\HM\MVET—%Hz@&
Company with a total notional amount up to HK$78,860,000 (2008: EMRXEEMmMET 22ZHINESLD -
HK$195,420,000) and HK$33,899,000 (2008: HK$25,428,000) H &% % 585 5l 7378 % 78,860,000 T
respectively were entered to swap various foreign currencies to other (ZZZNEF: BE 195 420,000 7T ) }&
cross currencies. These contracts will mature within the period from 7 #533,899,000C( — T T )\ F: B
6th April 2009 to 28th September 2009. 25,428,000 70) ° It & AMBRZZEN

FMBARBE_ZZAFAA-+/N\R
HAFR A ZIE

(c)  The Group and the Company entered into various option contracts () AEERARFGHETREABEREE
in relation to underlying stock index and listed securities which were FREmERZBESH LEEGHE
called before 31st March 2009. RZBEZNF=A=+—HFEMQ -

(d) Accumulators are knock-out options (which are exercised (d) ZBitRZHEABIAKBETESEE)
automatically and periodically), under which the Group and the E AT IR AN B R AR RS A
Company will be entitled to receive the underlying shares or assets at EZ %€ 2 17 152 (B Y B A BA AR 17 3k & £ -
an agreed strike price. Accumulator contracts which were effective as RZTTN\F=ZRA=+—BPRERZ
at 31st March 2008 were either matured or terminated by the Group E E‘Hﬂﬁ%‘% HHEA H D R E R E B i A

during the year.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair
value of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices
from counterparties. The carrying amounts of derivatives are
denominated in the following currencies:

30

PTEBK TR @
ikmilﬂ?% ﬁﬁZ@ﬁﬁ%%
S o

L@&gﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁi
T AT AR A

The Group The Company
rE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBRE —ET)N\F ZBEAE —ZTN\F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT E¥TT E¥Tr EETR
Hong Kong dollar B (82,427) (16,152) (82,427) (16,152)
US dollar ETT 2,050 (9,445) 2,041 (10,508)
Others Hit (226) (3,873) (277) (3,873)
(80,603) (29,470) (80,663) (30,533)
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 31 TRERRE
Balance comprise cash held, short term bank deposits with an ERBEERS  BRRHEE A=
original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with Bk AR 2 5 B8R 1712 3 K% 17 A Bt 7& ik
financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets BAEO Ziﬁ‘i\ HEEEZIRBEHE
approximate their fair values. ANAERE
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in WITEELRES ZIRAEEJTIA T &I
the following currencies: =1 i{ VA
The Group The Company
ER Y EONS
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEERF —_ZET)N\F ZBEAF —ZTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT AE¥TT B¥Tr BE¥TRT
Hong Kong dollar ki 869,406 162,206 545,081 13,481
Renminbi AREE 322,772 262,015 - -
Singapore dollar 27 h03% TT 66,984 81,628 - 20,408
US dollar ETT 394,916 549,554 30,798 72,388
Others Hit 155,765 135,742 13,686 14,264
1,809,843 1,191,145 589,565 120,541
Reclassified as held BN DR
for sale (note 32(a)) (Pt 5 32(a)> (78,237) — - —
1,731,606 1,191,145 589,565 120,541
As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s bank balances of R-TBEZNF=ZA=1+—"H AEEZ
HK$137,640,000 (2008: HK$6,277,000) were pledged to banks for RIT A 1T 575 ¥ 137,640,000 70 (=T Z )\
the purpose of securing banking facilities granted for the Group. ﬁz LB 6,277,000 7E) EHEMTIRT - E
RETAEBERITEEZER -
The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits of the Group REBRAQNA ZEHRITERZER
and of the Company was 0.4% (2008: 1.7%) and 0.2% (2008: 1.9%) FRED R A04% (ZFZEN E 8 1L 7%)
per annum respectively, these deposits have an average maturity of K02 (ZZZT\F :1.9%) ' ZFHF K
15 days (2008: 14 days) and 9 days (2008: 4 days) respectively. ZEHEBHAS AR (ZEE)N\F
UR)FIR(ZEFNF 4K) -

HIBREEAFRAR]
—TTNFER
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32 ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP

Disposal of the Group’s 49% interest in CHK Group

32 HEEECEE &6

HEAEERELEBEE Z49% E 5

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28th November R Tﬁ_gg/\i +T—AZ+N\BZEE&E
2008, the Group disposed of its 49% interest in Chevalier (HK) Wi AEEBR -_EZENF=-"HA=1+—
Limited, its subsidiaries and associates engaged in lifts and escalators HEEREABRKEERBEB 2 A+
business (the “CHK Group”) for a consideration of HK$668,360,000 (BHB)ERAA AffEAR RBEA
(subject to adjustment) on 31st March 2009. Pursuant to the same A(TELHFBEE]) 249%Em - RE
agreement, the Group has committed to further dispose of 2% 5 75 15 668,360,000 7T (7] 8 2 ) ° iR 1% @
interest in the CHK Group on or before 31st March 2010 for a — W AEEEABER - —ZEF=A
consideration of HK$27,280,000 (subject to adjustment). Upon =+ —H =k 2z Al AR BB 27,280,000 7T
further disposal of the 2% interest, assets and liabilities of the CHK (AIAR)BHERELTEFEER Z 2%
Group will be de-consolidated and the 49% interest in the CHK meoNHEZ2nERE  HLHES
Group will be accounted for as an associate of the Group. CEERBEBTEREST AARNERE
B mELTEEEEZ49%E 0855
REBZBERT] -
As at 31st March 2009, the assets and liabilities related to the CHK R-EFTNE=A=1+—H HL+FH
Group had been presented as held for sale. EECZEENEBERYABEE -
(a)  Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale ) N"HEAFEZHEEENEENAE
HK$’000
BETT
Property, plant and equipment W - BE REE 9,088
Prepaid lease payments (note 16) a8 & I8 (i A 16) 3,650
Goodwill (note 17) EE V) 3,259
Inventories (note 26) FE (MizE26) 51,950
Debtors, deposits and prepayments (note 28) FEUUIR K ~ 17 e R I8 70E (M 5k 28) 148,722
Amounts due from customers for contract work RELNITRREME S YE 2 KB 88,166
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA 56
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 1,565
Prepaid tax TETHIE 949
Bank balances and cash (note 31) RITEFE MR (M5E31) 78,237
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale PERREZHERENEE 385,642
Amounts due to customers for contract work WE SN TIRERE P T 2 RIE (42,819)
Current income tax liabilities EHFREH AR (1,841)
Derivative financial instruments ?ﬁ ERBTA (7)
Creditors, bills payable, EAIRR - BNRE BFARS
deposits and accruals (note 33) &l }L_EE & A (fi5E33) (103,741)
Bank borrowings (note 35) RTTIE R (M =E35) (51,714)
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE S S AR AE AR X RISR IR (77,516)
Deferred tax liabilities ERERE IE =K (78)
(277,716)
Add: Amount eliminated in group consolidation mn: KREGESREHESRE 77,516
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale D EAFEZ HEESENEE (200,200)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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32 ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP

(continued)

(b)

HEEBZEE

(%)

32

/afE

s

Gain on disposal of 49% interest in the CHK Group (b) HERELTHEBEEZ49%Em
HK$’000
BT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREATIAA A
Cash received BEUIR & 534,688
Cash consideration receivable FEWIR @ RE 133,672
Less: Professional fees and expenses B BEEBARIH (6,877)
661,483
Less: Consolidated net assets disposed of B BEHEZEEBEFE
Assets of disposal group HEEBNEE 385,642
Liabilities of disposal group HESENEE (277,716)
Retained profits as R=ZZEZNF=A=+—H
at 31st March 2009 of disposal group (note c) HEEBR 2 RB&F (MiEc) (26,586)
- 81,340
Consolidated net assets retained (51%) REZHGEEEEFE(1%) (41,483)
39,857
Gain on disposal of 49% HEETEAEE 249% Ewm 2
interest in the CHK Group (note 7) U =5 (F 5E7) 621,626
Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the (c) BEAEEHEWEL ZHz £6
acquirer, the retained profits of the disposal group as at 5 ﬁéig ZNFE=H Ej’* Bz
31st March 2009 are at the account of the Group. The 1%%3 it ﬂ% REBAE - ZEREB
retained profits will be declared and distributed to the Group St Al HQJ i = N E\ﬂ =t+—H
subsequent to 31st March 2009 and prior to further disposal of f% &5% - }/F k= ﬁ THEAEEEZ2%
2% interest in the CHK Group. B EREDIKTAREE -

HIBEREEARAT
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33 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 33 EARM - BNEE - FARSE
ACCRUALS RBRRER
The Group The Company
XEE VWG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE ZETNF “EENE —ZEIN\F
HK$°000 i H”K$’0(¥) HK$’000 i HK$’O@
RMTr  A%Tr  mMII  #ETn
Trade creditors B 5 R IRK
and bills payable AR 233,213 449,571 - —
Accrued contract costs BHIKAZTERER 130,556 274,428 - =
Retention payables P& R BE IR 5K 131,743 128,414 - -
Other creditors, deposits HibERIRE
and accruals GEAEe RIERER 415,186 447,800 14,317 7,322
Consideration payables for FE1SS 1‘& (i
— Step-up acquisition of — I % — A
interest in an associate H”‘ N s 95,047 21,479 - -
— Acquisition of interest — g A\ —fA
in an associate RN o - 3 86,000 = - =
1,091,745 1,321,692 14,317 7,322
Reclassified as held for sales ENOBAFE
(note 32(a)) (B 5% 32(a)) (103,741) - -
288,004 | 1,321,692 __14317 | 7322
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable at REEB CAEEE SR 1 IR 30 K2 JE A+t
the balance sheet date is as follows: ERZIRBROTAOT
2009 2008
—EENEF ZEENF
HK$000 _HK$°000
BETT BT T
0 — 60 days 0—60K 189,881 360,652
61 — 90 days 61—90 K 4,450 26,030
Over 90 days #1190 K 38,882 62,889
233,213 449,571

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable
are denominated in the following currencies:

33

BEUENR - BNRE - FAERS
REREM @

TAEEE 5 BN IRKRENREZIRE
BTATIE 535?5@1

2009 2008
ZEENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’O(K)
BMTRX  BEER
Euro B 7R 1,048 107,400
Hong Kong dollar ke 136,540 198,756
US dollar X7 6,464 15,136
Others Hith 89,161 128,279
233,213 449,571
Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals is the BRER  BRNEE  FARS &?ﬁi\ e
Group’s share of liabilities of HK$66,000 (2008: HK$95,000) in 2 /F]%ZK% B AT 5B R ERESE
relation to jointly controlled assets. =B Z%J% 66,000 T (ZZZ )\ 4F
75 % 95,0007T) °
The carrying amounts of trade creditors, bills payable and other E’\\t: ZENF=A=+—H BZEN
creditors at 31st March 2009 approximate their fair values. R B EE P H At JE T RIE 2 Wk E
BEEEQNARERE -
OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS 34 RRRBRRE
The Group rE
Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually TIHEBER 2 RBRE—KIE—F
settled within one year: NAEE -
Employee compensation 1E 8 %%
Motor third party liability MEE=FEEMHE
Public liability NRBEE
The claims development, net of reinsurance, of the above business P ERREZEEZE (K BRER)
claims is disclosed as follows: WEMAT :
Underriting year RRER 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total
ZERCE “B2-F CREME CERRE CEE5F CERtF CERN\E ZBEAE h

HSWO  BKSOD HESON HKSWD  HKSWO  BKSODHESOW  HSWD  HKSWO
BT EETn  A%Tn BETn BETn A%Tn  BETn  BETn  ARTR
Estimate of cumulative claims FRESES:
Atend of accident year ENERRER W63 1775 207000 L4651 7790 60371 88767 39575
One year later —Ef 75,307 87985 101084 126,184 80,471 87,731 84,866 -
Two years later Mkl 89510 13427 1483 1L07T 70097 78949 - -
Three years later E 104263 133568 LGS 101303 74595 - - -
Four years later mER 101745 13660 101705 107,859 - = = -
Five years later TEk 102894 120798 104090 = = = = -
Si years later NEfR 97609 12348 - - - - - -
Seven years later +ER 97,611 = = = = = = -
Cumulative claims ZiRE 61l 12348 10409 10789 7455 78949 84866 39575 709,893
Cumulative payments ZiFENTE 9739 1228 103163 10501 59295 38989 14398 26 5473
Claims outstanding RREE 2 130 97 2848 15300 3990 70468 37313 167,158

HIBEREEARAT
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35 BANK BORROWINGS 35 #RITEMN
The Group The Company
r5E LN
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBENE  —TINF ZBENE —BR)\F
HK$’000 _HK$'000 HK$’000 _HK§000
BETR BETT BETT BETT
Bank borrowings RITEHN 1,844,724 2,232,534 923,000 1,410,000
Bank overdrafts RITEX 928 2,671 37 1,270
) 1,845,652 2,235,205 923,037 1,411,270
Reclassified as held for sale (note 32(a)) BMABARE (iE32) (51,714) = - =
1,793,938 2,235,205 923,037 1,411,270
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BRZERBIMT :
Within one year —ER 826,637 723,584 327,037 158,270
More than one year but —FEN AR
not exceeding two years B M 130,091 404,557 77,000 317,000
More than two years but MEAEBR
not exceeding five years (note) BARE (M) 570,387 996,489 506,000 921,000
More than five years (note) BBAF () 266,823 110,575 13,000 15,000
1,793,938 2,235,205 923,037 1,411,270
Less: Amount due within one A R —F R H
year disclosed under current WERE B EARE
liabilities x| (826,637) (723,584) (327,037) (158,270)
967,301 1,511,621 596,000 1,253,000
Represented by: sk
Secured AHEA 404,612 350,555 23,000 -
Unsecured Eiiigid 1,389,326 1,884,650 900,037 1,411,270
1,793,938 2,235,205 923,037 1,411,270
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their RITERZIREEREERABERS
fair values as majority of the Group’s borrowings carried interest at EE j(“B D 2 A& TR J«A/ BN EEE -
floating rate. The bank borrowings are denominated in the following RITERTIATIEB REL
currencies:
The Group The Company
AEH AR
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAF —TITENF ZBBRAFE —ZTTNF
HK$°000 _HK$°000 HK$°000 _HK$°000
BETT AEETRT AT EETR
Australian dollar YR IT - 64,532 - —
Canadian dollar MmERT 25,926 53,432 - —
Euro &R 22 73,308 210,177 - -
Hong Kong dollar kit ) 1,229,279 1,646,520 923,000 1,411,270
Renminbi AR 461,888 249,750 - -
US dollar e 3,537 10,794 37 -
1,793,938 2,235,205 923,037 1,411,270
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 35 RITER@
The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings at the REZBRITERZERFANERNT :
balance sheet date were as follows:
The Group The Company
& AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAF —TE)N\F ZZBAF —ZTT)N\F
Australian dollar JEIT - 9.8% - -
Canadian dollar MmEXRT 5.0% 5.0% - -
Euro B 7% 2.0% 5.0% - -
Hong Kong dollar B 0.8% 2.2% 0.8% 2.2%
Renminbi AR® 6.4% 7.4% - -
US dollar ey 3.3% 4.6% - -
The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest rate changes and the RITERZNERPRTREEBRHR
contractual repricing dates are below six months. NEAAT -
Bank borrowings of HK$404,612,000 (2008: HK$350,555,000) are SRITEFOE 404,612,000 L( =TT\ 5
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 14, ok 350,555,000 T TIARE B & E R
15, 16, 26, 27, 28 and 31. o R4 - 15016 2 26~ 27 ~ 28 K31
M EE -
Note: Bt 5
As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings of HK$200,000,000 and RZEZNF=A=+— =N REES RIZA
HK$189,308,000 which were repayable after 2 years but not exceeding 5 years RAERETEBAFRRAFREEREZ
and after 5 years, respectively were repaid subsequently prior to July 2009. 7 200,000,000 7T K2 /& 5 189,308,000 7T #R 17
Except for an amount of HK$73,308,000 which is denominated in Euro, the ERER=_ZEZENEF L H Bl E\ 2o BB
others are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. 73,308,000 7T, TRNREREMLI - EME
FIGLABKE BB -
OTHER LOANS 36 H SRR
The Group
&
2009 2008
“BBRAF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
The other loans are repayable as follows: HEMfER 2 EEBRMT
Within one year —FR - 315
More than one year but not —F LA E
exceeding two years BB M E - 326
More than two years but not MF DA £
exceeding five years BTBARF - 1,049
More than five years i hF - 9
- 1,699
Less: Amount due within one year disclosed & : 7 —4F A EI| HA 3 75 /7% &)
under current liabilities BEABREZEH - (315)
- 1,384
As at 31st March 2008, the loans were denominated in Swedish miiiﬂﬁgﬂzf*E'%%@%
Kroner, unsecured, interest-free and repayable by six annual VA 3 £ 53 BA ﬁi{g e mﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬂ 1%3‘2( ’
installments, the last of which falls due in 2013. During the year, the % _ﬂ B 7N HEFE = ° Eii 1& ;Z & r\?ﬁ’\
loans were disposed of upon the disposal of 75% interest in the CPT 5 ,t'_., —E—=%F- Edb ! Z %ﬁiat KER
Group. HECPTREBEZ 75% EamRFHE -
HIBREEAFRAR]

=TT FER
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37 OTHER PAYABLE

As at 31st March 2008, other payable represented subscription
payable on an available-for-sale investment, which was interest-free
and paid in March 2009.

38 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 26th July 2006, the Company issued a semi-annual 2.125%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$450,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”). Each bondholder has the option to convert
the Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company with a par value
of HK$1.25 each at a conversion price of HK$11.20, which is adjusted
to HK$9.49 and HK$9.35 as a result of the approval for the payment
of the final dividend of an amount of HK$0.29 per share for the
year ended 31st March 2008 and interim dividend of an amount
of HK$0.055 per share for the period ended 30th September 2008
respectively. The adjustment became effective from 26th September
2008 and 6th January 2009 respectively. Conversion price will be
further adjusted upon approval of dividend in future.

Unless previously converted or purchased or redeemed, each
Convertible Bond shall be redeemed by the Company at 121.30% of
its principal amount together with accrued interest on 28th July 2011
(the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds).

On 28th July 2009 (the “Put Option Date”), the holder of Convertible
Bond will have the right at such holder’s option, to require the
Company to redeem all or some of the Convertible Bonds of such
holder on the Put Option Date at 113.1% of their principal amount
together with accrued interest up to but excluding the redemption
date.

The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds have to
be split into liability and derivative components. Upon issuance of
the Convertible Bonds, the fair value of the derivative component is
determined using an option price model; and this amount is carried
as a liability until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the liability component and
is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative component is
measured at fair value on the issuance date and any subsequent
changes in fair value of the derivative component as at the balance
sheet date are recognised in the income statement.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

38 AIRES )

Convertible Bonds recognised in the balance sheet as at 31st March

2009 are calculated as follows:

R-EZNF=A=+—HEELEAR
REERZ AT BRBRERAELT ¢

The Group The Company
xE ARTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETFT BETT
Liability component BEEH
At 1st April 2008 RZZEZN\FHA—H 381,275 428,933
Interest expenses FEX I 29,523 33,213
Liability component RZZTZENF=A
at 31st March 2009 =t—HZAERD 410,798 462,146
Derivative component PTETEZH
At 1st April 2008 RZZEZTNFMHA—H 2,755 3,100
Fair value adjustment N EFHE 27,733 31,200
Derivative component n= = TNFE=HA=1+—H
at 31st March 2009 ZETET RS 30,488 34,300

The effective interest rate for the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds is 9.8% (2008: 9.8%) per annum. As at 31st March
2009, Convertible Bonds with par value of HK$50,000,000 (2008:
HK$50,000,000) are held by a subsidiary of the Group.

BB 2 BEBRFEFEE9.8%
E:98%) c R-ETHE=
%‘i H & A7 50,000,000 7T

=
\$¢ > “#%50 000,000 7T ) Z A] ¥

L= PNCIESE oI

SHARE CAPITAL 39 A
2009 2008
—EENF —ZTENF
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BET T BETRT
Authorised: ETERRA
540,000,000 ordinary shares 540,000,000 A% & 78 A%
of HK$1.25 each 1R MBS % 1.25 7 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRABRA
277,564,090 (2008: 278,582,090) 277,564,090 A% (= Z = )\ 4F :
ordinary shares 278,582,090 % ) & i ik
of HK$1.25 each BREEBE 1257 346,955 348,228
During the year, 1,018,000 ordinary shares of the Company were F W RN RA R ERERE %4.39 TLE
repurchased at a total consideration of HK$4,738,000, including B 4817 2 M AR (B /% #5 4,738,000
transaction cost of HK$16,000, at the price per share between T(BERFHKA 75 & 16,000 7T ) & [B] A%
HK$4.39 and HK$4.81. All of the repurchased shares have been N \jélt 38 1% 1,018,000 % ° FT A B B iz 19
cancelled. BT

HIBEREEARAT
=TT FER
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40 RESERVES 40 f#fE
The Group RE
Capital Investment Otherassets  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
2t
o BARD  REEM KEEf; NEXR
R#EE ExRf fite i i HBRE REEA Bg
HKSOO)  HKSOO)  HKSOD)  HKSO0)  HKSOm)  HKSOm)  HKSom  HKSou
AR BMTR A%Tn E¥Tn  BETR  EMfn  ARTn  BRTn
(nqte a)
(Bita)
At Ist April 2007 R-ZZtFMA-A 47860 332,602 7,526 5617 1580 106544 1759123 2,645,093
Exchange difference on translation g ias E
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, BENTR ﬂ f %
associates and jointly controlled entities NERHME EZQ MERHER - - - - - 180,824 - 180,824
Change in fair value of e 2 RER
available-for-sale investments MEEE = = = 36,344 = = = 36,344
Total income recognised directly inequity ~ BN ERRALNABE - - - 36,344 - 180,824 - 217,168
Profit for the year FEE - - - - - - B0 0747
Total recognised income and EREER
expenses for the year WARS e - - - 36,344 - 180,824 230,747 447915
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - - (128148)  (128148)
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary R-ENEAR EENER
(noteb) ”(Mﬁfb) - I3 - - - - - Bt
Acquisition of additional interests ERHERAZ
in subsidiaries (note ) (M) - (2,330) - - - - - (2,330)
Premium on acquisition of further ,ﬁﬁ HEBAR 2 ERH
Interests in subsidiaries (note d) wEME) = _(2_,1_72) _____ = = = = - _(2_, I]Z)
At31st March 2008 R-FENF=A=1-H 47960 341,661 56 4191 1581 287368 186L722 2973919
Exchange difference on translation of BERNHEA
operations of overseas subsidiaries, BENARARRHEE
associates and jointly controlled entites HEBHE EOEARER - - - - - (555%) - (555%)
Change in fair value of AHRILE 7 REN
available-for-sale investments NiEEE - - - (64,409) - - - (64,409)
Fair value adjustments upon step-up i 5% —ABERF EREN
acquisition of interest in an associate NEAE - - - - 908 - - 908
Total (expense)/income recognised ERRNERED
directly in equity 2%/ % - - - (64409) 908 (55,538) - (19,039)
Profit for the year FRERN - - - - - - IBe 1356
Total recognised income and ERERR
expenses for the year WART L% - - - (64409) 908 (555%) 135634 16,59
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - - (9605 (96,055)
Repurchase of shares (note 39) ﬁ% BRI - - 1,273 - - - (4,738) (3,465)
Acquisition of additional interests KEREARZ
in subsidiaries (note c) TE # (Hskc) - 775 - - - - - 775
Disposal of 75% interest in CPT Group HECPTER 2 %R - - - - - (13,716) - (13,716)
At 315t March 2009 R-EENE=A=1-A 417,860 342,436 8,799 (22,448) 16,729 8114 1,896,563 2,878,053
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40 RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

(d)

The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in
the past comprising redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and
privatisation of Group entities.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group
placed 25,384,146 shares of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
(“CPHL”), a subsidiary of the Group, to independent third parties for
a gross proceed of HK$93,921,340. Pursuant to another subscription
agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group subscribed 25,384,146
newly issued shares of CPHL at a consideration of HK$93,921,340.
As a result of the share placing and subscription agreements, CPHL
effectively issued 25,384,146 additional shares to new shareholders of
CPHL for a net proceed of HK$92,046,000 and the Group’s interest in
CPHL was diluted from 56.70% to 50.02%. The dilution has resulted
in a gain of HK$13,566,000, which was accounted for directly in equity
for the year ended 31st March 2008.

During the year, the Group acquired additional interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, at a consideration of HK$17,618,000
(2008: HK$32,904,000). The difference between the consideration
and the Group’s additional share of the identifiable net assets of
these subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition of HK$775,000 (2008:
HK$2,330,000) was accounted for directly in equity.

On 2nd May 2007, the Company purchased certain subsidiaries and
businesses engaging in the computer and information communication
technology industry (“IT business”) from CPHL at an aggregate
consideration of HK$55,572,000. The Group effectively bought out
the remaining interests in the IT business from the minority interests
at a premium of HK$2,177,000, representing the difference between
the portion of cash consideration and share of net asset value of the
remaining interest, which was accounted for directly in equity for the
year ended 31st March 2008.

40

EAEIC)

B &

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

EHREITEREABREASESEEEHASTE -
FJ%Z!S RIEM - EBAE 29 F &AL
ik -

BEBHA-_TTLtFRA=ZAZEE
1 2% & B DA 48 Uk 25 7 %5 93,921,340
TREENBARE L ZHERERA

AI([H )z 88 ]) 225,384,146 IR f% 15 F

BIE=T] ° $E%J%jj—lﬁ BSs—ZTT
tFRAA=ZHAZRBBZ  AEEURK

1%5%@%93921340iﬁ%@ﬁ§25384J4éﬂ§/\
e TG - AERDES KR
MEtp s - H )2 o8 B 8 1725,384,146
PREESNE D FEH X R H AR - BTSN
TA 7 8 /5 75 192,046,000 7T © LA K AR &=
B HE 42 a7 2 #E % R 56.70% 558

£50.02% ° It B 58 75 2R % 13,566,000
T WERBE_FENF=A

=St HALEFEERRESETHER -

E/‘EEW $ AEEAEESTHEBA
Al ZHEm  REAB17,618,0007T (=

\ : 532,904,000 7T ) ° X {8 £
ZHB AR Al PR EEFE
22 EREAB775,0007T (=
-/%Tﬁi%nsooooru) SR

"‘*’\EP R o

T+ FEFRAH ARRINAER
55,572,000 Tt E 2 E A A
B REMBARHEITE(TEM
XD 2B AR RER - AEH
LA 7 852,177,000 7T 3% 18 (BN 3R & R
@%T%AZQE@EZ§%)
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40 RESERVES (continued)

40 fRE®

The Company PN
Capital  Investment
Share  Contributed  redemption revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
REEE  HARR EXRERE REEMRE  REEN 8%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$’00_0 HK$'00_0
B¥Tn  E¥Tn  EMTn  RRfr BETR BRTR
(not\e)
(Rt&E)
At 1st April 2007 RZZZ+EMA-A 417,860 95,413 7,526 3,855 838,415 1,363,069
Change in fair value of ARHE 7 REN
available-for-sale investments DB - - - 19272 - 19272
Total income recognised directly in equity Ef m%ﬁﬁﬂz LN & = - - 19272 - 19272
Loss for the year (note 13) EEER(NED) - - - = (33,935) (33,935)
Total recognised income and EREER
expenses for the year WARK 2% - - - 19272 (33,935) (14,663)
Dividends paid BfikE - - - - (128,148)  (128,148)
At31st March 2008 RZZEN\F=A=1-H 417,860 95,413 7,526 B 676332 1220238
Change in fair value of e REN
available-for-sale investments NEEE - - - (30,399) - (30,399)
Total expenses recognised directly in equity N Eﬁﬁ?z Fuft - - - (30,399) - (30,399)
Profit for the year (note 13) EEEH (HzE13) - - - - 708,887 708,887
Total recognised income and ERERA
expenses for the year LONSE ik - - - (30,399) 708,387 678,488
Repurchase of shares (note 39) BERD (i 39) - - 1,273 - (4,738) (3,465)
Dividends paid EfkE - - - - (96,053) (96,053)
At31st March 2009 R-BENE=R=1-H 417,860 95413 8,799 027) 1084426 179206
Note: B &
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets BABBRDREFMEERBAR 2 EEFE
of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares BEINEBRAETARRRO ZHEHBEZERE -
issued for their acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, BEARE-NAN—FRRE) BARER

the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to

shareholders.
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DEFERRED TAXATION 41 IEEBE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) T\Xﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂifiﬁig&}@? E2HREE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior & WZ FEEEHREBEE ( é{;—%) ME
reporting years: EE)
The Group RE
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of Provision for Tax
depreciation  properties Trademark impairment losses Others Total
NERERE EBEUE BE AERE HEER Eft 3
HKS000  HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
ASTE BMTI EMTr AMTR MR ENTR BETR
At It April 2007 RZZTLEMA-A 66,066 55855 18,900 (3263)  (45540) 12725 104743
Exchange realignment & 5 5% 322 4638 - (232) (609) (751) 3,368
Charge/(credit) to income EAEEWER
statement for the year 5%/ (Gt A) (1,146) 85,866 - 435 2,730 (15,203) 72,682
At31st March 2008 \_Z2\E=f=1-H 65,242 146359 18900  (3060) (43419  (3229) 180,793
Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate 35 E%f BEAUNEIPA 3
(note 52(b)) (P& 52(b)) 1,358 - 1,706 - - - 3064
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (2,092) - - (B97) 6223 13612 17346
Exchange realignment & 5 5% ) (599) 1,49 - 7 36 469 1,226
Charge/(credit) to income Ezﬁigqﬁlﬁnﬁ
statement for the year s/ GIA) (3426 (16,167) - 484 2,494 (9438)  (26,053)
Effect on change in tax rate ERERIIX/(5tA)
charge/(credit) to income statement kg ze (3,199 (3993) (1,080 163 1,803 - (6,306)
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBAGE (423) - - 1,765 145 - 1,487
At 315t March 2009 “EENE=R=+-H 5681 17448 19526 94)  (718) 1414 171557
For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax RESEEBBERZHINARN  BH ﬁ
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of TERIAKERBRLEC AR - ELTH
the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes: HERERERGE2OMWT
2009 2008
—EZhF —TENF
HK$000 _HK$°000
BETT BETT
Deferred tax liabilities EXRBRE 176,198 206,231
Deferred tax assets REFIAE E (4,641) (25,438)
171,557 180,793
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of REER AEBARGH2HIEEEA
HK$2,015,874,000 (2008: HK$1,563,192,000) available for offset P 2,015874000L( — BB\ F B
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been 1,563,192 0007E) G} i {/E ﬁ 8 & 5}5_2 &
recognised in respect of HK$198,291,000 (2008: HK$248,108,000) of wk Bt Al o E AR 198,291,000 T ( =
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of = % J\AE ¢ 78 #248,108,0007T ) 2 i I8
the remaining HK$1,817,583,000 (2008: HK$1,315,084,000) due to BEEERASELERIBAEE - AR K&
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses FIEELATER] - SIS AR T 2 B IH & 18

are losses of HK$121,883,000 (2008: HK$78,050,000) of subsidiaries
in the mainland China that will gradually expire until 2014; and other
tax losses which may be carried forward indefinitely (2008: included

7 #51,817,583,000 L ( — T Z )\ F : B
1,315,084,000 7T ) iR BIRIETLIB E E © i
HEBeETRAMHB AR FERABRE

[n

also tax losses of HK$22,103,000 of other overseas subsidiaries that — T —UE 7 E1E B 121,883,000 7T (=
will expire from 2009 to 2018). TE )\ F ¢ 7B 878,050,000 70 ) M EH b Fi 3B
EEETERHER(—EENE : 6
Hi BB RRERBE T NEF

E): = — )\ 7 Fi I8 &5 18 7% 15 22,103,000
71: o

IH31 )

HIBEREEARAT
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41

42

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$7,946,000 (2008: HK$5,712,000) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts
are expected to be reinvested.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised deductible
temporary differences of HK$16,049,000 (2008: HK$16,584,000).
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised on a worldwide
basis into five divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information. Principal activities
of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering
work for lifts and escalators, aluminium windows, civil, building
construction, electrical and mechanical, environmental and pipe
rehabilitation contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except
aircraft, aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, and hotel management.

Food and beverages: Food and beverages trading and retailing.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and
business machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles,
and food trading.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 42 EBRBEMEDE@
(continued)
Business segments (continued) EX Sk (¢
Segment assets primarily consist of investment properties, property, DHEEETEREREME WE K
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, goodwill, other ELhERE ENHENR BE - Ef
intangible assets, available-for-sale investments, investments at fair mMILEE AEHEHEZRE  RERIK
value through profit or loss, properties under development, other BAREBEREZERE ZREFYWE E
non-current assets, inventories, properties for sale, debtors, deposits WERBEE F&E HFEWE  ER
and prepayments, amounts due from customers for contract work, R FHEIRS NTENZKIE AL T
derivative financial instruments, bank balances and cash. BREREPWERZZIE (TEMBET A -
WITHEFRIRE -
Segment liabilities primarily consist of creditors, bills payable, DEEETEBRIEERGTIRRK  BHIEE -
deposits and accruals, unearned insurance premium, outstanding FARESRTEIRER AmBlREE -
insurance claims, amounts due to customers for contract work, RRIEEERE ALY IRERERNEPLY
deferred income, derivative financial instruments and other payable. HZHE - RIEWA - STTEFEIAR
E h JE ST RK o
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. HWEEK 2 P BEERENNT -
Revenue and results U a5 B S4B
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Foodand  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages  and others Consolidated
ERR
BER BABEAR

BHIRE RRRRE LIES 88 NERHEM E)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
ARTr  BETR BRI BT BETR  AETx

For the year ended HE-ZZNE

315t March 2009 SAZt-HLEEE
REVENUE 6=
Total segment revenue PEAYE 3,698,050 76,798 386,879 311,106 810740 583,573
Inter-segment revenue R PAEL € (650) (10,414) (65,502) - (11,430) (87,996)
External revenue oMK E 3,697,400 66,384 321,377 311,106 799,310 5,195,577
RESULTS & \
Segment results before Rt BB R EBBAN

impairment loss on goodiwill PEEE (264,147)  (235,996) (21,536) (20,289) (15678)  (557,646)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREER (10,579) - - (118,700) - (129,279)
Segment results BECES (274,726)  (235,996) (21,536)  (138,989) (15678)  (686,925)
Gain on disposal of interests HEMBARZ

in subsidiaries b6 777,922 - - - - 777,922
Unallocated corporate expenses NG b (13,682)
Share of results of associates PribEE e AR £E (5,750) - 1,934 11,229 69 7,482
Share of results of jointly Pl #\ R il

controlled entities TEEE 685 - (12,041) - - (11,356)
Finance income BUA 16,996
Finance costs BHEH (86,881)
Profit before taxation BR 5 A A 3,556
Income tax credit EHEL 4,144
Profit for the year REE SRR 7,700
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42 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 42 EBRtEEDE@
(continued)
Business segments (continued) EX Sk (¢
Revenue and results (continued) Wik B 4R (/)
Computer and
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Foodand  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages  and others  Consolidated
£ )3
RER \ | aE
BRI RRERE ES 28 BEREM ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT A¥Tr  A%Tr  BETr B%Tn B%Tx
BT BT BT BT CLan BT
For the year ended BE-ZT)\F
315t March 2008 “A=T-HLEEE
REVENUE 3
Total segment revenue DB 3,845,780 120,431 419,935 299,034 964253 5,649,433
Inter-segment revenue % EZ Bl (384) (15,329) (52,630) = (12,412) (80,755)
External revenue MR 3,845,396 105,102 367,305 299,034 951,841 5,568,678
RESULTS *&
Segment results EEY 14,652 (71,052) 501,446 7,087 54,859 506,992
Unallocated corporate expenses RARAR (15,566)
Share of results of associates Pk 5’? Lﬁ RAFxE 3,966 - 14,509 9,631 (848) 27,258
Share of results of jointly Pt 2[R
controlled entities rEXE 1,067 = 1,842 = = 2,909
Finance income BTEMA 16,420
Finance costs BB (126,043)
Profit before taxation B AR A 411,970
Income tax expenses M (112,811)
Profit for the year REF R 299,159
Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by ﬁ%f%ﬁ}%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’] RSHEEBEREKE
management with reference to market prices. MiHERETE -
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 42 EBRtEEDE@
(continued)
Business segments (continued) EX Sk (¢
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Foodand  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages  and others Consolidated
RER \ B BB
BHIE RRERE /S B8 NERHEM e
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
BETT  E%Tx  AMTR  B¥Tr O E¥TR  EMIR
As at 31st March 2009 RZZEAE=A=1-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 1,521,576 771964 3,210,562 468,927 35239 6,318,268
Interests in associates E%Hﬁﬁ% ?EZ%E 98,416 - 49,763 1,079 38,224 187,482
Interests in jointly SR
controlled entities (PR 3 16,840 - 366,668 - - 383,508
Amounts due from associates AN 82,016 - 5,903 311 13,352 101,582
Amounts due from jointly JEMAE [RI P £ R IR 3
controlled entities 2,136 - 422,701 - - 424,837
Unallocated corporate assets APERARIEE 698,787
Total assets BEE __ 8,114,464
LIABILITIES 8%
Segment liabilities AEAE ) 1,288,180 319,289 114,775 179,460 98,376 2,000,080
Amounts due to associates ﬁﬁﬁ%%gﬁﬂ 89 - - - - 89
Unallocated corporate liabilities nEARRIE 2,507,959
Total liabilities Bwafk 4,508,128
As at 31st March 2008 RZEEN\E=A=+—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 2,207,257 1,766,442 3,054,712 321,509 409,948 7,759,868
§ ; ’
Interests in associates Eﬂgﬁéﬁﬁ* ?QZ%E 9,580 - 47,826 77,963 37,449 172,818
Interests in jointly AR
controlled entities X7 R 16,155 - 248,590 - - 264,745
Amounts due from associates YNGR 3,296 - - 4,100 11,877 19,273
Amounts due from jointly JE Uk £ R R ) £ IR X
controlled entities 3,839 - 236,981 - - 240,820
Unallocated corporate assets APBEAREE 131,060
Total assets REE 8,588,584
LIABILITIES 8%
Segment liabilities NBEE ) 1,247,512 357,957 135,005 56,006 11,612 1,908,092
Amounts due to associates ARG S 3,310 - - 2,616 - 5,926
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARERE 2,907,383
Total liabilities BafR 4,821,401
HI-EBREEFRA
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42 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 42 EXBRHBEEIE@
(continued)
Business segments (continued) EX Sk (¢
Other information HE R

Computer and
information

Construction Insurance communication

and and Foodand  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages  and otﬂléers Consolidated

ERR

BER CEah

BHIE RRRRE e 88 NERHM g8
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETR  B¥TRn  ERTn  EMTn  EMTR  B¥TR

For the year ended HE-ZZNF=A=1-H

31st March 2009 LLFE
Capital expenditures EAX W 44313 5,892 2,704 192,783 10,747 256,439
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 37,302 68 17,633 22,096 4815 81,914

(Write back of)/provision for v ER Y E
impairment loss on property, ZRE(EE)/ B8

plant and equipment (3,193) - 6,803 15,529 - 19,139
Impairment loss on A EE 2 RER

available-for-sale investments AR - 10,552 - - - 10,552
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREESE 10,579 - - 118,700 - 129,279
Write down of properties for WRGENEZE

sale to net realisable value AEEEE - - 26,717 - - 26,717
Write down of inventories to WRGEER

net realisable value 2R EE 5,193 - - 856 3,148 9,197
Unrealised loss on investments RERIRKEALE

at fair value through profit REZREM - 1,800 - - - 1,800

or loss, net REBER  FH
Unrealised loss on derivative T Eﬁ BIEY

financial instruments, net REWERE 38 - 74,981 - - - 74,981
Decrease in fair value of REMFEZ

investment properties NRERD - - 99,637 - - 99,637
Fair value loss on derivative ARESTETR

component of convertiblebonds ~ HRZ AR EEE - - - - 27,733 27,733
For the year ended HE_ZZ\E=FA=1—H

31st March 2008 IHEE
Capital expenditures BARLH 74,847 32 11,084 36,402 1,445 123,810
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 59,535 74 18,502 21,987 5,004 105,102
Impairment loss on property, nE - BEIRE

plant and equipment ZREERE - - 4,059 3,356 - 7,415
Impairment loss on A EE 2 RER

available-for-sale investments REEE - 835 - - - 835
Write back of properties for saleto B EIfFE W% 2

net realisable value EREE = = (11,831) = = (11,831)
Write down/(write back) of /Jik/ (Bm)FE2

inventories to net realisable value A &35 % (E 1,831 - - - (516) 1,315
Unrealised loss on investments Té! @IRED R

at fair value through profit Eﬁi@ AR = 71,830 = = = 71,830

or loss, net AELEHE 5
Unrealised loss on derivative T4 E7T BIEYZ

financial instruments, net REFER F8 = 36,528 = = = 36,528
Increase in fair value of investment K &M% 2

properties AREZM - - (387,263) - - (387,263)
Fair value gain on derivative HRRERD M ETAHHGZ

component of convertible bonds 2 /¢ E M = = -
Write back of impairmentloss on ~ # EIFE (T 1 EFE 2
prepaid lease payments AEER - - (2,637) - - (2,637)

(23,912) (23,912)
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 42 EBRtEEDE@
(continued)
Geographical segments &5 M
The Group’s operations in construction and engineering are located i NCRE = -] W TRERESRE B
in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Europe, Australia and the BTN~ BOM - BN K R B A b AE
mainland China. Insurance and investment business is conducted {%[ﬁ R BB EDTBEBEIE: MEEG
in Hong Kong. Property operations are mainly carried out in Hong FTEEFE N2 R EBEKHEAM
Kong, Canada, the USA and the mainland China. Food and beverages BIE: B % f% EEB - MK K
business is carried out in Hong Kong, Singapore and the mainland |7<J 30 IE E SR B BRI EERE
China. Computer and information communication technology BEEE EF' A K ZR B E E 0 B
operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, the mainland China ERTITEENEANREREE -
and Thailand. Other operations are mainly carried out in Canada and
the USA.
Revenue by geographical market
ZihE 5 E D 2 &
2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
BETT BT T

Hong Kong BB 2,482,393 48 3,083,921 55
Macau B P 1,310,119 25 834,150 15
Singapore I3 366,258 7 187,785 3
Canada msEx 355,771 7 458,778 8
Europe B 206,336 4 403,770 7
Australia BN 184,832 3 207,961 4
USA == 116,610 2 160,632 3
Mainland China R A B 114,629 2 156,515 3
Thailand Iz 47,322 1 48,032 1
Others EAh 11,307 1 27,134 1

5,195,577 100 5,568,678 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets
and capital expenditures analysed by geographical area in which the
assets are located:

AT REBEEEMEMBEI DD REE
IREERE A H D

Carrying amounts of

segment assets

Capital expenditures

PTHEEREE BARZH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EZAEFE 2T )N\F ZBELE —_ZTZTN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
Hong Kong BB 3,871,082 4,475,002 205,736 51,788
Macau JE P 293,640 243,885 575 2,928
Singapore I3 353,424 339,526 3,209 1,424
Canada mnEx 238,337 311,062 10,497 1,292
Europe B 13,682 545,376 7,807 29,206
Australia SE N 34,320 262,979 8,096 19,974
USA == 104,313 206,082 - -
Mainland China MR B A b 1,319,546 1,271,948 14,659 17,198
Thailand = 50,423 58,636 - -
Others H A 39,501 45,372 5,860 =
6,318,268 7,759,868 256,439 123,810

HIBREEAFRAR]
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43 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

43

B RER

ANNN
\M

BEZREER/R

As explained in note 42, the Group uses business segments as WMt sE42 P - NEE LB S HIER
its primary segment for reporting segment information. For the ERESBEERIETENE - BETTH
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business BHH REEESHBACZCHERASE
combination and the License and Coffee Shops Trademark are [ ] AR 4F Hf 2 h8 BR Ko U0 W /5 7 42 T5 A U
with indefinite useful lives, and are allocated, at acquisition, to the EROIEEBHBRZEREETXR
CGUs that are expected to benefit from such intangible assets. The ZHeEABN AEBEREEREE
trademark for restaurants and bars business is considered by the RERER 7 HZEFIFE2HBERE
management of the Group as having a finite useful life of 15 years. FAEH - SEZIRAESESEOT ¢
The respective carrying amounts had been allocated as follows:
Restaurants
Coffee and bars
Shops business
Goodwill License Trademark trademark
MYEE BEEREER
HE [ 5R HE ERCBEE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETRT BETRT BETT BT
Construction and engineering BERERIE
— Roads and drainage —BRHT R
and water works KFITFE - 24,377 - -
Property ES
— Cold storage and public —REBABER
bonded warehouse N 64,566 863 - -
Food and beverages Zf 138,025 - 108,000 10,337
202,591 25,240 108,000 10,337
The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets annually for NS FHeAABEREREER
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they BEMRBE MEBRETRKE 88
might be impaired. HAZHETT R ©
The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverages operation BHREB s HESEESMA D S5
are determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while DRARBEREENNTAEEZET &
recoverable amounts of CGUs for remaining operations are REREBNRSELEUNAINE S
determined from value-in-use calculations approach. The key BOIRERPEBESEEETE o %M E
assumptions for both approaches are those regarding the discount FEZEZNEIERIBARETEIEREL
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct BRERLEEEEEXNANTARESEH - T
costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates that reflect BEMAREEEKREBERREES
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks BAREARRHE MBS HENSED
specific to the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are BAREX MEBREEKANE (L
based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the BIAR 45 77 3% 38 15 18 0 K ¥ oK 2k 43 & o) 78
market. BT RE e
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation ErTEEEEORERTHETEIREFNER
of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell, whichever is EmRAUAFHEVEECREELE
appropriate, of the CGUs to which goodwill and intangible assets iz EAFREESA R EREEKA R
with indefinite lives has been allocated. Both approaches require the BERmE) o EEAZMEFTEER - %
entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CEFHAZBACELBENELE ZARK
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. WEmE - WAREE 2 AREGTHHARIE -
As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment loss of ETRHENRRE SREEAEEZEE
HK$10,579,000, HK$49,750,000 and HK$68,950,000 were made on WA mEMEERBARER R
the goodwill allocated to the Group’s pipe technologies business, BEXEB 2B REERED I ABE
branded coffee shops business and restaurants and bars businesses 10,579,000 7T * /& # 49,750,000 7T & & &
respectively. Management is of the view that such impairment has 68,950,000 7T ° BIEER S - AR EH
resulted from the global economic downturn. No class of asset other DIREE NEBE o R BN At
than goodwill was impaired. The loss has been included in other BRIEERE - ZEBBF ALERS M
gains, net in these consolidated financial statements. Bz 2 MW - FEA -
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 43
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

For impairment assessment adopting value-in-use calculations
approach, the Group principally prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for
the next five years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five
years based on estimated annual growth rates of 2%. The pre-tax rate
used to discount the forecast cash flows was 9%.

Goodwill of HK$84,010,000 before impairment and trademark of
HK$108,000,000 are allocated to the Group’s branded coffee shops
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period
are extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth
year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen
year, gross margin of 75% and a discount rate of 11% per annum.

Goodwill of HK$171,543,000 before impairment and trademark of
HK$10,337,000 are allocated to the Group’s restaurants and bars
businesses. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based
on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth year
and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen year,
gross margin of 77% and a discount rate of 11% per annum.

Management determined budgeted growth rate and gross margin
based on past performance and market expectation. The discount
rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 44
MANAGEMENT
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RITHAEZME

Directors’ emoluments EEME
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: YR RENTAATIES ZHMESUT -
2009
—2TNF
Salaries  Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
Fek  BIREE
ESwe HMER pAE wnE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BET T BT T
Executive Directors: BTES:
Chow Yei Ching J& 798 - 10,090 - 10,090
Kuok Hoi Sang 8% - 6,572 338 6,910
Tam Kwok Wing 5 B £ - 2,700 158 2,858
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar B #E 1E - 1,492 75 1,567
Ho Chung Leung fa] SRR - 1,600 120 1,720
Ho Sai Hou (note a) At =% (B 5Ea) - 2,155 12 2,167
Independent Non- BYFHITES:
Executive Directors:
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph JE AR 1 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George R E 150 - - 150
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles HER
(note a) (FysEa) 150 - - 150
450 24,609 703 25,762
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44 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 4 EBEREHRTHAEZHME @
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) EEME (B
2008
—EENF
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribqtion Total
L Hek  RKEE
Exds HEM Z K k]
IKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000
BT BT BT BETT
Executive Directors: HITEE
Chow Yei Ching JE I8 - 9,027 - 9,027
Kuok Hoi Sang BEE = 4,913 338 5,251
Tam Kwok Wing RS = 2,700 158 2,858
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JE 4 J—_E = 1,500 75 1,575
Ho Chung Leung Al SR AR = 1,600 120 1,720
Kan Ka Hon (note b) H5=8 (MEEDb) = 2,030 152 2,182
Fung Pak Kwan (note c) RS a3 (B c) - 696 45 741
Independent Non- BYFHITES:
Executive Directors:
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph JE R # 400 - - 400
Sun Kai Dah, George = 150 - - 150
Li Kwok Heem, John (noteb) ZE&k (M 5Eb) 150 - - 150
700 22,466 888 24,054
Notes: I
(a)  Appointed on st April 2008. (@ RZZEEN\FHA—-—BEZE-
(b)  Resigned on 31st March 2008. b)) RZZEZENF=A=+—HEE-
(c)  Resigned on 1st October 2007. (c) MN-_ZZLE+H—HEHL-
Employees’ emoluments 1& & %
The five highest paid individuals include four (2008: three) e A2 AT ZHME  2RFNEARA A
Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total BEE(—TZZENF: =Z8) BEZHe
emoluments paid to the remaining one (2008: two) highest paid HBEE2EY W E - H FHEHSE T —Z(Z
individual are as follows: ZZNF : WB) &= 5o /\ 2 48 557
=
2009 2008
—EZAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ﬁitfrﬁ R AE K E A48 F 864 4,252
Performance-based bonus ¥ 2 I8 B 755(2 TE4T 1,569 1,992
Contributions to retirement scheme BIRE Z R 12 202
2,445 6,446
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&6 BB R M AT
EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 44 EERSRITBABEZME @
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Employees’ emoluments (continued) EEEHM (8
The emoluments of the remaining one (2008: two) highest paid HHp—2(—BE)N\E: B8RS 5 H
individual fall within the following bands: ZATOlESEE S AT AR
2009 2008
—BBAF —ZT)\F
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75 #5 2,000,001 7T — 7 5 2,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 78 1 2,500,001 7T — 78 ¥ 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 78 3,000,001 7T — 78 # 3,500,000 7T - -
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 75 85 3,500,001 7T — 75 5 4,000,000 7T - 1
1 2
The above emoluments paid to Directors and employees also LM ARREEREEI N 2B £ -
represent only benefits paid to the Group’s key management during REERBEZE-_ETNF=HA=1T—H
the year ended 31st March 2009. IFFEERAREEEEERENZER -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 45 HAREE
At 31st March 2009, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of RZZEZNF=A=+—H K&
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: EEBAEBERMIEL 2 ZEROINEE
=
2009 2008
—E¥ENE —TI)F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Banking facilities granted to BT HRZEGERZ
jointly controlled entities iR Tﬂ.:. = 435,050 321,900
Banking facilities granted to associates BTHERA2RITEE 194,443 46,650
629,493 368,550

At 31st March 2009, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

JrA g =t =A=+—H" =]
%E@bﬁﬁ%#ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂjZﬁﬂ%E’ﬂﬁkwﬁﬁ1

ART

2009 2008

—BBRAF —ETN\F

HK$’000 HK$°000

BEET T BETT

Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries % T [f{ /& 2 7 Z HRITEE 1,076,635 952,283

Banking facilities granted to BT HRZHREZ

jointly controlled entities RITIEE 435,050 321,900

Banking facilities granted to associates BTHERNA 2 RITEE 194,443 46,650
Performance bonds and demand bonds MBARIRETAaMNGI L2

of subsidiaries under certain contracts BHRERRERSE 109,472 194,061

1,815,600 1,514,894
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46 COMMITMENT 46 FEIE
The Group
REME
2009 2008
—2ZhE —TT)NEF
HK$°000 _HK$1000
BETT BT
Contracted but not provided for ?fT 5” HEHBEEHERTE
in the consolidated financial e BmENA u‘|‘ R A
statements in respect of
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BEARE &R 613 2,495
—a property development project —— A ERIEBER 32,419 41,192
— acquisition of an associate — A — B QA 35,000 -
— acquisition of remaining interest —BEA—fE Eﬁ% =Nl
in an associate (note) Tl eh i =5 (P 5E) - 136,171
68,032 179,858
Authorised but not contracted for FTF|IEE B BE
in respect of BREEL 2 EIE
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BEARE &R - 16,729
— a property development project —— A ERIEBE 2,344,260 1,279,025
2,412,292 1,475,612

The Group’s share of the commitment of its jointly controlled

entities is as follows:

AEBAIEERREGI R AEINT:

2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Contracted but not provided for BERAERTIR 67,402 216,724
Authorised but not contracted for EHEERELD 603,386 306,903
670,788 523,627

Note: Bt 5
At 31st March 2008, the Group had committed to acquire the remaining 51% RZZEZNF=R=+—8 ' A&EEEHER
issued share capital of an associate, SEL from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an — % ¥8 7 % = 77 Sinochina Pacific Limited 42 &
independent third party. Subsequent to the acquisition completed on 31st HHB AR SELER T 51% 2 B EITIRA o Wi fE
March 2009, SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. RZEZE j'L¢ =R= + HIEm & * SELR A&

AEBZ2EMBAT
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OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

EXMHEE
AEBEREBA

AEEEFHERETAIBUEE 2 &2
HHEMARNARI N 2 RERESH -
AL B T

2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
ik i BETT
Within one year R—FNR 108,786 102,746
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZEZRFNRN 97,206 128,150
Over five years FEFE 4,834 7,674
210,826 238,570
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic MR T A BB EBEINEERIE -
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental A B A EE ’F] HEARHES  T-8I15E
payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined HEINEE (KA E) (F) 2 A& -
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future sales —MTIARREEREBEBHEE 2 EK
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to HEeBILBARTADLERE -
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.
The Group as lessor AEEERHEEA
At the balance sheet date, investment properties and completed REER EXERERHEZKED
properties for sale with a carrying value of approximately %&E@ﬁiﬁﬁmﬁzmﬁﬁﬁ oyt
HK$819,000,000 (2008: HK$925,000,000) and HK$69,000,000 75 #819,000,0007T ( — B F )\ 4« B K
(2008: HK$77,000,000) respectively were rented out under operating 925,000,000 7T ) K % # 69,000,000 7T ( = =
leases. All of the properties were leased out for periods ranging =\« #877,000,0007T ) © 7% £ ) 5
from one year to five years. The future minimum lease payments ZHHEFHRE—ZRF AEEHIREADN
receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for AR EEUHBEOERRNRERE

each of the following periods is as follows:

=

JEW@%’EZZDT g

2009 2008

—ZEZThEF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year R—FA 36,463 36,074
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EZERFER 22,458 17,038
58,921 53,112

HAEBREEFRAR
—TTNFFR
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48 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20th September
2002 for the primary purpose of providing full-time employee,
directors, part time employees with weekly work hours of 15 hours
or above and advisors and consultants to the Company or any
subsidiary with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire

on 19th September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’
approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Each grant of options
to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must
be approved by independent non-executive Directors. Where any
grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates would result
in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date of grant must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of
Directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not
be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on
the date of grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date

of grant, and the nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted would be
25,502,240 shares. No options have been granted or exercised under
the Scheme during the year and none are outstanding as at 31st

March 2009 (2008: Nil).

(b) Share option scheme of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

(“CPHL”)

The share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company, CPHL,
(“CPHL Scheme”) was adopted on 20th September 2002 and its
terms are similar to the Company’s Scheme. No options have been

granted under the CPHL Scheme.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R M At

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 49 RIKEF
The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for AEEBEEBEREIMEE RIS [EERIK
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong, BRETE - EB B AEEL2HBRE
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which PR 2 (—) R R R AT S 6 5 )E it
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance ZBERKE(BAEIABEETE DR
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (D)R—_ZEEZEF+ - ARELHEE
(the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident TR IR AR 2 8 &l (E A E 2 5t & (R 1
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are [BiELaTEll) c sHEIF M EEEAE
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control ZEEPHEBS THEALAARE R
of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme B NEEFHEIKERMBESEE
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a TREBE-REEE E2REEBERNE
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF CET BN B R ERELETE - FTA R
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after Ist —ETTFE+ A — A UEBEARASE
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme. ZEE RFE2HBECE -
For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the EREETER  EENHEAEIIRE
relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per month to the BEGABHEAEN%TE SALERA
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions B 1,0007T c FEATERFTEIR - EE K
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to EERHFBAILZEEFE  UEBE
7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of RILER5%ZE75%:TH o
service with the Group.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to NETFEAKERBERFEFEHR
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the TEGBZREXEHD  JERE
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31st MBEEHEF B - RZ2ZEZTNF=H
March 2009, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which arose —+—H HAKEREmMITESRE &
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme and which are available FHEERERD - RIR B BB 8,000 T
to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was HK$8,000 (ZZ2ZNF : B8 44,0007T) c RAFE
(2008: HK$44,000). The amount of forfeited contributions utilised A ERE R 2R E B A7 207,000
in this manner during the year was HK$207,000 (2008: HK$354,000). T (ZZEEZTE)NFE : BH35400070) c R =
At 31st March 2009, contributions of HK$2,057,000 (2008: FENFE=-RA=1T—H wHEHHEZE
HK$2,996,000) due in respect of the reporting period were paid over RIARMATE SR AB E 2,057,000T (=
to the ORSO Scheme in April 2009. T N\F : B82,996,000L) ER=ZFF
NFMHA A -
The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in AREFTZRERNERREEB IBIR L
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is WEZEERKEETE - NEBEEZA
required to make monthly defined contributions at rates calculated HEEERIE  ¢EAESAFMzETE
as a percentage of the monthly payroll. L e
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 50 BRAEATZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with RAFEEAEHMEAT Z2EERFFHBN
related parties are as follows: K
2009 2008
ZEBAF ZETNF
HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Interest income from associates SR ETNCIA N IERLPN 5,340 165
Interest income from jointly BHEARIEGIREZ
controlled entities NS A 1,418 1,257
Rental income from an associate B— ke Aa 2H8E WA 456 342
Purchases of inventories from an associate B — @B & A A HKETE 29,174 11,564
The remuneration of the Directors, which is also considered to be key REEAQNREEZ(HEIMKE 75'_'7 NS
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 44. TEEREKE) 2 MBI TE44
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 51 GEHREE
On 26th June 2009, all holders of the Convertible Bonds have N-_ZEBEEAFEA-_+/~B: FiFr#K
confirmed to exercise the put option to require the Company to REHF 2 FBACERITERGE - A
redeem all issued convertible Bonds on the Put Option Date. ERANARREEBABERFFEEET
ABRRES -

HIEREEERAR
—TTNFFR
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52 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 52
STATEMENT

Cash generated from operating activities

(a)

REERE

MEBRMEE

) REXBELEZRSE

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

2009 2008
—BBRAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
Profit before taxation F 74 AT i A 3,556 411,970
Adjustments for: FEEZSE
Share of results of associates ikl o NGIE ¥ (7,482) (27,258)
Share of results of jointly PTG HREGIR R R
controlled entities 11,356 (2,909)
Interest income from bank deposits RIT 17 ZOF B Uk A (16,996) (16,420)
Interest income from associates SR ENETR RPN (5,340) (165)
Interest income from jointly BHEREZEHREZ
controlled entities PSRN (1,418) (1,257)
Interest expenses on bank loans and RITERAREZ 2
overdrafts MBS 48,716 90,511
Interest paid on convertible bonds ARAFANZEERZ
wholly repayable within five years AR E S A B 3 38,165 35,532
Dividend income from listed securities LR HFZREWA (4,259) (11,079)
Depreciation e 67,342 89,156
Amortisation of other intangible assets E {h 717 & 2 g 1,597 3,986
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREER
plant and equipment and prepaid BN HEERIEZ
lease payments B 185 58 6,773 1,438
Net loss on disposal of investment HEREYHE 2
properties BB R - 653
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of WEMEZ AR E
investment properties B (1) 99,637 (387,263)
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative AMBRESITET AL 2
component of convertible bonds N EEER, (W) 27,733 (23,912)
Gain on disposal of 75% interest H &S CPT&R B 75% 2 2
in CPT Group & (156,296) -
Gain on disposal of 49% interest HEETEBSSE 9% R 2
in CHK Group i (621,626) -
Loss on derivative financial instruments PTEMB I Az EE 72,634 24,332
Loss on investments at fair value RERIREALERIEZ
through profit or loss HERER 160,739 87,723
Bad debts written off/(recovered) 2 es, (2 Uk @) ZE ik 20,429 (7,770)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 1578 & R I8 5 11,798 11,783
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEMHE 2 BNHEEHIE
on properties for sale i 939 2,613
Write down/(write back) of properties Wom,(BEDFEWMERE
for sale to net realisable value AR HE 26,717 (11,831)
Write down of inventories to net MR &=
realised value ] B4 IH R 9,197 1,315
Write back of provision for impairment B DA EERIE 2
loss on prepaid lease payments VEREN SR - (2,637)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEE ZFRER
investments B B 18 10,552 835
Impairment loss on property, M BB REEZ
plant and equipment BB EE 19,139 7,415
Impairment loss on goodwill & 2 R E B 18 129,279 -
Impairment loss on loans and receivables fe X N B R 2 BB 5 18 5,334 -
Operating cash flows before EEEEHHIZ
movements in working capital LIRS ME (41,785) 276,761
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(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 52 mEBHEREBXRMTFT @
STATEMENT (continued)
Cash generated from operating activities (continued) (a) REEBREEZES(HE)
2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Changes in working capital HEESEY
Increase in properties under development % & F1 17 5 12 fi[ (154,663) -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EERL,/(3Em) 52,901 (35,051)
Decrease in properties for sale HEMFERK D 34,974 64,634
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, JEWIRR - FHiEE &
deposits and prepayments BRI A (35 103,194 (260,955)
Decrease in amounts due from MEHNTIEERZFIE 2
customers for contract work RIER D 7,635 31,604
Net decrease in investments at RIEBRREAARBREZ
fair value through profit or loss "ERLD - HEE 519,630 367,348
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, ERIESR - TAEE R
deposits and accruals FEREACRL),#En (93,574) 119,505
Decrease in unearned insurance claims 7Rom HA IR e B R (2,965) (8,103)
Decrease in outstanding insurance claims 7 R 4R b2 2= & 5k (48,414) (39,765)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts JFE {-F B 2 1 B IR 3R
due to associates S (32 hn) (5,837) 2,497
Increase in amounts due to HE L TIEE rﬂ =E § 2z
customers for contract work EQEBE I 316,319 52,568
Increase in deferred service income 1% 3 Bl 7% U A 38 0 1,025 3,112
Exchange difference PE 3 20,593 21,302
Cash generated from operating activities #E&EBKELEZHS 709,033 595,457
Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (b) WE-—BHEATZER
On 31st March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% issued RZEZENF=A=+—"H KEEM

share capital of an associate, SEL, from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an
independent third party. Upon completion of the acquisition, SEL

became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

¥ 7 8 = J7 Sinochina Pacific Limited Y& I

U
BEL

AISEL#R T~ 51% B 31T A o RAUR

,ﬂ%n}ﬂzf& SELIKAAEEZz 2 ENB A

ET o
HK$’000
BETT
Purchase consideration: B (E -
Cash paid ENERe 40,000
Cash consideration payable EAEESRE 95,047
Fair value of net assets acquired FIBANBERELAR
(as shown below) (M TFTR) (16,683)
118,364
Transfer from interests in associates EEAEBE AR s 53,179
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEEA 2 /R 171,543

HIBREEAFRAR]

—TTNFER
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52 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 52 HMERERERWMT @
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (continued) (b) ME—REEEQATIZREREE)
(i)  Details of the net assets acquired on 31st March 2009 were as (i) R-ZTZ j—l_,f'g =A=+—BFEA
follows: BEFEZFENT
Carrying
Fair value value
ARHE R T {8
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Trademark (note 18) AR (M5 18) 10,337 -
Property, plant and ME - BB &
equipment (note 15) i (fsE15) 48,328 48,455
Prepaid lease payments (note 16) T/ & 78 (M 7% 16) 1,640 916
Interests in associates Frib B & AR 2 i m 1,079 1,079
Inventories ey ) 5,838 5,838
Debtors, deposits and prepayments & YR 5% « 15 H 12 & K T8 5 3008 22,079 22,079
Amount due from an associate JiE g — ) B = 1 B IR 3R 311 311
Bank balances and cash RITHEERES 35,684 35,684
Amount due to a shareholder JES— % % B R 5K (14,733) (14,733)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER - FAZSLTEREA (27,117) (27,117)
Dividend payable f % B (35,684) (35,684)
Current income tax liabilities EHMSEHEaE (2,164) (2,164)
Bank borrowings ﬁE 1TfE Kk (9,823) (9,823)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 41) FEEF B E & (FsE41) (3,064) (1,260)
32,711 23,581
Equity interest acquired F B A PR AN #e 2 51%
Total fair value of net assets Freg ANBE )%TE Z
acquired N B4 16,683
Net cash outflow arising WBELZ
from the acquisition: Hem R
Purchase consideration settled e T H2
in cash Wi R (B (40,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired EBAZRITEELES 35,684
(4,316)
(ii)  If the acquisition had occurred on 1st April 2008, consolidated (i) MUBBR-_Z=ZZNFMNA—HZH%
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31st March o RIXEEERE_TZ jL F=H
2009 of the Group would have been HK$5,472,977,000 and =+—H JJ‘:T‘-FEZ,JHT\/E'\ E&,ﬁ?é\
HK$19,387,000 respectively. i M 73 Bl & 7 8 5,472,977,000 7T K
0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

Disposal of the Group’s 75% interest in CPT Group

52

(o)

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 16th May 2008 (the
“CPT Agreement”), the Group disposed of its 75% interest in CPT
Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH and its subsidiaries (the “CPT
Group”) to an independent third party. The disposal was completed

GEREREBRMITW®

HEREBENCPT £B 2 75% %
BE-_ZEZENFREA+BZEER
Z([CPTiHzZ]) AEBRBYE=H

{5 7 CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies
GmbHN H K B 2 RI([CPT. B |) 2

on 25th July 2008. 5% Em e ZHEER_EZENF LA
Z+RAREK -
HK$’000
BETT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREBEZXNAR :
Cash received EWRe 233,100
Consideration receivable JEY KB 58,275
Less: Professional fees and expenses W BEEBRRIN (11,950)
279,425
Less: Consolidated net assets of CPT W CPTRERHEZ
Group disposed of maBERE
Property, plant and equipment ER G 181,459
Goodwill (note 17) R (HizE17) 46,744
Other intangible assets HtBELEE 24,126
Deferred tax assets R IRE B 17,739
Inventories A 80,388
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIR SR - 7 iR & RTE R 5KIE 188,411
Amounts due from customers RENTIZRERE P
for contract work W ER 2 5K I8 101,045
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERRS 30,358
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERIRFR - EAKE MIERER (295,333)
Amount due to a shareholder JE A~ IR ER MR K (96,409)
Current income tax liabilities EHMMSTAE (247)
Bank borrowings RITEK (176,083)
Other loans H A &R (1,372)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIRB & (393)
Minority interests DE I HEREL (23,454)
Exchange reserve HNEE 5 I 1B (18,288)
Net assets as at 25th July 2008 RZFEZNFELAZ-+HAZ
BEFE 58,691
75% of consolidated net assets CPTEE 2 75% B B & 245 A
of CPT Group disposed of BEFE 44,018
Add: Acquirer’s share of loss (note) o0 U B8 7 PG 2 B 1 (BT 5E) 79,111
Gain on disposal of 75% interest & CPT & B 75% a2
in CPT Group (note 7) Wz (B aE7) 156,296
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: H&EE 4 2R &R A FHE ¢
Cash received 2 IR & 233,100
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHEZRTEFENIRS (30,358)
Professional fees and expenses BXEARTH (11,950)
190,792
Note: B &E
Pursuant to the CPT Agreement, all rights to profits or losses derived for BIBECPTHHE  RZTZNFONA—-—BxZ
fiscal years commencing on or after 1st April 2008 should be proportionately 1& G 96 B9 B BUAF T2 P EE AE 2 0 AU S BT 18 2 P
shared among the Group and the acquirer with reference to their respective BN E2BAEEKKES R BNRCPT
percentage of shareholding in the CPT Group. Acquirer’s share of loss from SEoREES L REOIEAEERKEE
Lst April 2008 to 25th July 2008 amounted to HK$79,111,000 and this amount FRE - -B_TENFOA-—HE_ZTZ)\
has been taken into account in the calculation of the gain on disposal. FrAZTHEBREIMEZERERBE
;?,111,00071 bR FEE B AR E S W
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53

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

53 FEMBEAT

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly ~ Indirectly ~ Principal activities
BRTK ARARAERITRA
i/ g% BERK/ ERLEN §
S BEIER  ROEH dfRE  KRGEHE E& Mg IEXHK
% %
Capltal World (HK.) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordlnary HK§$5,000 5,000 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
Ex (BB ERAR B 3 ABRS50007T EEREE
Champ Success (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordlnary HK$2 2 - 59.66 Restaurant
Limited B 5 BB 2B
RE(BE)ARAF
Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Supply and installation of
Engineering) BB i BELT aluminium building materials
Hong Kong Limited and curtain walls
(3 EI&) REREVHERBERE
ERARD ZHER LK
Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordlnary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
Engineering) Limited 7 T 1007 aluminium building materials
A i%%ﬁ IE)ERAA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 and curtain walls
EE BELT Eﬁiﬁﬂ&iﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂm
ZBERE
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common Cs101 200 - 100 Sale and serv1c1n§ of automobiles
nex B 10118 AT AEHERRERY
Chevalier (Building Supplies Hong Kong Ordmary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
& Engineering) Limited s B EE1007T building materials and trading
L (éﬁ I%) Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 of forklift trucks and generators
BRRF BT L BEMRHER 2K
BEEAREAH %
Chevalier (Chengdu) Mainland China ~ Not RMB250,000,000 Not - 100 Investment holding and
Investment Management H B applicable ARE  Applicable rov1d1ng manag”ment service
Limited (notea) MR 2500000000 MEA AR REEERRE
Ht (ﬁX HREER
BRAR (M ufa)
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CS$101 200 - 100 Sale and serv1c1n§< of automobiles
nER LB I MERT AEHEREBRE
Chevalier Civil Engineering Hong Kong Ordlnary HKS$100 100 - 100 Civil engineering
(Hong Kong) Limited ;i i AEE1007T IAIR
AT+AIE
(BB ERAT
Chevalier (Civil Engineering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$49,991,002 49,991,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited BB &R 49,991,002 IARIR
HE(£ATHE) Deferred HK$24,964,002 24,964,002 - 100
9N A 124,964,002 70
Chevalier Cold Storage Hong Kong Ordlnary HK$2 2 - 75 Operation of a cold storage
and Logistics Limited i 4 BB warehouse and loglstlcs business
£+RRMRERAT WERRRBRNTER
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordlnary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.6 Building construction and
Company Limited 7 LR 75 % 60,500,000 70 maintenance
£+ (25 ARAT BERERRE
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordmary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Bu1ld1ng construction
Honé Kong L1m1ted B B BE1L0007T BFRE
Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
ﬁﬁE T £ % 10,0007

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
i g ﬂ%ﬁﬁgﬁ ZF/A:?E%HHEHEEZF%%&A&
£ & o
NEES BhUREAR  RHER aMRE  RHBE Ei BE  FEEK
% %
Chevalier (Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$2 2 - 100 Provision of corporate
Hﬁ?ﬁgg%§ggiﬂ BE L BB }ﬁﬂfﬂg%ﬁ%&s
AT (REET A RECXEERS
(formerly known as
Chevalier Q-Mart Limited)
(BI7 Chevalier Q-Mart Limited)
Chevalier Development Singapore Ordinary $52,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
(S) Pte.Ltd. 15 L@ 2,500,000 57 13K 7T NERE
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philipﬁines Common Pes08,750,000 87,500 = 100 Trade or business of waste disposal
FRE &l . 8,730,000 REBMRERH
FRENR
Chevalier (E & M Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of electrical and
Contracting) Limited BB L@ 75 69,200,000 7 mechanical equipment and
Et(KETIR)ARARA provision of project
management service
RERSEBREH
EEEERY
Chevalier Engineering Singapore Ordinary 56500,000 500,000 - 51 Installation and maintenance
(S) Pte. Ltd. ﬁ%ﬁ L& 500,000 7 13 7T of lifts and escalators
ZRRREABERERE
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HKS$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 Environmental engineering
L (RERMERAR & g 75 8 148,600,000 70 RRIRE
Chevalier\ (HK) Limited ang Kong Ordinary i HK$30,160,0@ 120,640,000 51 - Marketing, installation and
EL(BE)BRAH 55 35 7B 30,160,000 70 maintenance of lifts and
escalators
HE  ZERREABRER
B
Chevalier (Insurance ang Kong Ordinary } ”HK$1,000,0@ 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
HBir%l&rg%nﬁl%e% - 0 i 781,000,000 7T RIREER
H 5 B [ NG
Chevalier Insurance Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance underwriting
E%)Epﬁin%%émit%i B L 75 8 200,000,000 70 RIREH
H mARAR
Chevalier International USA. Common 594,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Q\roceg trading
(USA) Inc. x8 L5 4,012,000 70 MEES
Chevalier iTech Services Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$2 2 - 100 Trading and servicing of computer
Limited BE L BT and bH§i‘ness machines i
ETRETIRERAT BRRERREL S RER
Chevalier iTech Thai Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,300 = 100 Trading of computer and
ummmmw ZE ] 18,980,000 2% &% MMMmMM%
(izED) Preference  BAHT1,020,000 10,200 = 00 BRREZEZES
Bx 1,020,000 % £
Chevalier Lifts Engineering Mainland Not _ HKS19,000,000 Not - 51 Installation and maintenance
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China applicable 75 19,000,000 70 appligﬁble of lifts and escalators )
ﬁ‘%}y (R B A &R &R ZERREABERERR
E1ERTE(R
BRAR(MiEa)
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
BRTR ARARACRITRA
i/ g% BERAE/ FEMRAER
S BEIER  ROEN dftkE  RGEHE Ef Mg IEXH
% %
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordlnary Marcau Patacas 100 - 100 Building construction and
AL (RM)BRAR P LR 100,000 installation and maintenance
100,000 7 of air-conditioning systems
BT %L B RE &%% &
/7 7@ ? WL
Chevalier (Network Hong Kong Ordmary HK$2 2 - 100 Network systems and
Solutions) Limited 7 35 BT solution services
T(BERB)ERAF BEZGERRRY
Chevalier Network Thailand Ordmary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of telecommunication
Solutions Thai Limited & L 15,000,000 2% equlpment
&8 ﬁ nﬂ% %
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of computer and office
Bt (BXZR)BRAR i L 758 100,000 70 equipment and provision of
rePalr and maintenance service
/\ = ﬂ- ﬁ po) % &
Bﬂ/\?&f 1%%%‘“
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Bermuda/ Ordmary HKS$107,770,008.50 215,540,017 59.66 - Investment holding
Limited (listed on The Hong Kong 75 #107,770,008.50 7T REER
Stock Exchange of BRE/
ng Kon 1m1ted & /’5
Hizﬁ“%
(EAE/’%H‘W”%%
BRAR L)
Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordmary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and construction for
Hong Kong Limited 7 T 7 1 43,400,000 70 flushing water, cooling water, gas,
ﬂifg Sewages and dramaﬁe 1pe ines
MEE et RRERK - 57
“5n ﬁm&*xak
Chevalier Property Hong Kong Ordmary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Limited ; L& 785 360,000,000 T investment
(formerly known as Oriental Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 WMEEERRRE
Sharp Limited) Bt BESIT
EIWERRBRAA
(HRSPERAA)
Chevalier Property Hong Kong Ordmary HK$100 100 - 100 Property management and
Mana ement Limited 7 L 1007 security sevices
NEEERRAT Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 NEEERRRZRH
£ AH L0027
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary HKS$1,165,000 1,165,000 - 100 Installation and maintenance
Et(BERA)BRARA ;i L 781,165,000 70 of satellite antennae
KLRRGEERRE
Chevalier Singapore Singapore Ordmary §$1,500,000 15,000,000 = 51 Marketing, installation and
Holdings Pte. Ltd. H% 3 1,500,000 maintenance of lifts and escalators
Et%ﬁﬂﬂf&?‘ﬂx%/\ MR i ZERRET R
AR REHH
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Hong Kong Ordmary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
Limited j ER A% 1,500,000 B2

ELirERRAR

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
i/ g% éﬂi%gﬁg& ZMZEJE%H’&EHQEZF%TEWK
£ & Bt
S BEIER  ROEN EfEE  RGE#A E& Mg IEXH
% %
CPC Construction Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$200 2 - 100 Building construction and
Hong Kong Limited BB 4 EE0T civil engineering
HtEREABRAA Deferred ~ HK$25,936,00 259,362 - - BYRERIAIRE
ET 78 825,936,007
CPT Asia Holding§ Limited Hong Kong Ordinary i ”HK$230,000,00_0 230,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and trading
AT EERRDMER ) L 751 230,000,000 70 of pipelining materials,
BRAR] machinery and equipment
REBRREENE
BERRBES
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$6,080,832 6,080,832 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
REARAH B &R B 6,08083270 EEREE
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary _ HKS$400,000 40,000 - 51 Marketing, installation and
Qompan Limited ] L@ VB 400,000 T maintenance of lifts and escalators
TRIRLRAN HE  FERRENBA
REHH
Full Ascent Development %o%g Kong (j)trdinary " ﬁlgl(m 2 - 75 Progrty investment
Limited ; i AT A
REBEARAT ; | X
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Hong Kong (j)trdinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 59.66 gestauram
Limi 7 &5 75 810,0007T 2B
SR (5R)5RAT | R .
Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary __ HK$176 176 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
RF(ER)ARARA &R 23] BE 1767 REREE
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$2 2 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
Limited j ¢ BB EEREL
BB (B5)BRAT
Gold Express Development HO%g Kong (j)trdinary " wrDI%;H(&;IOO 100 - 100 l;%(gggy development
Limited 7 =il 1007 *RE
ERERARAA Deferred  HK$2 2 - 100
B iy
Goldyork Investment Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary __ HKS$100 100 49 51 Property investment
ERREARAA % B8 BE1007T ESE
Good Process Limited Hong Kong Ordinary __ HK$149 149 100 - Property development
ERARLT &2 £ 7 e
Deferred _ HKS51 51 - 100
e BESIT
Igor’s Group Management Hong Kong (j)trdinary " IgK$2 2 - 59.66 l;estaurant
Limited ;i L BRI 2B
i Bememan - o .
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 59.66 Tradigg of food and beverages
EABRAT ; LE 10,0007 EHES

HIBREEAFRAR]
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53 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
- BHAR ALTRAORARE
i/ g% BERAE/ ERLEN §
S BEIER  ROEN EfEE  RGE#A Ef Mg IEXH
% %
Jiujiang Chevalier Hotel & Mainland China ~ Not RMB25,000,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
Travel Co,, Ltd. (note a) HE A applicable AR 25,000,000 applicable LEREER
NIETEEREARAT N Gyl
(Mizta)
Lac Kar Investment Hong Kong Ordmary _ HKS3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Pro erty investment
Compa %lelted ) L 753,600,000 70 ) % &
IMER
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common ($101,100 10,100 - 100 Property investment and hotel
mex L 10L10MEAT éeratlon
Ik BEEERE
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common C$1,0@ 1,000 = 100 Prgerty investment
mER R L0 MERT IES
Marson Consultants Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$10 10 = 59.66 Restaurant and bar
KEERERAR &k LA AR EERER
Matterhorn Properties Limited ~ British Virgin Ordmary Uss1 1 - 100 Property investment
Islands/ L IEY 4@%&5
Hong Kong
%%ﬁﬁ
BB/ER
New Global (HK ) lelted Hong Kong Ordlnary HKS$10,000 10,000 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
HiR(ER) AR R R A% 10,0007 EEREE
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$2 2 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
Limited B L@ BB EBRER
£ (BE)ARAA
Pacific Coffee Company Hong Kong Ordmary . HK§77,355 77,355 - 59.66 Trading of coffee products,
Limited 0 L@ 77,3550 operation of coffee shops and
proyision of maintenance services
MBS EmE 7 - LW
R e ERERE
Pacific Coffee Company Singapore Ordmary 56100,000 100,000 - 59.66 Operation of coffee shops
() PeLtd D B 100,000 7 A0 7T LEmYEE
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$2 2 - 5966 Restaurant and bar
BA(ER)BRAR R B BELL EERET
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$2 2 - 59.66 Operation of coffee shops
&k LA AT BEmeE s
PCC Investment (II) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$2 2 - 59.66  Operating of coffee shops
&7 £8 17 e
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$20 2 - 100 Pr(gerty investment
REBRAT R 54 BEANT ESI

156 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
BRTK ADARAERTRA
i/ g% BERAE/ ERLEN §
S BEIER  ROEN EfEE  RGE#A E& Mg IEXH
% %
Plastream Pipe Technologies Australia Ordlnary A$2 28,619,521 - 76.88 Franchising, manufacturing
Pty Ltd A 5 2R and marketing of products
and systems in the pipe
renovation market,
manufacture
and marketing of
air conditioning ducts
and components
REERF TR EERR
P PATHY S
HERMEERELRE
RERZRERTHER
Proud Rich Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HK$20 2 - 100 Pro erty investment
SEERLA ; £ #Enn nERg
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
B AR

Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China ~ Not US$1,065,000 Not - 51 Installation and maintenance
Engineering Co., B applicable 1,065,000 70 applicable of lifts and escalators
Ltd. (note a) NMEA FEH ERRETEHREKE

LBELTERIE
BRAR (Mia)

Shanghai Chevalier Property ~ Mainland China ~ Not US$$3,650,000 Not - 100 Property management and
Management Co., REAL applicable 365000037 applicable providing property management
Ltd (note a) @A TER consultation
LEATNXEE NEEERERDEEEHAT
ARAR (Mia)

Shanghai Chevalier Mainland China ~ Not US$1,000,000 Not - 100 Trading of lifts, escalators,
nmgmlmmm@ Rl applicable 1,000,000 7. applicable electrical and mechanical
@Hi INEHM TER equipment
AR T(W&O ﬂ¢% ERBLIREERES

Shanghai Chonmain Real Mainland China ~ Not US$18,000,000 Not - 80 Property development
Estate Development HE A applicable 18,000000557C  applicable and investment
Co. Ltd. (note c) NEfA @A MEZRRITE

LBEIZEHERR
ARAR (M)

Sinochina Enterprises Limited  British Virgin Ordlnary USS$100 100 - 59.66 Investment holding in operations

Islands/ LR 1007T of restaurants and bars
Hong Kong REBRNEEREE X%
RERK
BB/ER
Success Well (H.K. ) lelted Hong Kong Ordmary HK$10,000 10,000 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
HE (BB BR ; B % 10,0007 EEREE

HIBEREEARAT
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

53 FEME QT @

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered No. of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
e BHAR ALTRAORARE
i/ g% BERAE/ FEMRAER
S BEIER  ROEN EfEE  RGE#A Ef Mg IEXH
% %
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
R ! 15,000,000 5% £ ESE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary __ HK$100 100 - 59.66 Restaurant and bar
Limited Bl B ABE1007T EEREE
ER(BE)AERAA
Ialent L}lck Limited ang Kong Ordinary i ”HK$270,000,0@ 270,000,000 - 100 Property development
HREZEERAA j it 758 270,000,000 70 and investment
Deferred _ HKS51 51 - 100 NEERRRE
£ BT
Union Pear] Development Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK§2 2 - 100 Property investment
 Limited B &R AT £h
ERERERAHF
Winfield Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
BAERERAF i LA BT NERE
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co. Mainland China ~ Not BMB74,142,78_1 Not = 70 Hotel\ operation
Ltd. (note ¢) B A applicable AK #74,142,781 70 applicable BEREXE
ERELAHEAR NER iR
PEIGED)
RENETEHEHE Mainland China ~ Not RMB400,000,000 Not = 9 Property development
REAREAAT REIA applicable AR%  applicable %%E
(not\e\ 0) NER 400,000,000 7T NER
(Mizkc)
RELERKER Mainland Not RMB40,000,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
] B2 7 (note a) China applicable A% 40,000,0007C  applicable BERELHE
(Ftzta) RER aNEl: FEH
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common C$10 10 - 100 Property investment
mex LA 0MERT NERE
Notes: B 53
(a)  Established in the mainland China as wholly foreign owned (@) LAMINEBECERPEAMAET o
enterprises.
(b)  Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference b) BERAIFRGFT1I0%  MZzAEZEN
shares of this company carry one vote. P8 S BRI A — 2% o
(c)  Established in the mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint () MUHIHINEEBRENFBEAMAETL
ventures.
(d)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to (d) FAERTERGOTERERE  MER LR

participate in any distribution upon winding up.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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54 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 54 EEBELT
Effective
percentage of
Place or issued capital/
country of registered capital held
incorporation/ Class of by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly Principal activities
ARAMERE
| af/a% BEARAY,
BENTER HEAER RAEH AfRAEE TEXH
%
KMG Pipe Technologies Germany Ordmary 25 Pipe-line engineering and maintenance, rehabilitation
GmbH = L& and construction of pipelines, including sewage,
cleaning, gas and water pipelines, and civil and
structural engmeerm
B REREAEEEIR(RESK FR
RRAREKZGRLAREBTIR)
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Property investment
EENBERAR &R i ES-
NordiTube Technologies SE Sweden/Belglum Ordinary 25 Supply PHOENIX process for pipe rehabilitation projects
R/ 1 g HEPHOENIXEAM T RAB MR EBERER 2
Rib Loc Group Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 246 Franchising, manufacturing and marketing of products
)| il and systems in the pipe renovation market, manufacture
and marketing of air condmomng ducts and component
REEBINRGERRRR L HFEE  BER
miskEREL RERTH L RERT SRR
Sekisui CPT GmbH Germany Ordinary 25 Pipe rehabilitation
(renamed to Sekisui SPR B L& BEBE
Europe GmbH on 3 July 2009)
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and provision of concrete
BARRTARAT &R i LERRHEERT
MG AEESERAR Mainland China Not applicable 36 Trading of motor vehicles and provision of
B 3 AEH maintenance services
NEE S RRERERE
RZER(TE)BRAA Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, repair and
REIA TEH maintenance of lifts and escalators

Note:

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these associates is in

proportion to its ownership interest.

B HE - RE - BERREABARTHY
GEE

REBEZHHBENE 2 BANREBRIDIRE
BERED ZHPIFH -
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55 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

55 FEHEZGIEE

Effective

percentage

of issued

Place or share capital/

country of registered share

incorporation Form of capital held by
Name of jointly or registration/ Class of business the Company Principal
controlled entity operation shares held structure indirectly activities

) KL AMESE

i g% ERITRAY
HEEHERER HHHE R M 42 %Rl BREBEA RAPEN: £ TEEH

%
Evernoon Century Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Incorporated 49 Investment holding
BREELERAF RBRUEE i B REER
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary I‘r\lcorporated 50 Civil engineering
BREERRD BB i B TARIRE
Lam Woo Constructlon Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50  Building maintenance
BRAZAERR BB i B BFRE
RHBEBREBRAA Mainland China Not applicable Sino-foreign owned 51 Property
B A 3 i equity joint venture development
PHRELE NEBR
b R B AR i 0 EE Mainland China Not applicable Domestic enterprise 44 Property
HEARAR F B 3 PEH NERE development
NEBR
R E TE M EERE Mainland China Not: applicable Wholly foreign owned 49 Property
ARRA H Bl A, TEH enterprise development
NEBELE NEER
B ER X 38T B O I Mainland China Not applicable Domestic enterprise 49 Hotel operation
BRRA A, N AERE BEREL
RIE T EEFEE Mainland China Not applicable Sino-foreign owned 46 Property
FEBR LA (note) A, NEH equity joint venture development
(M) PHRELE NEER

Note: The Group shares 50% in the profit or loss of this jointly controlled

entity.

Except the above-mentioned, the Group’s entitlement to share in
the profit or loss of the remaining jointly controlled entities is in
proportion to its ownership interest.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
160 :

Annual Report 2009
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FSC

Mixed Sources
Product group from well-managed
forests and other controlled sources
www.fsc.org Cert no. BV-COC-936401
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Counc
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